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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Profile of ICBC (Asia)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (“ICBC (Asia)”), being the flagship of Hong Kong banking business
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”) - currently the world’s largest commercial bank by market
capitalisation, offers a wide range of financial services to corporate and individual customers, including various types of
deposits and loans, trade finance, remittance, settlement, commercial and industrial finance, syndicated loans, inward and
outward bills of exchange, China business advisory and financial services, asset management, securities, trustee and bullion
brokerage services as well as insurance agency services.

ICBC (Asia), formerly known as Union Bank of Hong Kong Limited, was established in Hong Kong in 1964 and publicly listed
in 1973. Over the years, the Bank offered advanced and diversified banking services to its customers. The Bank changed its
name to “Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited” on 21 August 2000 following its becoming a member of
ICBC Group.

In July 2001, ICBC injected the corporate banking business of its Hong Kong Branch into ICBC (Asia). It expanded the
customer base of ICBC (Asia), improved its deposits and loans portfolio and also diversified its product mix. Such transfer of
business therefore led to a substantial enhancement of the competitive edge of ICBC (Asia).

ICBC (Asia) acquired Fortis Bank Asia HK’s retail and commercial banking operations on 30 April 2004. Fortis Bank Asia HK
was then renamed to Belgian Bank and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC (Asia). In October 2005, Belgian Bank,
Hong Kong Branch was formally merged with ICBC (Asia). In 2005, ICBC (Asia) acquired Chinese Mercantile Bank which
becomes its wholly-owned subsidiary and focuses on RMB banking business in Mainland China.

On 31 August 2008, ICBC (Asia) completed the acquisition of Worldsec Asset Management Limited and renamed it to ICBC
(Asia) Investment Management Company Limited. Being a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC (Asia), ICBC (Asia) Investment
Management Company Limited provides professional investment and asset management services.

On 21 December 2010, ICBC completed its privatisation process of ICBC (Asia), which was henceforth withdrawn from
listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC. The completion of
privatisation thus provides ICBC (Asia) with broader access to finance, allows greater flexibility in obtaining the support of
ICBC and achieving more effective business connection and integration within the ICBC Group.

By persisting in the business strategy of “based in Hong Kong, backed by the Mainland, facing the world”, ICBC (Asia) seizes
the favourable opportunities of Hong Kong being the offshore Renminbi centre and keenly explores Renminbi businesses and
cross-border banking services. ICBC (Asia) realized a number of pioneering projects in offshore Renminbi financial products
and was awarded “Excellent Brand of Cross-border Banking Services”. ICBC (Asia) is dedicated to becoming “the Leading
Bank for Cross-border Financial Services”.

In June 2011, Fitch Ratings affirmed ‘1’ Support Rating and ‘C’ Individual Rating assigned to ICBC (Asia). In October 2011,

ICBC (Asia)’s A2/Prime-1 long-term/short-term deposit ratings and C- Bank Financial Strength Rating (BFSR) assigned by
Moody’s Investors Service were affirmed while the outlook on all ratings is stable.
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This Annual Report can be accessed through the internet at:
http://www.icbcasia.com/eng/about/corpnews/report/report_a.shtml
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Financial Performance

TR AR W 2011 Financial Highlights
B H
248 (H 8 0) For the Year (in HK$ million) 2011 2010 % Change
AL A Net Interest Income 4,907 3,587 36.8%
€= S R UN Net Fee and Commission Income 966 705 37.0%
HoAth 25 2E i A Other Operating Income 355 422 -15.9%
BE Operating Expenses 1,644 1,472 11.7%
G SRR EES Charge for Impairment
Losses on Loans and Advances (653) (262) 149.2%
[ B AT 2 A1 Profit before Taxation 4,002 3,654 9.5%
B IH Taxation 849 651 30.4%
I 3R A 1 ) Profit Attributable to Equity Holders 3,153 3,003 5.0%
ST 4 I
HAESSH (7T 8% T) At Year End (in HK$ million) 2011 2010 % Change
B B BGK Loans and Advances 237,489 185,058 28.3%
W R E Total Assets 404,958 266,938 51.7%
e €K Total Deposits 298,806 204,181 46.3%
JBe R B The Equity Holders’ Funds 29,081 20,149 44.3%
W % Financial Ratios 2011 2010
HARFA AR Capital Adequacy Ratio 15.9% 14.9%
AR ) A R Average Liquidity Ratio for the Year 41.7% 42.9%
AR E A B R Cost to Income 26.4% 31.2%
FERCE A R Loans to Deposits 52.3% 71.1%
A HBR WAL IR R 2 8 R A JBE 3 HE A %k A
Operating Profit Before Impairment Losses Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
[ER- %P T
HKS million HKS million
5,000 +41% 3,500 5%
4,584 3,153 +19%
3,003
3,000
4,000 +161%
2,524
+15% 2,500
3,242
Sk
3,000 52429 /70 2,000 +29%
+24% 1,606
2,042 1,500
2,000
-40%
1,000 966
1,000
500
0 0
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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0 AR W05 B DL Five-Year Financial Summary
Z4E (H B oT) For the Year (in HK$ million) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
RS A Net Interest Income 4,907 3,587 3,009 2,998 2,388
s A A I A Net Fee and Commission Income 966 705 744 681 676
Hoph 7 ZEd A Other Operating Income 355 422 437 73 115
e Sa Operating Expenses 1,644 1,472 1,361 1,255 1,137
(G CTRIEEES (Charge for)/Write-back of
() /Il 43 Impairment Losses on Loans
and Advances (653) (262) (386) (409) 115
I B i 4 ) Profit before Tax 4,002 3,654 3,068 1,061 1,949
i IH Tax 849 651 544 95 343
I S 8 A 452 ) Profit Attributable to Equity Holders 3,153 3,003 2,524 966 1,606
1w (o) Per Share (in HK$) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
g R AR 1 Basic Earnings per Share 2.13 2.25 1.95 0.77 1.41
(531141 4= Dividend per Share - 0.37 0.85 0.46 0.86
WAEESH (E B on) At Year End (in HK$ million) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
0SS T Loans and Advances 237,489 185,058 147,025 137,083 121,704
jeyn¥ik i) Total Assets 404,958 266,938 215800 194,716 192,507
T2 Total Deposits 298,806 204,181 163,556 142,496 141,236
i R The Equity Holders’ Funds 29,081 20,149 18,268 14,090 15,177
B e Financial Ratios 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
AT R R Capital Adequacy Ratio 15.9% 14.9% 14.9% 13.6% 13.0%
A2 AP 2 U B A LR Average Liquidity Ratio for the Year 41.7% 42.9% 40.2% 37.0% 43.9%
B RCE AF A 2 Loans to Deposits 52.3% 71.1% 71.9% 72.9% 61.9%
B AR L Loans to Total Assets 58.6% 69.3% 68.1% 70.5% 63.3%
TE B R H AR Impaired Loan Ratio 0.52% 0.54% 0.92% 0.65% 0.53%
AL U A 7 e Collective Impairment Allowances
Coverage Ratio* 1.6% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9%
A B Cost to Income 26.4% 31.2% 32.4% 33.4% 35.8%
IR L2 Dividend Payout - 16.7% 44.2% 61.7% 64.4%
S 2 ] % Return on Average Assets 0.9% 1.2% 1.2% 0.5% 1.0%
SF- 245 30 28 BB A [ S % Return on Average Common Equity 13.4% 15.9% 16.1% 6.8% 13.6%
* ELAE IR E A * Including "Regulatory Reserve"
W A7 K 48781
Total Assets Total Deposits
s T I EHE T
HKS million HKS million
500,000 350,000
+46%
48:,290/;8 300,000 298,806
400,000
250,000 %
+24% 204,181

300,000

266,938

200,000

100,000

2011 2010

+31%
194,716 192,507

2007

200,000

150,000

100,000

50,000

0

2011

+15%
163,556 o4 +29%
142,496 141,236

2010 2009 2008 2007

% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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K Deposits
1. $R0N &4 1. ByType 2011 2010
15 Current 13.9% 6.6%
% Savings 15.4% 18.4%
JE Fixed 70.7% 75.0%
&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. PRI B 5 2. By Remaining Maturity 2011 2010
ZE i SR AR B R R Repayable on Demand 29.7% 25.5%
=R A LA Three Months or Less 52.6% 56.3%
— AR LA {H R A A A One Year or Less, but Over Three Months 16.5% 16.8%
FAET UL H i — 4 Five Years or Less, but Over One Year 1.2% 1.4%
&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. BRI 5 3. By Currency 2011 2010
T HKD 44.7% 48.9%
ESTH UsD 24.4% 35.2%
HoAt Others 30.9% 15.9%
&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
b2 WA Other Operating Income 2011 2010
(R L UN Net trading income and
B AR € LA PAE (A net (loss)/gain on financial assets
i RAMEE [ = and liabilities designated at fair
Az (EiR) /i Fl value through profit or loss 92.2% 93.9%
KA E 2 BERA Dividend income from
financial investments 2.3% 1.1%
(L VIUN Management fee income 1.9% 1.8%
LUE iR N Rental income 0.0% 0.0%
&Y MU A Rental income from
investment properties 0.8% 0.6%
HoA Others 2.8% 2.6%
At Total 100.0% 100.0%
jg ¢k WA B R
Total Loans and Advances Impaired Loan Ratio
s T (£ 24
HKS million %
+28 1.0
250,000 237,489 0.92%
200,000 e
0.65%
+7%
150,000 147,025 _+13% ol 0520%  0.54% 0.53%
121,704 0.5
100,000
50,000
0.0

2011 2010 2009

"% — — 4 4E ¥ Annual Report 2011
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2011 2010 2009

2008
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o TR ST (35 ) 45 B A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

jig & iRty Loan Portfolio
1. WATEM S 1. By Industry Sectors 2011 2010
TE AW 2 B Loans for Use in Hong Kong
AN & Industry, Commercial and Financial
LIES i Property Development 5.7% 9.2%
WERE Property Investment 7.0% 10.0%
4z R4 2 Financial Concerns 2.7% 2.9%
i SR AL Stockbrokers 0.0% 0.2%
L B T Wholesale and Retail Trade 6.4% 5.5%
o N Y Civil Engineering Works 0.1% 0.1%
L Manufacturing 1.8% 2.0%
TR N i S Transport and Transport Equipment 4.9% 5.9%
CVIRNCET Electricity and Gas 0.0% 0.0%
ElRHL Information Technology 0.6% 1.3%
5% 44 % ) Recreation activities 0.0% 0.0%
WG~ e ke Hotels, Boarding House and Catering 1.0% 1.1%
Hofts Others 3.4% 3.1%
PN Individuals
WEE [ m A HER# ] - Loans for the purchases of flats in Home
[FA N2 w258 ] K Ownership Scheme, Private
[fHEEHER gy Sector Participation Scheme
Z B and Tenants Purchase Schemes 0.2% 0.3%
R AL B R Loans for the purchase of
Other Residential Properties 4.8% 6.6%
fFH A Credit Card Advances 0.1% 0.1%
FHoAts Others 0.9% 1.2%
2 5 Rl Trade Finance 30.0% 13.4%
17 W DLAME 2 23K Loans for Use outside Hong Kong 30.4% 37.1%
i Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. BRI A B 5 2. By Remaining Maturity 2011 2010
JEL I SR IR BV I A 2 Repayable on Demand 11.2% 12.3%
— A LT One Year or Less 47.7% 33.2%
AR B DL R {H i — 4 Five Years or Less, but Over One Year 28.1% 36.8%
it T4 Over Five Years 13.0% 17.7%
Alf7 41 R 34 Undated 0.0% 0.0%
aat Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. WEWE N 3. By Currency 2011 2010
T HKD 37.7% 53.0%
B[ UsD 37.6% 35.7%
Fift Others 24.7% 11.3%
i Total 100.0% 100.0%

BRAE —F 4 BAME —F——4

Loans Composition 2011 Income Composition 2011
AN - fEE&E Tt & A
Individuals - A 16% Net Fee and Commission
. . 1% Individuals - Others T

Residential Mortgage 5% ‘l HIMIEZS 5 B HAM A Income
Foreign Exchange and

TR A Other Income 6%

Industrial, Commercial & 5 5 g

Financial 21% 30% Trade Finance

LB S 3553

ERIEVE S04y Ak LSk

Property Development & {1 2 £ 5k

Other Property Loans for use outside

Investment 13% 30% Hong Kong o
FAE A

Net Interest Income  79%

% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011 09
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Chairman’s Statement

2011 has seen quite a number of complicated changes in the global economy arena. Surrounded by a complex market
environment with global inflation and looming European debt crisis, as the flagship of ICBC Group in Hong Kong, the Bank
has taken a proactive approach in implementing innovative operational strategies and management reforms, exercising
accurate judgment and decisiveness to take full advantage of the flexibly offered by policies differential of the dual markets
and engaging in operational adaptation and strategic planning. Operating efficiency has thus maintained rapid growth
momentum. In 2011, the annual results of the Bank achieved a new record high after-tax profit of HK$3.153 billion, an
increase of HK$150 million as compared to last year.

In 2011, with the development opportunity presented by the privatisation, we continued to emphasize on optimizing business
structure and enhancing asset quality. According to ICBC Group’s strategic plan of internationalization, we grasped the
opportunity by increasing our efforts in expanding Renminbi asset and liability business. The size of bank-wide operations has
grown steadily and our ranking in market keeps moving upward. As at the end of 2011, the total assets increased by 51.7% to
HK$405 billion; whilst the total liabilities increased by 52.3% to HK$375.9 billion.

In respect of corporate banking business, we persistently strove for transformation of business operation. We adhered to the
belief that innovation is the soul of the Bank’s development and that thorough understanding of the needs of our customers
is a key prerequisite. We focused on product development and innovation, as well as leverage on the synergies of “enhanced
connection between Hong Kong and Mainland China” and “enhanced connection among overseas markets”. By ushering
in an era of integrated cross-border customer service, our ability to provide internationalized services to our customers was
strengthened. The proportion of trade finance, bilateral loans and highly leveraged lead syndicated loans, which were marked
by sound liquidity, high consolidated total return and low consumption of capital, rose significantly. For corporate loans
business, the mis-concept of “loans outweighing deposits” has been changed. We competed for the status of customers’ major
bank, which effectively increased the overall contribution of customers. We also shifted our focus from the provision of single
loan product to comprehensive service solutions, from pure loan management to integrated cash management service, from
stock management of loans to flow management and asset transaction.

For retail banking business, we have completed the adjustment of organizational structure of retail business and reformed the
operation procedures last year. This year, we focused on the implementation of balanced and transformational development
strategy. We further explored the reform and innovation of management model of retail business and have achieved
significant growth in customer expansion, product innovation and channel establishment. In 2011, 6 branches, 7 self-service
banking centres and 40 automated teller machines were newly established. The total number of branches and automated teller
machines has been increased to 51 and 90 respectively. The electronic banking functions of comprehensive products were
upgraded and optimized, which effectively enhanced the service capability of retail distribution channel.

Entering a post-crisis period, the Bank has accurately judged the circumstances despite evolving market conditions and
focused on seizing market opportunities of major businesses. We flexibly took advantage of dual policies in the two Renminbi
markets and made adjustment of business decisions. This year, Renminbi business has maintained strong growth momentum.
As at the end of 2011, the total Renminbi assets amounted to RMB69.8 billion and the Renminbi loans reached RMB31.8
billion. The profit of Renminbi business rose significantly. Our status as a leading market maker of offshore Renminbi
was further consolidated. With the gradual prosperity of capital market, we are committed to enhance our business in
financial market transactions. In 2011, we have emerged as a new and significant force in debt capital market and Renminbi
transactions. We were awarded many prizes including “Best Renminbi Offshore Offering” and “Best Local Currency Bond”
and have become the quoting bank of offshore Renminbi spot currency, offshore Renminbi inter-bank borrowing and
currency swap.
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The Bank has also followed the strategic development plans and boosted its ability in overall risk control and implementation
of standardized and centralized financial management. Systematic analysis and overall enhancement were carried out on five
major risk aspects, namely market, credit, finance, capital and operational risks.

2012 will be an even more challenging year. The Bank will fully utilize its own strengths as being a platform of “enhanced
connection between Hong Kong and Mainland China” and “enhanced connection among overseas markets”. Based in Hong
Kong, an international financial centre and the offshore Renminbi centre, the Bank will actively leverage on its regional
strengths and seize the precious opportunities brought about by significant adjustments in global economic structure and
internationalization trend of Renminbi, and the market opportunities presented by the corporatized and integrated operation
upon the privatisation of the Bank. We will strive to explore the possibilities of market expansion and business growth.
And we will expedite the upgrading of business channels and transformation of operation, open up new revenue streams
actively, achieve the concerted development between scale and structure together with efficiency and quality, thus making
every efforts in building our core competitiveness and sustainable development capabilities in both domestic market in Hong
Kong as well as cross-border market. On the other hand, we will unswervingly implement management reforms and enhance
our services, in an attempt to support and drive for sustainable business development through continuous management
innovation. We will count on the joint efforts and synergy of all staff in the Bank, emphasize people-oriented values,
strengthen the establishment of corporate culture, which will continuously increase productivity, strengthen risk control,
enhance customers’ affectionate ties with the Bank, utilize the “soft power” to enhance brand influence and display the unique
corporate charisma, so that each operational and management task of the Bank will keep elevating to the higher level and
achieving new breakthroughs.

I hereby express my deepest gratitude to all the members of the Board of Directors of ICBC (Asia) for their valuable opinions

given in the past year and for their advices in formulating the business strategies. I also wish to extend my heartfelt thanks to
the management team and all the staff who have demonstrated tireless efforts, enthusiasm and efficiency in their work.

Chen Aiping
Chairman

28 March 2012
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

ICBC (Asia) achieved a record high profit after tax of HK$3.153 billion for the year 2011, representing an increase of HK$150
million, as compared to the previous year.

As a result of a strong growth in the interest-bearing assets, ICBC (Asia)’s net interest income increased by HK$1,320 million,
or 36.8%, to HK$4,907 million. Net fee and commission income increased by HK$261 million, or 37%, to HK$966 million.
The ratio of non-interest income to total operating income was 21.2%.

Total operating expenses were 11.7% higher than the previous year. The cost to income ratio decreased from 31.2% in 2010 to
26.4% in 2011, mainly due to the benefit from the synergies derived from the privatisation of ICBC (Asia) by ICBC since late

2010 and a significant increase in total operating income as well as the effective cost control over the year.

The consolidated impairment losses increased by HK$252 million to HK$514 million in 2011. Impairment losses of HK$653
million were made on loans and advances to customers as compared to HK$262 million in 2010.

Operating profit after impairment losses was HK$4,070 million, an increase of HK$1,090 million, or 36.6%, as compared with
2010.

The Group incurred HK$99 million of losses from disposal of investment securities as compared to the disposal gains of
HK$616 million in 2010.

Share of profit from an associate increased to HK$21 million from HK$18 million in 2010.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2011, ICBC (Asia)’s total assets amounted to HK$405 billion, representing an increase of HK$138 billion,
or 51.7% as compared to the position as at 31 December 2010.

Loans and customers’ deposits reached HK$237.5 billion and HK$262.6 billion respectively, representing an increase of 28.3%
and 35.7% respectively as compared to the position as at 31 December 2010.

As at 31 December 2011, total outstanding certificates of deposit issued was HK$36.2 billion, representing an increase of
240.1% as compared to 31 December 2010.

CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

During the year, ICBC completed the capital injection of HK$6.1 billion into ICBC (Asia), and the capital adequacy ratio of
the Bank was 15.9% as at the end of 2011 (the end of 2010: 14.9%). The average liquidity ratio for the year 2011 was 41.7%
(2010: an average of 42.9%).
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ASSET QUALITY

Under the Bank’s prudent risk management policy, the asset quality continuously remained at a satisfactory level. As at the
end of 2011, impaired loans amounted to HK$1,249 million while the impaired loan ratio decreased by 2 basis points to 0.52%,
as compared with 2010.

As at 31 December 2011, the cumulative loan impairment allowances aggregated to HK$1,565 million (2010: HK$1,020
million). This included HK$769 million (2010: HK$472 million) of individual impairment allowances and HK$796 million
(2010: HK$548 million) of collective impairment allowances. The increase of the impairment allowances was mainly due to
the increase of loan portfolio.

As at 31 December 2011, the total overdue advances increased by HK$140 million, to HK$1,057 million, as compared to the
previous year end position.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Commercial Banking

The Bank has seen a strong growth of loans in the first half of the year, which formed a solid foundation for the achievement
of profit targets of the year. In the second half of the year, as the growth in cross-border trade slowed down and the impact
of European debt crisis to Asia and China gradually surfaced, the growth of loans, especially foreign currency loans, slowed
down. Since the banks in China scaled down the size of their loans in response to macro-economic control policies of the
State, Mainland enterprises successively applied for loans in Hong Kong which in turn increased the cost of capital in Hong
Kong. However, the Bank still maintained a profitable interest spread with “high cost, high interest” principle and achieved
significant growth in profits.

Benefitting from the increase in demand of cross-border Renminbi and anticipated appreciation of Renminbi, Renminbi
business has established a firm foundation for future growth in 2011. Both Renminbi deposits and loans grew substantially,
and we have gained good market share in Renminbi bond issuance business.

Retail Channel

In 2011, the Bank is committed to strengthen its branch network management, to expedite the transformation of branch
operation and to operate the branches as “profit centres”, “product sales centres” and “customer relationship maintenance
centres”. Through incessant optimization, adjustment and addition of branches, Sheung Shui, Admiralty, Ho Man Tin,
Quarry Bay, Fortress Hill, Telford and Sai Wan Ho branches were newly established in the year. As at 31 December 2011, the

total number of our branches increased to 51 and a well-developed network of outlets has been set up.

In order to actively boost retail business and broaden customer base, the Bank has launched successive plans to unveil a
package of initiatives targeting new customers, new funds and product portfolios. In this way, we can combine the strengths of
different services and offer the most satisfactory wealth management solutions to customers, engage in cross-selling of various
products and continuously improve customer loyalty. At the same time, we proceeded further with payroll payment business
in order to explore the young customers who have high consumption power, which in turn added a driving force to retail
business.
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In order to meet the development of retail business, the Bank has proactively enhanced the quality and coverage of branch
network and upgraded some of the branches to personal banking centres, including City Garden Personal Banking Centre
and Hong Ning Road Personal Banking Centre, so as to provide premium personal wealth management services. Further,
Small and Medium Enterprise Service Centres have been established in Sheung Wan Branch in Hong Kong Island, Jordan
Branch in Kowloon and Sha Tsui Road Branch in New Territories, thus providing more comprehensive banking services to
customers. With increasing optimization of network and implementation of expansion works, our branch coverage is more
comprehensive. Both the service environment of our branches and our bank image are further improved.

Meanwhile, the Bank has also increased its efforts in enlarging the network of off-site self-service outlets. In 2011, the Bank
has newly established 7 self-service banking centres and 31 off-site automated teller machines, covering 16 MTR stations,
shopping arcades (such as Langham Place) and housing estates in 24 different locations in Hong Kong, Kowloon and New
Territories. With the total number of automated teller machines reaching 90, our outlet network is further expanded and
service capability is strengthened. Therefore, we are in a better position to meet the financial service needs of customers,
citizens and tourists of different regions.

Electronic Banking

The Bank places emphasis on developing electronic banking and meeting the needs for financial services of clients through
diversified channels.

For online banking, the Bank continuously strengthens the functions of internet banking and optimizes customer experience.
In the year, more than 40 new features and optimized projects were launched. Internet banking promotions for remittance,
securities and insurance products were introduced from time to time, in order to enhance the attractiveness of internet
banking and drive for rapid business development. As at the end of 2011, personal and commercial internet banking
customers increased by 35.5% and 25.2% respectively as compared to 2010. The number of internet banking transactions
increased by 37.7% and the number of online securities transactions accounted for over 60% of the total number of securities
transactions.

For automated teller machines, the Bank has introduced cash deposit and withdrawal machine in 2011 and newly added real-
time deposit functions in an effort to further extend our service capability. At the same time, the Bank has cooperated with
ICBC in delivering synergy benefits by utilizing the extensive automated teller machine network of ICBC in Mainland China
and providing debit card holders of ICBC (Asia) with free and convenient Renminbi withdrawal services in China.

In 2012, the Bank will develop a brand new online banking platform and provide customers with more comprehensive online
banking solutions. Through collaboration with ICBC and other overseas organizations of the Group, we can enhance our
online banking service capability on a global scale. In view of technological development trends and the needs of customers,
the Bank also provides individual customers with mobile banking services and thus further enlarging the self-service network
and offering customers with more personalized quality services.
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Securities and Brokerage

In 2011, with the persistent deterioration of European debt crisis and successive downgrading of rating of countries such as
USA and Italy, European and US stock markets continued its downward trend, prompting investors to take a more prudent
approach and putting securities business in a difficult situation. In the face of such adverse conditions, the Bank is committed
to elevate customer service level by focusing on improving the products and strengthening the functions of securities system.
At the same time, we launched securities margin account with pre-approved credit facilities and flexible securities investment
facilities by taking reference to our peers’ services and therefore proactively attract additional customer groups.

In the year ahead, Securities Business Department will pay extra efforts to expand institutional customers and Mainland
customers, continuously engage in product innovation, and increase the overall competitiveness and profit level of securities
business.

Private Banking

In 2011, our Private Banking services have already gained a firm foothold in the competitive wealth management market
of Hong Kong. Both the size of funds under management and the number of customers realized rapid growth. Meanwhile,
we kept enriching our services, providing Mainland customers with more comprehensive and quality cross-border private
banking services, as well as enhancing our professional image. More diversified and appropriate wealth management products
were available to suit our customers’ needs.

Wealth Management

In 2011, our Wealth Management Business Department still achieved steady development despite of the difficult business
environment encountered. Product sales increased steadily and income has grown when compared to last year. Product
structure continued to be optimized and we launched different special products such as Paper Gold Scheme and Certificates
of Deposit in the year. Also, we collaborated with new fund and insurance partners and continued to enrich our mix of
wealth management products, creating a product system containing 4 major categories, namely fund, insurance, securities
and financial market products. In 2012, our Wealth Management Business Department will continue to put more efforts in
products innovation, business promotion, marketing channel, optimization of complementary services and building of a
professional team, so as to increase the overall competitiveness and profit level of wealth management business.

Global Markets and Trading

The Bank emerged as a new and significant force in debt capital market and Renminbi transactions. We have become the
quoting bank of offshore Renminbi spot currency, offshore Renminbi inter-bank borrowing and currency swap. We were also
invited by Treasury Markets Association and Bloomberg to contribute daily price quotes for offshore Renminbi fixing rate.

The net interest income amounted to HK$833 million, an increase of 77% when compared to last year. However, in view of
the deterioration of European debt issue in the second half of the year, the Bank sold the bonds of risky regions in order to
mitigate risks. A loss of less than HK$100 million was incurred by the selling of bonds. Apart from this, the Bank is seeking to
restructure the investment portfolio in compliance with the requirements of Basel III which is due to be progressively phased
in from 2013 onwards.
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Investment Banking

As the overseas flagship of ICBC, on the basis of optimal development of a full range of commercial banking services and
product systems, ICBC (Asia) has achieved considerable development in investment banking services by leveraging on its
capital, customers and network strengths. At present, the product system of investment banking of ICBC (Asia) mainly
includes syndicated loans arrangement, debt underwriting and issuance, structural financing arrangement, investment and
financing advisor, and asset transaction business.

As the cross-border capital financing market is on the rise, ICBC (Asia) has grasped such opportunity and focused on offshore
bond underwriting and issuance business. In 2011, ICBC (Asia) successfully issued dim-sum bonds for a number of premier
domestic and overseas customers such as Ministry of Finance, PetroChina, COFCO, China Merchants Group, Shougang
Group etc. We acted as lead underwriter in 15 offshore Renminbi bonds and raised over RMB20 billion. For the Renminbi
bond offered by the Ministry of Finance in Hong Kong, an advertising banner was put up above Victoria Harbour which
brought publicity and attracted notable coverage by domestic and foreign media. As an alternative direct financing tool other
than providing direct syndicated loans support to customers, Renminbi bond underwriting business is characterized by
“diversified issuing entities, low cost of financing, efficient issuance operation and differentiated mechanism of capital reflow”
and has become a key product of ICBC (Asia) and domestic branches of ICBC in their joint efforts to develop investment
banking business in 2011.

Institutional Business

With regards to our institutional business, increasing emphasis is put on refining customer service with the provision of
comprehensive and tailor-made services to customers. Considerable results have been achieved. We have been actively
expanding the overseas clearing service of banking financial institutions, participating in the establishment of offshore
Renminbi business centre of ICBC and expanding offshore Renminbi clearing business. Through proactive collaboration
with domestic branches of ICBC, we laid emphasis on developing foreign currency payment services and Renminbi payment
services under trade finance, and thus realizing a comprehensivbe and sustainable growth momentum of the business. We
have also expanded the customer base and services to non-banking financial institutions customers and are in the forefront of
the industry in areas such as general deposits, loans and cash management business. In 2011, the Institutions Department has
newly set up a government and public organizations team which is specially designated to provide more comprehensive and
refined services to such organizations.

For custody business, the Bank fully leveraged on the overall strengths of the Group. Through close interaction and
collaboration with domestic branches of ICBC, the number of custody customers and asset scale under custody continued to
grow.

Asset Management

Global stock and debt markets were volatile in 2011 driven by concerns over European sovereign debt crisis and slowing
down of growth of global economies. The team of ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited (“ICBC (Asia)
Investment”), our wholly-owned subsidiary, is dedicated persistently to manage 5 funds which are authorized by Hong Kong
Securities & Futures Commission and has achieved solid results despite the less favourable external environment and market
volatility.
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With the opening up of offshore Renminbi market and accelerated pace of internationalization of Renminbi, ICBC (Asia)
Investment has made its debut issue of Renminbi-denominated “ICBC (Asia) Investment Funds-Global RMB Fixed Income
Fund” in February 2011 which mainly invests in local dim-sum bonds. The response of the debut offering was overwhelming.
Also, the Renminbi credit fund launched for ICBC (Asia) at the end of 2011 filled the gap in liquidity management fund
product line of ICBC (Asia) Investment.

Entering 2012, global stock and debt markets have benefitted from the gradual easing of external uncertainties and
improved investor sentiment and shown signs of recovery. ICBC (Asia) Investment is well-positioned to take advantage of
the improving market conditions. Whilst managing the existing products well and generating better return for investors, it
will also actively develop other products that meet the needs of the market and realize product diversification. As the only
wholly-owned investment platform of ICBC Group in Hong Kong, ICBC (Asia) Investment will make its best endeavours to
expand overseas market and, in line with the long-term development philosophy of internationalization of asset management
business of the Group, strengthen the platform of overseas asset management.

Credit Card Business

Credit card business has maintained steady growth last year. During the year, expansion of card issuance remained a priority
task and some achievements have been made. When compared to 2010, new card issuance increased by 41%. The number of
cards in circulation grew by 19%. Whilst expanding card issuance, the Credit Card Centre was also committed to development
and marketing of new products/services, so that the utilization rate of credit cards would be maintained. During the year,
Credit Card Centre has launched many new products, including “e-Age Banking” Titanium Card, Hong Kong Airlines
Visa Card, UnionPay Dual Currency Corporate Card and prepaid card. Also, it launched two innovative services, including
UnionPay cross-border payment services and MasterCard online certification service. In respect of marketing efforts, the
Credit Card Centre has strengthened the expansion of merchant promotions network. Apart from the provision of key
merchant promotions every week in tandem with media propaganda, it further cooperated with various shopping arcades and
jointly launched merchant promotions. Therefore, the percentage of dormant accounts was not increased and the average
card spending of each active customer was not diluted notwithstanding the increase in number of cards issued. The overall
card spending has seen a rise of 20% with the balance of core credit card overdraft increasing by 24% simultaneously. In
respect of acquiring business, the Credit Card Centre has collaborated with ICBC and promoted installment payment plans
for the Mainland-issued “Easy Time Credit Card” in Hong Kong and actively extended the acquiring network. Moreover,
a considerable breakthrough has been achieved in cooperating with our branches and seeking for partners of acquiring
business. As a result, acquiring turnover increased significantly by 60%.

In the year ahead, the Bank will accelerate the expansion of card issuance so as to enhance the economy of scale. We follow
the two-prong strategy of facilitating card issuance by the branches as well as developing a direct card issuance team, while
at the same time acting in cooperation with the research and development of new products and merchant promotions.
The development of new products will be pursued by leveraging on the strengths of ICBC in China, aiming at the business
opportunities in China and Hong Kong. The development of merchant promotions will be further consolidated on the basis
of the relationship with our partners built last year. Meanwhile, the Credit Card Centre is planning to increase headcount of
acquiring business, advance the incentives of branches and deepen the cooperation with partners of acquiring business. It is
expected that acquiring business will maintain its rapid growth momentum this year.
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Renminbi Business

By closely aligning itself with the increasingly globalized and diversified needs of customers for financial services and through
various channels such as “scientific transplant” of foreign currency business and structural design that emphasizes cross-
border features, ICBC (Asia) provides increasingly comprehensive Renminbi services to corporations, individuals and
peers in respect of different business lines such as settlement, clearing, financing, funding, retail, bank card and global cash
management.

Both the size and market share of Renminbi deposits and loans have increased rapidly. The Bank has also realized many
pioneering projects relating to offshore Renminbi financial products: first to develop Renminbi payment agency service in
large scale, first Renminbi swap transaction, first Renminbi sovereign asset management transaction, first to successfully
enter the Mainland interbank bond market, first Renminbi subordinated bond issuance etc, highlighting its status as a leading
bank in Renminbi market. For each product line, we coordinated with marketing department and had a firm understanding
of cross-border needs of customers. We designed different product mix, adjusted the procedures and created a series of
cross-border products. Also, personalized service solutions were offered to Mainland customers who pursue development
in overseas market. We have therefore designed and implemented Renminbi global cash management plans for some key
customers.

ICBC (Asia) has successfully issued the 1.5 billion offshore Renminbi subordinated bond in Hong Kong which was in
compliance with the requirements of the new Basel III. The funds raised have been injected into Chinese Mercantile Bank, our
subsidiary in Mainland China, in the form of Renminbi foreign direct investment (“FDI”). It was the first Basel III compliant
bond issuance in Asia Pacific region as well as the first subordinated capital financing instrument of bank in the offshore
Renminbi bond market in Hong Kong. This transaction has been granted several influential international awards by reputed

and authoritative media in Asia and worldwide, including “Best Offshore Renminbi Offering”, “Best Local Currency Bond”
and “Best Bank Capital Bond” etc.

Chinese Mercantile Bank

Chinese Mercantile Bank has witnessed a significant growth in its results in 2011. In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standards, the net profit of Chinese Mercantile Bank for the year of 2011 has increased HK$410 million, or 195%, to HK$620
million when compared to 2010. Net interest income increased by HK$610 million or 134% to HK$1.07 billion. Fee and
commission income was realized at HK$130 million, an increase of 151.62%. As at 31 December 2011, the total assets of
Chinese Mercantile Bank amounted to HK$52.44 billion, representing an increase of 105% when compared to the end of 2010.
The balance of customer loans and deposits amounted to HK$25.67 billion and HK$30.83 billion, representing an increase of
31.55% and 108.86% as compared to the end of 2010 respectively.

In October 2011, the head office of China Mercantile Bank was moved to Futian Central District, Shenzhen, China, which
signified an important strategic initiative in pursuing business development, perfecting organization structure and expediting
localization process. In December, China Mercantile Bank obtained the approval to increase its total registered capital by
RMBL.5 billion to RMB3.15 billion. The increase in capital was completed in January 2012 and significantly supported China
Mercantile Bank in its continuous growth of business size. In future, China Mercantile Bank will keep up with the pace of
strategic movements of its parent bank ICBC (Asia) and continue to engage in business collaboration with ICBC (Asia) and
ICBC and complement each other’s advantages. It will be devoted to offering special financial products and quality financial
services, expanding business scale and market share, and making more contributions to the overall development of the Group.
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Human Resources

The Bank always adheres to people-oriented values and believes that employees are growing up with the Company. We
treat employees as our most invaluable assets and constantly improve our human resources policy, facilitate employee
development, raise employee satisfaction and improve their welfare.

During the year, we conducted a review of remuneration and incentive scheme, established and refined risk and remuneration
balancing policy, thus further strengthening risk management. We also optimized performance and appraisal system in
order to promote contribution and collaboration of our staff. A survey of employee motivation was conducted in an effort
to understand the expectations and concerns of our staff towards the Company and to seek for continuous improvement
in management. In order to offer better benefits to employees, the Bank has also renewed the medical insurance for all
employees.

The Bank always places emphasis on enhancing the skills of our employees and providing them with a full range of training
courses covering areas such as business, products, service, compliance and risk management. Also, we sponsor our staff to take
part in external professional trainings. We have strengthened the nurturing and development of management personnel and
cooperated with renowned universities and training institutes in organizing courses such as leadership development. During
the year, the online learning platform was renewed to increase training efficiency.

The Bank has arranged our staff to participate in various professional training courses organized by ICBC, delegated staff to
take part in overseas study programs of ICBC, fostered interaction and facilitated the career development of the staff in the
Group.

In order to meet the operational needs for group management and integrated development, the 2011 “Elites of ICBC (Asia)”
commendation and selection activity was held. Through such selection work, 11 outstanding employees who have made
significant contribution in bank-wide operation and management, system optimization, performance enhancement and
business innovation were praised and granted with the honorable appellation. This fully reflected our belief in people-oriented
philosophy. We reinforced the establishment of corporate culture of the Bank and increased employees’ sense of belonging
through the activity. A strong sense of affinity was built across the Bank, manifesting the spirit that “everyone within the
Group sharing the same vision”.

With consistent efforts made by the Bank in nurturing talents and progressive improvement of incentive mechanism, the Bank
has successfully organized the first selection of research report activity in 2011 which has attracted wide support and attention
from many diverse groups. Each research team conducted scientific study and compiled a well-developed report while the
examination and selection team carefully reviewed and selected outstanding pieces from these reports. A total of 22 thorough
research reports, which contained insightful analysis of development results, trends and problems in various business areas of
ICBC (Asia) from diverse perspectives, were submitted by different departments in this activity. This does not only provide
a platform for the employees to link theories to practice, analyze work results for the Group and empowers people with a
corporate vision, it also provides necessary information for reference and theoretical basis for a healthy and sustainable
development of ICBC (Asia).

To motivate all staff in the Bank to make persistent efforts and strive for continuous advancement, a solemn award
presentation ceremony was held by ICBC (Asia) in its annual dinner. Certificates and cash awards were given by the
management team to 11 “Elites of ICBC (Asia)” and the selected research teams. The management team sang songs in the
occasion and demonstrated friendliness when presenting awards. They met together with all the staff and celebrated the Lunar
Chinese New Year, communicating warmth, blessings and the message that with concerted efforts, we will get through tough
times together, go forward hand in hand, reach new heights and share the joys.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Adhering to the principle of “Originating From Society, Giving Back to Society, Serving Society”, the Bank is actively engaged
in social welfare activities and its good performance wins wide recognition from all walks of life. The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service awarded the Bank with the “Caring Company - 5 Years Plus Logo” in recognition of the Bank’s outstanding
performance in respect of its role as a good corporate citizen.

As the Chairman of the Caritas Fund Raising Committee for 13 consecutive years, the Bank is committed to fully support
Caritas-Hong Kong by organizing Charity Golf Day, sales of raffle tickets, donation with part of the retail spending revenue
from credit card, donation to Caritas charity television show, taking part in bazaars, placing donation boxes at branches, and
to assist in soliciting donations from business partners and customers. At the same time, the Bank and Caritas-Hong Kong
also co-organized a charity activity named “Withdraw Money = Donate Money”. Every time when customers withdrew or
deposited via nearly 100 automated teller machines of ICBC (Asia) in Hong Kong, the Bank made donation to Caritas in order
to support its public welfare affairs. The Bank also assisted ORBIS, a charitable organization, in distributing leaflets appealing
for donations to ORBIS’ saving sight initiatives.

The Bank has established “ICBC (Asia) MBA Scholarship” program with the University of Hong Kong and awarded
scholarships to three MBA students who have achieved outstanding academic results. At the same time, the Bank actively
participates in the “Internship Programme for University Graduates in Hong Kong” and provides extensive internship
opportunities for outstanding university graduates.

In 2012, the Bank will continue to contribute to the community service and demonstrate good corporate citizenship in
building a harmonious society.
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Biographical Details of Directors & Senior Management

Mr. Chen Aiping (Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chen, aged 53, was appointed as a Director of the Bank in December 2002 and re-designated as the Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Bank in July 2008. Mr. Chen was appointed as the Chairman of the Bank in October 2011. Mr.
Chen was also appointed as the Chairman of Chinese Mercantile Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, in November
2008 and a Director of certain other wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank, namely, ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited,
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited, ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company Limited and ICBC (Asia) Investment Management
Company Limited. He is also the Vice Chairman of ICBC International Holdings Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Arts
Degree from Wuhan University and a Master of Business Administration (International) Degree from The University of Hong
Kong. He has over 26 years of banking experience and was previously the General Manager of the International Business
Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited and the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Luxembourg S.A..

Mr. Zong Jianxin (Director, Deputy Chief Executive and Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Zong, aged 45, joined the Bank as a Deputy General Manager in January 2010 and was appointed as a Director and
an Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in October 2010. He is also a Director of Chinese Mercantile Bank, ICBC (Asia)
Investment Holdings Limited, ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited and
ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank. Mr. Zong graduated from Shanghai
Jiao Tung University with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and qualified as a Economist. Mr. Zong has over 16
years banking experience, specialised in corporate banking, international business and investment banking business. Prior to
joining the Bank, Mr. Zong was the Vice President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Shenzhen Branch.

Mr. Fung Siu Ming (Director, Deputy Chief Executive, Alternate Chief Executive and Chief Risk Officer)

Mr. Fung, aged 59, was appointed as the Chief Risk Officer of the Bank on 10 October 2005, the appointed day for the merger
of the Bank and Belgian Bank, Hong Kong Branch, and was promoted as a Deputy General Manager of the Bank in January
2006. Mr. Fung was appointed as a Director and an Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2011. Mr. Fung is also a
Director of Chinese Mercantile Bank, ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited, ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited, ICBC
(Asia) Investment Holdings Limited and UB China Business Management Co. Ltd., which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Bank. Mr. Fung holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and Law from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Fung has
over 37 years of local banking experience specialised in bank lending and credit risk management.

Mr. Wu Hongbo (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Wu, aged 47, was appointed as a Director of the Bank in October 2011. Mr. Wu is the Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee of Board of Directors of the Bank. Mr. Wu holds a Master’s degree in Money and Banking from Zhongnan
University of Finance and Economics, a PhD in Finance from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law, and qualified as
a Senior Economist. Mr. Wu has over 23 years of banking experience and is the General Manager of Administration Office
of Directors and Supervisors to Subsidiaries of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited. He is also a Director of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Middle East)
Limited.
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Mr. Zhu Wenxin (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Zhu, aged 59, was appointed as a Director of the Bank in October 2011. Mr. Zhu graduated from Party School of the
CPC Central Committee as professional in Economics and Administration and qualified as a Senior Economist. Mr. Zhu has
over 27 years of banking experience and is the Accredited Director of Administration Office of Directors and Supervisors to
Subsidiaries of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited. He is also a Director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Macau) Limited, ICBC Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. and ICBC Credit Suisse Asset Management Co., Ltd..

Mr. Shi Zeyou (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Shi, aged 56, was appointed as a Director of the Bank in October 2011. Mr. Shi holds a Bachelor degree in Finance from
Hebei University and qualified as a Senior Economist. Mr. Shi has over 32 years of banking experience and is the Accredited
Director, Supervisor of Administration Office of Directors and Supervisors to Subsidiaries of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited. He is also a Director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Middle East) Limited, a Director of ZAO
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Moscow), a Supervisor of ICBC Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. and a Supervisor of
ICBC Credit Suisse Asset Management Co., Ltd..

Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.8.S,, J.P. (Independent Non-executive Director)

Professor Wong, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in July 2000. Professor
Wong is the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank. Professor Wong studied Economics at the University of Chicago
and graduated with a Doctorate in Philosophy. He is Professor of Economics at The University of Hong Kong. He has been
active in advancing economic research on policy issues in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China through his work
as founding Director of both the Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research and Hong Kong Institute of Economics and
Business Strategy. Professor Wong was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 1999 by the Government of the HKSAR for his
contributions in education, housing, industry and technology development.
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Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Tsui, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in August 2000. Mr. Tsuli is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the Alternate Chairman of the Risk Management Committee of Board of
Directors of the Bank. Mr. Tsui graduated from University of Tennessee with a Bachelor of Science Degree and a Master of
Engineering Degree in Industrial Engineering. He has completed the Program for Senior Managers in Government at the John
F. Kennedy School of Government at Harvard University. Mr. Tsui is currently the Chairman of WAG Worldsec Corporate
Finance Limited. Prior to his current appointment, he was the Adviser and Council Member of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
from July 2001 to June 2002 and was the Chief Executive of Regent Pacific Group Limited, a Hong Kong listed investment
company, from August 2000 to February 2001. He was also the Chairman of Hong Kong Securities Institute from December
2001 to December 2004. He joined The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1994 as an Executive Director of the Finance
and Operations Services Division and became the Chief Executive from 1997 to 2000. He was also the Chief Operating Officer
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from March 2000 to July 2000 and the General Manager (Finance, Technology
& Human Resources), and then Assistant Director (Licensing), and at the same time the General Manager (Human Resources)
of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong from 1989 to 1993. Mr. Tsui also involved in numerous government
and community activities, including being a former Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of Tracker Fund of Hong Kong
and the Organizing Committee of Independent Commission Against Corruption Professional Ethics Programme for the
Securities, Futures and Investments Sectors, a former member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council Financial Services Advisory Committee, The Community Chest of Hong Kong
Corporate and Employee Contribution Programme Organizing Committee (Banking and Finance Group), the Banking and
Finance Industry Training Board of the Vocational Training Council and the Investment Sub-Committee of the Government
Committee of the Beat Drugs Fund Association.

Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Yuen, aged 67 was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in April 2003. Mr. Yuen is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the Alternate Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank. Mr. Yuen is
currently an independent non-executive director of PNG Resources Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company. He
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree (Honors) in Economics and Political Science. Mr.
Yuen had attended post-graduate studies in marketing management at the International Marketing Institute, Cambridge,
Massachusetts, U.S.A. and had completed the Hong Kong Administrators Course (commissioned by the Hong Kong
Government) in public administration and international relations at Oxford University, the United Kingdom, and the
International Executive Program in INSEAD, France respectively. In June 2003, Mr. Yuen was admitted to the Leadership
in Development Program organised by Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University. In June 2004, Stanford
University, California, U.S.A. had also invited Mr. Yuen to participate in its “Corporate Governance” forum and in early
2006 the University awarded a fellowship to Mr. Yuen as a non-profit leader at its Centre for Social Innovation. Mr. Yuen
had been Chief Executive of The Better Hong Kong Foundation for nine years since September 1997. Prior to his joining
the Foundation, he was the Assistant Director/Acting Deputy Director of the Information Services Department of the Hong
Kong Government. Mr. Yuen plays an active role in organising international business conferences in Hong Kong and also
takes part in numerous government and community activities, including being a board member of the East-West Strategic
Development Commission. Mr. Yuen was the Panel member of the Central Policy Unit of the HKSAR Government on the
Pan-Pearl River Delta between 2003-2007. Mr. Yuen is currently a member of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Guangxi Autonomous Region, China; an advisor of the Institute of Finance and Trade Economics, Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences, China; an advisor of The Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences, China; an advisor of The Board of
International Investment of Guangzhou Municipality, China; a Special Advisor of the China National Committee for Pacific
Economic Cooperation (PECC China); a Standing Committee member of the Convocation of The University of Hong Kong;
and a member of the Court of The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yuen is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a
member of the British Institute of Management and the Institute of Marketing, United Kingdom, and was also commended by
the former U.S. President, George W. Bush for his efforts in support of coalition’s campaign against global terrorism.
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Mr. Leung Ming Hym, Peter (Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Leung, aged 49, joined the Bank in July 2001 and was appointed as an Assistant General Manager and the Chief Financial
Officer in March 2007. He was appointed as a Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2011. Mr. Leung is also a Director
of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank, namely, ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Limited, ICBCA (C.I.) Limited,
ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company Limited and ICBC
(Asia) Bullion Company Limited. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and Financial Analysis from University
of Newcastle upon Tyne, UK and a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws from University of London, UK. Mr. Leung is an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and serves on its Members’ Advisory Panel. He is
also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (UK). Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance.

Mr. Tong Hee Keung, Samuel (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Tong, aged 54, was appointed as a Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2011. Mr. Tong holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the University of Brunel, United Kingdom. Mr. Tong is an associate member of The
Chartered Institute of Bankers and has over 25 years of corporate and commercial banking experience.

Mr. Chen Yulong (Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Operation Officer)

Mr. Chen, aged 38, joined the Bank as an Assistant General Manager in October 2010 and was appointed as Chief Operation
Officer in November 2010. Mr. Chen was also appointed as a Director of ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Bank, in November 2010. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from Renmin University
of China, a Master’s Degree in Management from Jilin University and qualified as a Senior Economist. Mr. Chen had further
his study at the University of Illinois, U.S.A. between 2007 and 2008. Mr. Chen has worked in Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Limited for over 16 years and possesses comprehensive and extensive business management experience. Prior
to joining the Bank, Mr. Chen was the Deputy General Manager of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Jilin
Provincial Branch, Changchun City Branch.

Mr. Ying Weiyun (Assistant Chief Executive)

Mr. Ying, aged 41, joined the Bank in December 2009 as an Assistant General Manager and oversees the overall development
and operation of retail banking, private banking and credit card businesses of the Bank. Mr. Ying is also a Director of certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank, namely, ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited and ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited.
Mr. Ying has taken postdoctoral research on management sciences and engineering at the Development Research Academy
for the 21st Century of Tsinghua University, and awarded with a Master’s Degree in Engineering and a Doctorate Degree in
Management. Mr. Ying has over 11 years of banking and financial services experience, specialised in personal banking and
consumer credit businesses. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Ying was the General Manager of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited, Shenzhen Branch, in charge of personal banking and credit administration business.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited (the “Bank”) have pleasure in submitting its annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Bank and the Group (the
Bank together with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial and

other financial related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
shown in Note 34 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 59.

The Board has not recommended the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Bank and the Group during the

year are set out in Note 41 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$783,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment properties and property, plant and

equipment of the Group and the Bank during the year are set out in Notes 31 and
32 to the financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 40 to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Bank at 31 December 2011, calculated in accordance
with the provision of section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$5,953,727,000.
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FIVE YEAR’S FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out below.

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
T#L ALY AR P T T
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
X4 Results
I TR A 34 ) Profit attributable to equity holders 3,152,883 3,003,216 2,523,538 966,182 1,605,648
B K Assets and liabilities
R A Total assets 404,958,352 266,938,453 215,799,760 194,716,493 192,506,983
=Rig Total liabilities 375,876,880 246,789,622 197,532,166 180,626,331 177,330,103
JBe SR HE A JBe AR Capital and reserve attributable
B dii Al to equity holders 29,081,472 20,148,831 18,267,594 14,090,162 15,176,880
#FH BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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The Board of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report was:

Mr. Chen Aiping (Chairman, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zong Jianxin

Mr. Fung Siu Ming

Mr. Wu Hongbo*

Mr. Zhu Wenxin*

Mr. Shi Zeyou*

Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S.,].P. **

Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec **

Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George **

* Non-executive Director
o Independent Non-executive Director

On 24 August 2011, Mr. Fung Siu Ming was appointed as Executive Director. Mr.
Wong Yuen Fai resigned as Executive Director of the Bank effective 1 September
2011.

Dr. Jiang Jinqing, Ms. Wang Lili and Mr. Hu Hao had resigned respectively as
Chairman, Vice Chairlady and Non-executive Director of the Bank with effect
from 31 October 2011 and ceased to act as member of the Board committee(s)
of the Bank due to other business engagement. Immediately following such
resignation, Messrs Wu Hongbo, Zhu Wenxin and Shi Zeyou had been
appointed as Non-executive Directors of the Bank with effect from 31 October
2011. During the year, Mr. Chen Aiping has assumed the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 31 October 2011.

% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011

41



42

o TR $RAT (35 ) 45 B A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

USIE I SE L TR AR N AT S AR SRAT AT S RORE
A ORSUAR ST 2R B e B A e A T AF R 2R AT 3 AR 4R AT O
BATHE S > PR AS SRAT 2 ALK R A I SR 9100k Y
BUE - B OB AR & E IR o BETSEA - £ Tl
BT T ot 41 S AR R AR IR A BRAT 2 AL A P R A ) 25 92(1)
Le92(2) e W9 HL5E - TR IR J FBE SO 4R R B bl (E R < B
A HRAT T A A A S R R AT

ASRAT 2 I AT T T S g 57 AT T Y R AL I M
T > M ZEAR SR AR SR AT 22 AL 2 T 400 B JBE SR 47 K
b R R R EAT: -

R

ARGRAT ~ HPEC A A 25 B R 2 R B (] AR B R 2 WD
A PR AR I [ BE 206 5T S A AT 22 B > Bl AR SR AT S 2 R R
R A SR AT AT AT FEA R A R B B R T A

AGRAT BOHAE 28 7]~ B 2 0 S0 A% R B 2 0 3 i 2
BELRT S SELAR A T S5 A K R AR T 7 A 4 B2 5 5 IR BOR
A T2 AT AT IR (] g 2R 40 LA SR AT T 35 L B B IH] B A TR
Mk 2 ERAH

HHEH

A TR 37 A6 5T 37 BCRT A AT 9 A SR AT 4 R R R A3 S
B BATE A

BRI

ARATE MR K2 R WS R
AERR (%R R - FF—4E LA - +—H#H
A b 55 1T 3 T M 19 s 368 3R ) B2 A UK T 1 i i 2 A
HE o ARGRAT IR W Z FENE N B —— AR
44756 B 2 B FEE IR WA N o

AP RAT 3 (D ER) AL

ARITHEM GO ZEELF—H — AR GRAT:

(Begg) BLHD - I CERATE (B sR) BRI © B 5 % )= i
B 2 CEUEBUR T A B B R iR 2 BE5R - (BR
1128 (PeER) L) B2 A Mo 3 1 50 T AR o 1 e g 3% -
BB IR UL B A 78 AR 24 BRSO IR AR oK o i =%
—— T A BRI MBI R O R R A ()
73 (BEER) AR o 7 78 1 10 0 8 B

"% — — 4 4E ¥ Annual Report 2011

Mr. Fung Siu Ming, being appointed as an Executive Director of the Bank, Mr.
Wu Hongbo, Mr. Zhu Wenxin and Mr. Shi Zeyou, being appointed as Non-
executive Directors of the Bank during the year will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Bank in accordance with Article 91 of the Bank’s
Articles of Association. Mr. Chen Aiping, Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard
and Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting in accordance with Articles 92(1) and 92(2) of the Bank’s
Articles of Association. All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Bank are not appointed for specific term but subject to the retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Bank’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding company, or its
subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Bank or any of its holding company, subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Bank had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or existed
during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices and also follows the module set out in the Supervisory Policy
Manual entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized
Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) on 21
September 2001. Details of the Bank’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 44 to 56 of its 2011 Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING (DISCLOSURE)
RULES

The Bank is required to comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules effective
1 January 2007, which have superseded the supervisory policy manual on
financial disclosure issued by the HKMA. The Banking (Disclosure) Rules set
out the minimum standards for public disclosure which locally incorporated
authorised institutions must disclose in respect of the income statement, state
of affairs and capital adequacy. The financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2011 have been fully complied with the applicable disclosure
provisions as set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event after the reporting period of the Group are set out
in Note 44.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the
Bank will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Chen Aiping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2012
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Bank is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2011, the Bank has followed the guidelines set out in the Supervisory
Policy Manual entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorized Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) on 21 September 2001.

In order to show its continuous commitment in the development
of corporate governance, the Bank has adopted its “Corporate
Governance Manual” since 24 March 2009 to further enforce the
commitment by the Bank on promoting corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF THE

HEBRZRE

Audit Committee

BANK

A

Board of Directors

BREHRG SEBREHA RHUZHE HMEHA RGBSR
Audit Committee Corporate Governance Nomination Remuneration Risk Management
. . . Committee of Board of
Committee Committee Committee .
Directors
A : A A WA : WH :
Members: Members: Members: Members: Members:
ETWEAR > spso worat METIRE (FF) TR Sk () RS () BRI (E )
(EJ) Mr. Chen Aiping Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec’ Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, Mr. Wu Hongbo
Professor Wong Yue Chim, (Chairman) (Chairman) George® (Chairman)
Richard, sB5,J.p* W5 JE B e A+ Hh Yk e (Chairman) e e ol e
(Chairman) Mr. Fung Siu Ming * Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, FF AR > sps.» kot (BEERE)
RAEWSGE (BT L) REWIEA George® Professor Wong Yue Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*
Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George” Mr. Wu Hongbo YR s Chim, Richard, (Alternate Chairman)

(Alternate Chairman) FFWiHAZ > sBs. - KFHE Mr. Wa Hongbo S.B.S.,JP.* K5 e
[F3 % Ty Professor Wong Yue Chim, R e e e Mr. Zhu Wenxin
Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec* Richard, s.B..,J.p." Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec” REeW g
SRS R EE B e Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George®

Mr. Shi Zeyou
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Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George*

Mr. Wu Hongbo

Independent Non-executive Director

* Chief Risk Officer

56 W S A
Mr. Fung Siu Ming*
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board of Directors of the Bank (the “Board”) has collective
responsibility for leadership and control of the Bank and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Bank
by directing and supervising the Bank’s affairs. The Board sets
strategies for the Bank and monitors the performance and activities
of the senior management.

As at the date of this report, the Board consisted of nine Directors
comprising three Executive Directors, three Non-executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Bank benefits from the substantial business, banking and
professional experience of its Directors. Biography of the Directors
is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section under the Bank’s 2011 Annual Report.

The functions and responsibilities of Directors (including those
of Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors) of the Bank have been clearly set out in the Terms of
Reference of the Board.

The Supervisory Policy Manual entitled “Corporate Governance of
Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions” issued by the HKMA
provides that the roles of the chairman and the chief executive of a bank
are distinct. In cases where the chairman is also the chief executive,
there should be a strong independent element on the Board.

Mr. Chen Aiping is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Bank. After delisted, the Bank is wholly owned by ICBC and
there is no issue of minority interest. There is a strong independent
element in the composition of the Board with one third of the
Directors being Independent Non-Executive Directors who are
experience and high caliber individuals. The Board believes that the
appointment of Mr. Chen as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
will not affect the internal management of the Bank.
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Having comprehensive management experience, Mr. Chen provides
insight strategic direction to the Bank. The Board believes that
the current structure with strong leadership enable implementing
policy decisions efficiently that will benefit the Bank in future
development and expansion. However, to further enhance the
independence element of the Board, the Board will consider
appointing additional Independent Non-executive Director in near
future.

The Board, through regular Board meetings and circulation of
regular financial reports and other materials (such as minutes
of the meetings of the Board, Board Committees and Specialised
Committees, where appropriate), are being informed of the business
operation and financial situation of the Bank. Business performance
and financial situation are also reported at each Board meeting
to assist the Board to have a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Bank’s performance, position and prospects.

The Bank has put in force an appropriate insurance cover for its
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities against risk exposure arising from
operating businesses of the Group.

Board Process

Board meetings are held at least once every quarter, such regular
Board meetings will normally involve the active participation, either
in person or through other electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors entitled to be present. Special Board meetings
will be held when necessary.

Directors are consulted on matters to be included in the agenda
of regular Board meetings. Director(s) may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist him/
her in discharging his/her duties to the Bank. Besides, all Directors
have given rights on fully and timely access to all relevant
information of the Bank and have separate and independent
access to the management of the Bank so that they can make an
informed decision in discharging their duties and responsibilities
as Directors. All Directors have access to advice and services of
the Company Secretary to ensure due compliance of the Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations.
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Notice of meeting shall be given to all Directors by the Company
Secretary at least two weeks before the date of the meeting to
provide sufficient notice to give all Directors an opportunity to
attend. Under special circumstances, the Company Secretary
will promptly contact all Directors by way of telephone. Agenda
and accompanying papers containing analysis and background
information are circulated to all Directors not less than 3 business
days before the intended date of Board meeting.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board and the Board Committees
have been recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and the Board Committees, decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed.
Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Board and the Board
Committees are sent to all Directors or members of the Board
Committees (as the case may be) for their comments and records
respectively.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Corporate Governance Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors of the
Bank are kept by the Company Secretary. Minutes of the meetings
of the Remuneration Committee and other specialised committees
are kept by the appointed secretary of each committee. Minutes of
the meetings of the Board and all the Board Committees are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter (including
material transaction with connected persons) which the Board has
determined to be material, the relevant matter will be dealt with ata
Board meeting in accordance with the requirements as set out in the
Companies Ordinance and the Articles of Association of the Bank.
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Appointments and Re-election of the Board

The Bank uses a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new Directors. The appointment of new
Directors will be discussed by the Nomination Committee before
recommending to the Board for consideration and approval after
due deliberation. In accordance with the requirement under the
Banking Ordinance, approval from HKMA will also be obtained for
any appointment of new Directors. All new Directors are subject to
election by shareholder(s) of the Bank at the next scheduled annual
general meeting after their appointments have become effective,
and shall then be entitled for re-election. The non-executive
Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Bank
are not appointed for specific term but subject to the retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings in
accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation. All the retiring Directors are eligible for re-
election. At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Bank,
Mr. Chen Aiping, Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard and Mr.
Yuen Kam Ho, George will offer themselves for retirement and
being eligible, will be entitled for re-election.

Mr. Fung Siu Ming who was appointed as Executive Director of
the Bank on 24 August 2011, Mr. Wu Hongbo, Mr. Zhu Wenxin
and Mr. Shi Zeyou were appointed as Non-executive Directors on
31 October 2011, will retire at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Bank and will offer themselves for re-election.

Save for the above-mentioned retiring Directors, who will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Bank, as at the date of this report, no Director held
office for over three years.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up five committees, namely Audit Committee,
Corporate Governance Committee, Risk Management Committee
of Board of Directors, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee.

Each of these Board Committees has specific written Terms of
Reference which state clearly with its functions and responsibilities.
All Board Committees are comprised mainly of Non-executive
Directors. All Board Committees report to the Board on their
decisions or recommendations on a regular basis. Material matters
are reserved for the approval of the Board according to the terms of
reference of such committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities
for ensuring an effective system of internal control and compliance,
and in meeting its external financial reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year 2011 and
all the meetings were with the participation of senior financial and
internal audit executives of the Bank and the external auditors of
the Bank. Major works performed by the Audit Committee were
summarised as follows:

o Met with external auditors to discuss the general scope of their
audit work;

o Reviewed external auditors’ management letter and management
response;

o Reviewed the external auditors’ 2011 audit plan;

o Reviewed the external auditors’ reports and findings and the
management response;

Reviewed the internal audit plan for the year of 2011;

Reviewed the internal audit reports covering the evaluation of
internal controls;

% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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« Reviewed the independent assessment report on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control system;

. Reviewed the audited financial statements for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010;

. Reviewed the Interim Report for the six months ended 30 June
2011; and

o Reviewed the work performed by Legal and Compliance
Department of the Bank for the year of 2011.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for making recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment, removal and remuneration of
the Bank’s external auditors. Ernst & Young is the external auditors
of the Bank. A statement by the external auditors with respect to their
financial reporting responsibilities is included in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 57 and 58 of the Bank’s 2011 Annual Report.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee meets regularly, normally
once a year. The Corporate Governance Committee aims to
strengthen the corporate governance framework of the Bank,
including but not limited to risk management, internal controls
enhancement. It also continuously reviews the appropriate Board
structure, enhances the effectiveness of the independence of
the Board, enhances the corporate transparency and quality of
information disclosure and keeps abreast of changes in regulations,
with the aim to maximise sustainable corporate values and
shareholder’s interests.

Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors

The Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors meets
regularly, normally on a quarterly basis. It reviews the Bank’s
position in various risks and endorses risk management principles,
basic policies, guidelines and risk appetite of the Bank. It monitors
and reviews the effectiveness of the risk management of the
Bank, including its ability to stand stress conditions. The risks it
oversees include credit, market, operational, interest rate, legal and
compliance, liquidity, strategic and reputation risks.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year and is
responsible for overseeing the remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Bank to ensure their remuneration is
appropriate for their duties and consistent with the Bank’s culture,
strategy and control environment. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for recommending to the Board on the Bank’s
remuneration policy framework.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings.
The major works performed by the Remuneration Committee
during 2011 included:

. considered and recommended to the Board the allocation
of performance bonus of the Group (including that of the
Executive Directors);

o  considered and recommended to the Board the performance
bonus of senior management for the year ended 31 December
2010;

. considered and recommended to the Board the Directors’
fee of the Non-executive Directors for the year ended 31
December 2010;

o considered and recommended to the Board the remuneration
policy on distribution of performance bonus of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2011; and

o recommended to the Board on the formulation of a
remuneration policy framework of the Bank pursuant to
the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by
HKMA.

Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for 2011
is set out in Note 17 to the financial statements of the Bank.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year and is
responsible for assessing the suitability of the candidates and
recommending to the Board all new appointments of Directors
and senior executives (including but not limited to chief executive
officer, alternate chief executives, deputy chief executives, chief
risk officer, chief financial officer and chief operation officer). The
Nomination Committee also reviews the structure and composition
of the Board on a regular basis.

During the year, Nomination Committee held three meetings,
including the consideration and recommendation to the Board
in respect of the nomination of Mr. Fung Siu Ming as Executive
Director and Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank and the
nomination of Mr. Wu Hongbo, Mr. Zhu Wenxin and Mr. Shi
Zeyou as Non-executive Directors and the appointment of Mr.
Leung Ming Hym, Peter and Mr. Tong Hee Keung, Samuel
as Deputy Chief Executives of the Bank. Apart from this, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the organisation chart of the
Bank.

DELEGATION OF THE BOARD
Management Functions

The Board assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Bank and delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the senior management. The Board sets
up clear guidelines as to the powers to the senior management, in
particular, with respect to reporting mechanism and the matters
that shall be subject to the approval of the Board (such as substantial
changes in the management structure, the business objectives,
strategies and business plans, the policies and manuals which may
substantially affect the financial and risk management of the Bank).
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Apart from the Board Committees, the Board has also established
the following five key Specialised Committees which comprise
Executive Directors and other senior executives of the Bank from
relevant areas:

1.  Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established to supervise
the overall operation of the Group. The Chairman of the
Executive Committee is the Chief Executive Officer and the
other committee members consist of the Alternative Chief
Executives, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Risk Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Operation Officer and the Assistant
Chief Executive designated by the Chief Executive Officer.
The Executive Committee meets regularly and at least once a
month.

2. Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee was
established to closely monitor the mix of liquid assets
and funding channels, and the exposure to movements in
interest rate and foreign exchange. The Asset and Liability
Management Committee also meets to review the optimal
liquidity level in response to internal requirements and
external market indicators. It shall comprise Chief Financial
Officer (Chairman), all Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Risk
Officer, Head of Personal Banking, Head of Global Markets &
Trading Department, Head of Risk Management Department
and Head of Asset and Liability Management Department.
The Asset and Liability Management Committee reports to the
Executive Committee on the asset and liabilities management
of the Bank and to the Senior Executive Risk Management
Committee on market, interest rate and liquidity risk matters
and management.

The Asset and Liability Management Committee meets on a
monthly basis.
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Credit Committee

The Credit Committee sets up credit related policies,
guidelines and procedures in order to maintain the quality of
the credit portfolio of the Bank. It reviews and approves large
credit exposures, manages credit risk concentration, approves
new credit strategies and responds to deteriorating credits.
The Credit Committee consists of Head of Credit Department
(Chairman), Chief Risk Officer and Deputy Chief Executives in
charge of business lines and designated specialist from each of
Personal Banking, Global Markets & Trading, Asset & Liability
Management and Legal & Compliance. The Credit Committee
reports to the Senior Executive Risk Management Committee
and Executive Committee and meets from time to time.

The Chief Risk Officer reports to the Risk Management
Committee of Board of Directors on credit related matters on a
quarterly basis.

Operational Risk Committee

The Operational Risk Committee was established to focus
on operational risk management. It reviews and reports to
the Senior Executive Risk Management Committee on the
adequacy of operational risk management policies, procedures
and systems for the Bank. It also evaluates the effectiveness of
existing policies, and the need for other risk control tools as
to mitigating operational risks; makes recommendations or
decides on amended/increased/decreased operational control
policies, procedures and measures of the Bank. It comprises
Chief Risk Officer (Chairman), Chief Operation Officer,
Head (or Deputy Head) of Human Resources Department,
Head (or Deputy Head) of Internal Audit Department, Head
of Risk Management Department, Operational Risk Head
and representative from Retail Banking Department. The
Operational Risk Committee reports to the Senior Executive
Risk Management Committee and meets on a quarterly basis.
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5. Senior Executive Risk Management Committee

The Senior Executive Risk Management Committee was
established to review and report on the adequacy and efficiency
of risk management procedures, policies and systems of the
Group. It focuses on credit risk, interest rate risk, market
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk and legal
risk. The Senior Executive Risk Management Committee
comprises Chief Risk Officer (Chairman), Chief Executive
Officer, Deputy Chief Executives in charge of Global Markets
& Trading, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operation Officer,
Head of Global Markets & Trading Department, Head of Risk
Management Department, Head of Credit Department, Head
of Market Risk Section, Head of Systems & IT Department
and Head of Legal and Compliance Department. The Senior
Executive Risk Management Committee reports to the
Executive Committee and Risk Management Committee of
Board of Directors and meets on a quarterly basis.

Each of these key Specialised Committees has specific written
terms of reference which state clearly its authorities and duties.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the internal controls at the Bank
and its subsidiaries and for reviewing its effectiveness through
well-established organisational structure and comprehensive
procedures, policies and standards.

Systems, policies and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
control and monitor the major types of risks the Bank faces.
Business units are responsible for the assessment of individual
types of risk arising under their areas of responsibility, and the
management of the risks are in accordance with risk management
procedures and reporting on risk management.
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The senior management, Senior Executive Risk Management
Committee and Risk Management Department review and revise
the risk management policies and procedures on a regular basis.
Details of the policies and procedures for management of each of
the major types of risks the Bank faces, including credit, market,
liquidity, interest rate, operational, legal and compliance and
reputation risks, are included in Note 4 to the financial statements
of the Bank.

The Internal Audit Department plays an important role in the
Bank’s internal controls framework. It performs regular checks to
ensure due compliance with policies and procedures. It monitors
the effectiveness of internal control procedures and compliance
with policies and standards across all departments of the Bank. It
also evaluates the Bank’s internal controls on an on-going basis
and reports to the Audit Committee at least four times each year on
significant findings on internal controls. The Head of Internal Audit
Department of the Bank reports to the Audit Committee and the
Chief Executive Officer.

The Internal Audit Department has carried out an annual review on
the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal controls system during the
year. Such review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. It also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Bank’s accounting and financial
reporting function and their training programmes and budget.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Bank and has prepared the financial
statements of the Bank on a going concern basis. As at 31 December
2011, the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
upon the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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BYFA®RES
Independent Auditors’ Report

Ernst & Young ZKETHEIERKFT
22/F, CITIC Tower, BEBPIRAEE R
1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central RiERE2E

Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF
CHINA (ASIA) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 221, which comprise the
consolidated and bank statements of financial position as at 31 December
2011, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2012
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e Wax

Consolidated Income Statement
WEF A= B

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
it 31 T T T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
FlLE WA Interest income (6) 8,581,939 5,504,458
B 37 Interest expense (6) (3,675,238) (1,917,115)
A BB Net interest income (6) 4,906,701 3,587,343
e 2 e A 4 e A Fee and commission income (7) 1,193,004 852,164
Wi # A 4 52 Fee and commission expense (7) (226,537) (147,245)
W B B A 4 e A ¥ 7 Net fee and commission income (7) 966,467 704,919
TG A Net trading income (8) 362,620 369,299
B DLA PR A0 25 R AR Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities
EEMAMBEZE R A designated at fair value through profit or loss 9) (34,878) 27,338
KEHEBBTEZ BB IRA Dividend income from financial investments (10) 8,311 4,590
HoAb g ZE U A Other operating income (11) 19,300 20,690
E LGN Operating income 6,228,521 4,714,179
e Sa Operating expenses (12) (1,644,285) (1,472,482)
RABRWAA K2 B R &M Operating profit before impairment losses 4,584,236 3,241,697
B 2 1 18 S 8 Charge for impairment losses on loans and advances (14) (653,422) (261,770)
R 2SR EMEEKLF#  Write-back of impairment losses on held-to-maturity
financial investments (28) - 234
AL B < L 3 O A (L B 2 ] 4 Write-back of impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial investments 139,067 -
1 BR WRAF B R 2 48 SR i Operating profit after impairment losses 4,069,881 2,980,161
ERAECe -/ ENauil Revaluation gain on investment properties (31) 10,465 7,552
1 [ 4 2 T A 2 A Net (loss)/gain from disposal/reversal of revaluation
KR Z F (E4H) i A deficits of property, plant and equipment (15) (437) 2,039
B A i Gain on disposal of loans and advances 351 30,543
B E SR E Net (loss)/gain on disposal of available-for-sale
9 (E4R) % A financial investments (99,437) 615,908
BRERN Operating profit 3,980,823 3,636,203
A B 7 ) i Share of profit of an associate 20,681 17,810
I BE i ik ) Profit before tax 4,001,504 3,654,013
T A5 B4 B 2 Income tax expense (16) (848,621) (650,797)
AR A B JBe SR HE A e # Profit for the year and attributable to
equity holders 3,152,883 3,003,216
A5 I 28R — 3 AR 8 Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (19) HK$2.13 HK$2.25

IR EL A BB IR A IS 2 A A B R R B R 18 B 5 o

the financial statements.

Details of the dividend paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in Note 18 to

& —— 444 Annual Report 2011
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HEETHERAE R

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
WEF A= B

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
T T
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
4 N i ) Profit for the year 3,152,883 3,003,216
SRATY) 2 AN B8R Revaluation surplus on bank premises 65,706 40,802
T 19 B R 2 Income tax effect (12,668) (3,135)
53,038 37,667
BamEhzHmh THZ Change of fair value of hedging instruments under
N OF-18 5 B cash flow hedges 494,705 (231,318)
JiT 15 Bl 2 2 Income tax effect (81,626) 38,167
413,079 (193,151)
80 S R E 2 A AE Change in fair value reserve of available-for-sale
s fhi 5 financial investments (1,104,912) (475,825)
T 5 Bl 2 2 Income tax effect 181,144 72,893
(923,768) (402,932)
L SCRPIN Y A e s Exchange differences arising from translation of results of
[ifE 58, 7 %A a foreign subsidiary 137,468 73,519
AF TN R B AR A A T i 25 Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (320,183) (484,897)
A TR BB AR 4 T W A AR AR Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,832,700 2,518,319
ARAT e TROREAT 2 4 T K 2 A AR Attributable to equity holders of the Bank 2,832,700 2,518,319
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mEMBMRRE
T A == 2 Vi) /
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
gk R
+ZH=Z+—-H +tZA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
it 31 T T IT
Notes HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
% Assets
B 4 T 7E 4R 47 [ 3 B A Cash and balances with banks and
B R 2 ST other financial institutions (21) 112,115,295 33,921,821
TESRAT B HoAth 45 il 4 4 2 Placements with and advances to banks and
AR B B other financial institutions (22) 9,860,804 3,900,683
FrERR ) ik & Bl & 7 Financial assets held for trading (23) 242,388 205,666
6 78 DA P AE (A Al 4 R Financial assets designated at fair value
R4 Tl through profit or loss (24) 709,231 951,345
fir A 4 TR Derivative financial instruments (25) 2,076,533 1,884,841
I~ GRAT Lo Ho A 4 b b R Loans and advances to customers, banks and
Z B other financial institutions (26) 237,488,676 185,058,428
B E Financial investments: 37,437,648 36,808,071
— L & - Available-for-sale (27) 36,273,409 35,644,015
—fr A EE M - Held-to-maturity (28) 1,164,239 1,164,056
RS AR Z & Investment in an associate (29) 213,667 192,987
T R oA 4 T Goodwill and other intangible assets (30) 1,017,478 1,016,647
[ed-C7/ES Investment properties (31) 75,816 53,765
L EN &G Property, plant and equipment (32) 593,494 501,851
R JiE ol TE Deferred income tax assets (37) 3,954 -
Fopth & Other assets (33) 3,123,368 2,442,348
b3k Total assets 404,958,352 266,938,453
=K Liabilities
SRAT 7] 2 K A <55 il A A 2 A7 K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 54,370,925 27,878,692
fiE4&m TH Derivative financial instruments (25) 2,174,582 2,429,252
DL 68 A AR 2 % P AT 3K Deposits from customers at amortised cost (35) 262,622,063 193,543,551
T AT A7 ke Certificates of deposit issued 36,183,629 10,637,832
— 95 5 LA -1 1 A4S i 4 R AR - Designated at fair value through profit or loss (36) 77,818 884,795
— A 8 LA - Atamortised cost 36,105,811 9,753,037
C ¥ AT Debt securities in issue 5,573,444 217,393
— 38 7 LA 118 (B AS i 4 R AR - Designated at fair value through profit or loss (36) - 108,799
— DA B LA - Atamortised cost 5,573,444 108,594
BATRLIH A6 Current income tax liabilities 398,457 249,108
R S Fol TEL 4 5 Deferred income tax liabilities (37) 13,456 114,831
DU B AR B 22 15 B IR Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost (38) 11,356,698 9,519,448
HoAh A 15 Other liabilities (39) 3,183,626 2,199,515
£1 4 A7 Total liabilities 375,876,880 246,789,622
JBe B 2% Equity
il &N Share capital (40) 3,462,830 2,704,123
R B 3 A1) Retained earnings 9,692,599 6,823,447
HoAth 7% Other reserves 15,926,043 10,621,261
JBe S A 2 A 7 Total equity 29,081,472 20,148,831
JBe S B 25 B £ 4% A Total equity and liabilities 404,958,352 266,938,453
Bl % % SR EEB 15 Jk Wi 2= 5E i Chen Aiping Zong Jianxin Fung Siu Ming Lee Ting Sau, Byron
EX #HH #HH PAGIE /= Chairman, Director, Director, Company Secretary
HHEHA 1T B 7 B AFT B 7 B Managing Deputy Chief Deputy Chief
BT PRITAT LA % FRF1T I % Director and Executive and Executive and

Chief Executive
Officer

Executive

Alternate Chief

Alternate Chief
Executive
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7 N

Statement of Financial Position

gk %
+ZA=Z+—-H +ZA=1+—H
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
B 54 T#IL THsTT
Notes HK$’000 HKS$’000
i Assets
B4 I AE $R 47 7] 2 B I Ay Cash and balances with banks and
& BN 2 &5 A7 other financial institutions (21) 100,337,007 30,065,948
TESRAT B HoAth 4 il AR 4 2 Placements with and advances to banks and
TR B B other financial institutions (22) 7,387,174 6,525,248
H1ExX G G mEE Financial assets held for trading (23) 76,796 68,541
6 78 DA 1 (A RS i 4 % Financial assets designated at fair value through
NS - profit or loss (24) 709,231 951,345
e THE Derivative financial instruments (25) 2,076,533 1,884,841
T~ GRAT S HoAh 4 i R Loans and advances to customers, banks and
B other financial institutions (26) 212,245,900 165,768,874
SR E Financial investments: 36,583,930 36,807,758
— L6 - Available-for-sale (27) 35,419,691 35,643,702
—Fr A R E — Held-to-maturity (28) 1,164,239 1,164,056
REE A E Z G Investment in an associate (29) 138,138 138,138
NG § < Investments in subsidiaries (34) 3,968,107 2,116,941
P e o Ath JiE TR Goodwill and other intangible assets (30) 949,908 949,957
frd-g/E S Investment properties (31) 43,400 28,000
LEN &G 4] Property, plant and equipment (32) 458,465 407,727
I S B JE Deferred income tax assets (37) 3,954 -
oAt & e Other assets (33) 3,152,915 2,758,868
A Total assets 368,131,458 248,472,186
£ Liabilities
SRAT IR) 2 Ko HoAth 4 Rl A% R 2 A7 3K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 50,484,173 24,777,183
fiiE 4 TR Derivative financial instruments (25) 2,174,582 2,429,252
DL G A AR 2 P A7 3K Deposits from customers at amortised cost (35) 232,460,032 179,478,215
BT AR Certificates of deposit issued 36,183,629 10,637,832
— 95 5E LA -1 1 A4S i 4 R AR - Designated at fair value through profit or loss (36) 77,818 884,795
— DA 8 A - Atamortised cost 36,105,811 9,753,037
T % Debt securities in issue 5,573,444 217,393
—F8 5 A2 -1 A A8 i 4 R AR - Designated at fair value through profit or loss (36) - 108,799
— DA A - Atamortised cost 5,573,444 108,594
BUAT B A Current income tax liabilities 320,335 231,990
A JE B JE A Deferred income tax liabilities (37) - 106,746
DA B AR AR 2 1% fE R I Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost (38) 11,356,698 9,519,448
HoAth & 5 Other liabilities (39) 2,656,023 2,241,722
1118 4% Total liabilities 341,208,916 229,639,781
I S HE 2% Equity
Jii&N Share capital (40) 3,462,830 2,704,123
R B 3 A1) Retained earnings (41) 8,526,078 6,069,186
A Aot Other reserves (41) 14,933,634 10,059,096
JBe SHEAE i 48 Total equity 26,922,542 18,832,405
JBe S BE 2 B £1 £ A 0 Total equity and liabilities 368,131,458 248,472,186
Bl % 7 s 5 JE W By Chen Aiping Zong Jianxin Fung Siu Ming Lee Ting Sau, Byron
EX HH HH PAGTE /=3 Chairman, Director, Director, Company Secretary
HH R 1T 3 B 1T 3 B Managing Deputy Chief Deputy Chief
BT FRITAT B % BRI 1T A % Director and Executive and Executive and
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rERRERESH R

N

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

WE_F——F+_H=1t—HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

LLIRTE S
4l &% HAHR
e Bank M ERREH
B&  Ordinary  premises Investment  Cashflow — BEXGM  —MGH  RERA
Share share  revaluation revaluation hedge  Exchange General  Retained it
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Wik Tx  Tix T TEx  T#Ex TEx  TEx  Tikx Tibx
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HKS§'000 HK$' 000 HK$000 HKS§'000 HK$'000
REZF——F—=J—H  At1]Janvary 2011 2,704,123 9,187,768 239,881 658,045 (193,151) 215,548 513,170 6,823,447 20,148,831
R Profit for the year - - - - - - - 3152883 3,152,883
AAEEEMATIRE © Other comprehensive income for the year:
ks SRREL Change in fair value of
ATEERS available-for-sale financial investments - - - (1,100,151) - - - - (1,100,151)
HEMESESRRE  Reserve realised on disposal of
ZEEBE available-for-sale financial investments - - - (4,761) - - - - (4,761)
BB Z AFEE  Change in fair value of cash flow hedge
2 - - - - 494705 - - - 494705
RITWEEMHRR Revaluation surplus on bank premises - - 65,706 - - - - - 65,706
BERERY Change in deferred tax (37) - - (12668) 181144 (81,626) - - - 86,850
EiER Exchange differences - - - - - 137,468 - - 137,468
BEBMRREANE Partial transfer of retained earnings
— i fkf to general reserve - - - - - - 283,731 (283,731) -
AEFRENGESSE  Total comprehensive income for the year - - 53038 (923,768) 413,079 137468 283,731 2,869,152 2,832,700
Rl Issue of shares (40) 758,707 5,341,294 - - - - - - 6100001
A7 s Share issue expenses (40) - (60) - - - - - - (60)
S At31 December 2011
TZRA=Z+-H 3,462,830 14,529,002 292,919 (265,723) 219,928 353,016 796,901 9,692,599 29,081,472

& —— 444 Annual Report 2011

63



o TR $R 4T (35 ) 45 B A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WE_F-FE+ A=+ —HILFEZ
For the year ended 31 December 2010

LLIRTE S
4l &% HAHR
e Bank  WAERE BB
B&  Ordinary  premises Investment  Cashflow — BEXGM  —MGH  RERA

Share share  revaluation revaluation hedge  Exchange General  Retained it
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
lip3 Tix  Tix  Tiéx Tk Fi#x  TEx TEx  TEx Tix
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS§'000 HK$' 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

RZF-FE—H—H  Atl]January2010 2636681 8,640,575 56,198 1,060,977 - 142,029 386222 5181915 18,104597
RE kGl Adopting HKAS 17:

7k :

T Land = - 206,811 - = - - (9690) 197,121
EALRE Deferred tax = = (34,124) = = = = = (34,124)

RanEs el Effect of adopting HKAS 17

LB E - - 172,687 - = = - (9,690) 162,997
RZF—FE—A—H  Atl]January2010 2636681 8,640,575 28885 1,060977 - 142,029 386200 5,172,225 18,267,5%

B A Profit for the year - - - - - - - 3003216 3003216
REEIMAHRE :  Other comprehensive income for the year:
EHHESRBEZ  Changein fair value of

ATEEZS available-for-sale financial investments - - - 95,504 - - - - 95,504
HERLNESMEE  Reserve realised on disposal of

ZEER R available-for-sale financial investments - - - (571,329) - - - - (571,329)
BRI ZAFHEE  Changein fair value of cash flow hedge

28 - - - - (231319) - - - (231319)
RITMERGRS Revaluation surplus on bank premises - = 40,802 = - - - = 40,802
IR S Change in deferred tax (37) = - (3,135) 72,893 38,167 - - = 107,925
HERTIE Disposal of bank premises - - (26,671) - - - - 26,671 -
[ 5% 5 Exchange differences - - - - - 73,519 - - 73,519
HETMRERNE Partial transfer of retained earnings

— el to general reserve - - - - - - 126,948 (126,948) -
AEEAENGESH  Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1099 (40293)  (193,151) 73,519 126948 2902939 2518319
ST Issue of shares (40) 7442 547003 - - - - - - 614665
Tl 817 Share issue expenses (40) - (30) = = = = = - (30)
EFZZENEAMBE 2009 final dividend paid = = = = = = - (751454)  (751454)
EZZ—ZHE 4 HIBE 2010 interim dividend paid (18) = = = = = = - (500263)  (500263)
A -FAE At31 December 2010

TZA=Z+—H 2,704,123 9,187,768 239,881 658,045 (193,151) 215,548 513,170 6,823,447 20,148,831

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011



o TR 64T (35 ) 45 B A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

HEHERERXR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE F——F+_H=+—HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
it 51 T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BEEHZHER = Cash flows from operating activities:
FR B i i A Profit before tax 4,001,504 3,654,013
FrA 2 50 0 4 R BE Write-back of impairment losses on held-to-maturity
8K [n] 3% financial investments (28) - (234)
TS X Charge for impairment losses on loans and advances (14) 653,422 261,770
AL B 4 4 A U (B HE 2R Write-back of impairment losses on
EEH3 available-for-sale financial investments (139,067) -
ST Y Amortisation of intangible assets (12) 8,550 9,785
e Depreciation (12) 57,144 51,782
DL B A A 2 45 FE AR T Interest paid on subordinated debts measured at
FE S amortised cost 274,889 99,063
DL B BUA A MR 2 v R M Interest paid on senior notes measured at
F S amortised cost 29,183 -
Wi BT B i1 B R Recoveries of loans and advances written off (14) 15,125 7,222
9 [ ) 2 T R 2 Net loss/(gain) from disposal/reversal of revaluation
A 5 1R 2 W R IR Gl D) deficits of property, plant and equipment (15) 437 (2,039)
CERLEVS<E/E S il Revaluation gain on investment properties (31) (10,465) (7,552)
ML E SRR e Net loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale
i (6 ) financial investments 99,437 (615,908)
A B A Gain on disposal of loans and advances (351) (30,543)
JRE A B 7 ) s Share of profit of an associate (20,681) (17,810)
R A & TR 38 5 i Dividend income received from listed financial assets
B2 R IR A held for trading (10) (2,657) (720)
A& E T R A Rl Dividend income received from listed
Z BB A available-for-sale financial investments (10) (2,206) -
A E I b A L G AR Dividend income received from unlisted
Z BB A available-for-sale financial investments (10) (3,448) (3,870)
4,960,816 3,404,959
mEEEE () W (Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
A=A DL E 2 EH Treasury bills maturing beyond three months (183) (17,642)

HEI=AR A U B2 R AT R
LAt < A 2 A R % SRR

Placements with and advances to banks and
other financial institutions

maturing beyond three months (8,295,912) (872,639)

SR R g <y Held-to-maturity financial investments - 145,329
FREsE 5 & & il G Financial assets held for trading (36,722) (25,420)
16 DA P Al 2 % Financial assets designated at fair value through

A R4 il profit or loss 242,114 210,804
AL 4 5 4 R Available-for-sale financial investments (1,694,676) (3,142,266)
B~ SRAT By HoAth 4 Rl A A Loans and advances to customers, banks and other

B N Hh financial institutions and other assets (53,771,113) (39,526,985)
i &M TE Derivative financial instruments 303,013 (982,043)
sEAMRM (WD) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
L =AR A U2 8147 B HoAtb Deposits from banks and other financial institutions

G Bl B 2 A7 K B A maturing beyond three months 26,492,233 7,701,992
HE AN Deposits from customers 69,078,512 32,381,990
BB AT A7 A Certificates of deposit issued 25,545,797 8,243,286
C BT ESE Debt securities issued (207,946) 57,867
HoAth £ i Other liabilities 984,111 129,039
A M T A Derivative financial instruments (254,670) 1,176,610
BHBEXEZHENE Cash flows from operations 63,345,374 8,884,881
EL AL s R 45 B VT A Hong Kong profits tax paid (552,550) (1,748,821)
(TR ¢ AR R /i) Overseas tax paid (158,349) (56,361)
TR 8 05 B 2 B TR A Net cash flows from operating activities 62,634,475 7,079,699
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BE-F—— T A=t HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
it 51 T T T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BREEHZHER = Cash flows from investing activities:
W I Purchase of intangible assets (9,231) (5,428)
I L S A Purchase of property, plant and equipment (32) (92,873) (23,993)
LB ) S B SR AR T A A Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 46 29,054
H B B 2 ) T A5 2k IR Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries (34.2) - 10,000
REEHIERER S Fﬁ P Dividend income received from listed financial
S TE 2 B A assets held for trading (10) 2,657 720
LS ﬁ I‘ ﬁﬂﬁ1 B S E Dividend income received from listed
B Bl A available-for-sale financial investments (10) 2,206 -
e ﬁ I b T AL B B R Dividend income received from unlisted
2 BB A available-for-sale financial investments (10) 3,448 3,870
() /R AR ESE# 2 Bl 4 Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities
Ui B AR (93,747) 14,223
il ﬁ{ﬁ BB EWE Cash flows from financing activities:
G811 % YN P4 Issuance of a subordinated debt measured at
fﬁ R amortised cost 1,839,238 3,855,348
I [ DA AR 6 A AR 2 Redemption of a subordinated debt measured
HAEEE at amortised cost - (2,915,063)
BEAT AR B RUAS AR 2 (85 Issuance of debt securities measured at
amortised cost 7,408,684 -
DL 85 1A AR 22 1 A f o 31 Mature of senior notes measured at amortised cost (1,844,687)
BEAT Iy S Share issue expenses (40),(41) (60) (30)
AT e A Issuance of share capital 6,100,001 =
A ﬁﬁﬁ BAS A M 2 % (B A5 TE Interest paid on subordinated debts measured
Bt at amortised cost (274,889) (99,063)
LA %ﬁ lfﬁ PR AR 2 A 2 Interest paid on senior notes measured at
I 57 amortised cost (29,183) -
A e 2 BB Dividends paid on ordinary shares (40),(41) - (637,053)
5B RlE TS B 2 3 4 A Net cash flows from financing activities 13,199,104 204,139
VE LB B Effects of foreign exchange differences 117,851 77,936
B T S TR B4 TH 2 B4 AR Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 75,857,683 7,375,997
HR—A—Hz8ekERBSER Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 36,084,706 28,708,709
T ZH=+—H2Z2B4& Rk Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
&[] B < H H 111,942,389 36,084,706

M aBERERN T - e kB eSS R EF RT3

JEBIH 2 = AR SR 2 B R

months or less:

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprises the following balances with original maturity of three

AL M
Group
2011 2010
T T T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bl 4 J A SR AT B Ath 4 Rl B A 2 Cash and balances with banks and other financial
HAE (B 5E21) institutions (Note 21) 44,528,141 12,950,102
TESRAT I FoAth 4 Rl #1527 3K Placements with banks and other financial
institutions 67,414,248 23,134,604
111,942,389 36,084,706

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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Bt 15 R = MY &

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.1

1.2

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial
and other financial related services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are shown in Note 34 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Bank is a licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 33/F, ICBC
Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain buildings modified by
the revaluation, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
and financial liabilities held for trading, financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

)

Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements. Except for
in certain cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting policies
and additional disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised
HKEFRSs has had no significant effect on these financial statements.

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in May 2010

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are
as follows:

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions of related
parties. The new definitions emphasise a symmetrical view of related
party relationships and clarify the circumstances in which persons
and key management personnel affect related party relationships of
an entity. The revised standard also introduces an exemption from
the general related party disclosure requirements for transactions
with a government and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the same government as the reporting
entity. The accounting policy for related parties has been revised
to reflect the changes in the definitions of related parties under the
revised standard. The adoption of the amendment did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
The Group reevaluates the disclosures, both qualitatively and
quantitatively, for transactions entered into between government
related entities that are individually significant or collectively
significant but individually not. The level of detail of disclosures
is determined by considering the closeness of related parties and
assessing the level of significance of these transactions based on
whether these transactions are 1) significance in terms of size, 2)
carried out on non-market terms, 3) outside normal day-to-day
operations, 4) disclosed to regulatory authorities, 5) reported to
senior management, and 6) subject to shareholders” approval. Details
of the related party transactions, including the related comparative
information, are included in Note 42 to the financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 addresses the accounting by an entity when
the terms of a financial liability are re-negotiated and resulted in
the entity issuing equity instruments to a creditor of the entity to
extinguish all or part of the financial liability. As the Group has not
re-negotiated the terms of any financial liability which resulted in
the issue of equity instruments to settle such financial liability, the
interpretation has no financial impact on the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate transitional

provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some of the

amendments results in changes in accounting policies, none of

these amendments has had a significant financial impact on the

financial position or performance of the Group. Details of the key

amendments applicable to the Group are as follows:

(a)

(®)

()

(d)

HKFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that the amendments
to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that eliminate the
exemption for contingent consideration do not apply
to contingent consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede the application
of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008). In addition, the amendment
limits the scope of measurement choices for non-controlling
interests. Only the components of non-controlling interests
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured at either fair value or at the present
ownership instruments proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date at
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by
another HKFRS. The amendment also adds explicit guidance
to clarify the accounting treatment for non-replaced and
voluntarily replaced share-based payment awards.

HKFRS 7 Amendment is intended to simplify the disclosures
by reducing the volume of disclosures on collateral held and
improving disclosures by requiring qualitative information to
put the quantitative information in context.

HKAS 1 (Revised) clarifies that an analysis of each component
of other comprehensive income can be presented either in the
statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial
statements. The Group elects to present the analysis of each
component of other comprehensive income in the statement of
changes in equity.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 clarifies that fair value of award credits
should take account of expected forfeitures as well as the
discounts or incentives that would otherwise be offered to
customers who have not earned award credits from an initial
sale.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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2 EEGEBURME AR @) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 O A E I A A 2 A o A 5 A T
5

2.3 Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

A AR B S AR 7 AR B S R 3R R R T T 81 2 A
L i) A A S50 T R B AR ABE T A o B S A

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
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statements:

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKEFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKEFRS 12

HKEFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 12 Amendments

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards - Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters!

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments:

Disclosures —Transfers of
Financial Assets!

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments:

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities*

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements*

Joint Arrangements*

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities*

Fair Value Measurement*
Presentation of Financial Statements
- Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes — Deferred Tax Recovery of
Underlying Assets?

Separate Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures*

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments:
Presentation- Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 1 Amendments introduce a new deemed cost exemption
for entities that have been subject to severe hyperinflation, whereby
these entities can elect fair value as the deemed cost for assets and
liabilities affected by severe hyperinflation in their first HKFRS
financial statements. The amendments also remove the legacy fixed
dates in HKFRS 1 relating to derecognition and day one gain or loss
transactions. The amendments will not have any financial impact on
the Group.

HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose both
quantitative and qualitative information for the derecognition
of financial assets where the entity has a continuing involvement
in the derecognised assets. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 7
Amendments from 1 January 2012. As the Group does not have
continuing involvement in the derecognised assets, the amendments
will not have any financial impact on the Group.

HKFRS 7 Amendments issue new disclosure requirements in
relation to the offsetting models of financial assets and financial
liabilities. The amendments also improve the transparency in
the reporting of how companies mitigate credit risk, including
disclosure of related collateral pledged or received. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013. The
application of the amendments is unlikely to have any material
financial impact on the Group.

HKEFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses
on the classification and measurement of financial assets. Instead
of classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity shall
classify financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and
simplify the approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”). The changes only
affect the measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”).
For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in other comprehensive income. The remainder of the
change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation
of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income will create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. All other requirements in HKAS 39 in
respect of liabilities are carried forward into HKFRS 9. However,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have
been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.
HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on hedge
accounting, derecognition and impairment of financial assets
continues to apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2015.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all
entities including special purpose entities or structured entities.
It includes a new definition of control which is used to determine
which entities are consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS
10 require management of the Group to exercise significant
judgement to determine which entities are controlled, compared
with the requirements in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation - Special
Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the
issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12. The application of this new standard
is unlikely to have any material financial impact on the Group.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint
arrangements with joint control. It addresses only two forms of
joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint ventures, and
removes the option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation. The application of this new standard is unlikely to
have any material financial impact on the Group.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities that are
previously included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number of
new disclosure requirements for these entities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28
as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12 and
the consequential amendments to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28 from 1
January 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for
use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the circumstances
in which the Group is required to use fair value, but provides
guidance on how fair value should be applied where its use has
already been required or permitted under other HKFRSs. The Group
expects to adopt the standard from 1 January 2013. The application
of this new standard is unlikely to have any material financial impact
on the Group.

HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items presented in
other comprehensive income. Items that could be reclassified (or
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example,
upon derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately
from items which will never be reclassified. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013. The amendments
affect presentation only and have no impact on the Group’s financial
position or performance.

HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of deferred tax
for investment property measured at fair value. The amendments
introduce a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment
property measured at fair value should be determined on the
basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through sale.
Furthermore, the amendments incorporate the requirement
previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21 Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued
Non-Depreciable Assets that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets,
measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always
be measured on a sale basis. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 12
Amendments from 1 January 2012. Upon the adoption, no material
financial impact on the Group is expected.

HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the requirements for offsetting
financial instruments. The amendments address inconsistencies in
current practice when applying the offsetting criteria and clarify the
meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and
some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net
settlements. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2014. The application of these amendments is unlikely to
have any material financial impact on the Group.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries and attributable share

of results and reserves of its associate (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Bank, directly or
indirectly, controls the composition of the Board of Directors,
controls more than half of the voting power or holds more
than half of the issued share capital; or over which the Bank
has a contractual right to exercise a dominant influence with
respect to that entity’s financial and operating policies. The
results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated on
consolidation.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at
the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it shall not be remeasured
until it is finally settled within equity.
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2 EEEFEBORBEE s 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.4 KA REYE (@) 2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)
(a) ML A G (a)  Subsidiaries (continued)
i A< B2 8 2 2% g 2 D I 48 o RE o B e If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
T A RRG) % M I S\ R E (B P the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
) KB (i)l JF 2 R R Y B (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
8 5 F(iii)wh A B HOHE 45 10 2 51 IE 58,26 (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
B 5 I HLRERRG) B AR AE B A TE(E and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
Gi) AT AT #8483 5 & A0 A B 5 K Gii) =T (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
A48 25 09 4T 0] 2 5% s Al o Se it At resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
e TAT R i L e R A A R A LAY - T of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
AP 1 L T 40 S 2 4R A mAR B iR A o income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.
55 BI85 2 ) BT A B £ A e Bl (EL NI R 2R A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
2 L #E R R IR DA IR 58 5 AHIR loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
W 28 7] 22 2E A DL B R S E I S A The results of subsidiaries are included in the Bank’s income
AT Z Wt % o ARITIAM B AR Z statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
18 8 1 AR W AT AT I 4R 2R B B The Bank’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.

(b) BELA] (b)  Associate

e 8 2 ) vy R JB A ) e ] 42 o) A DA An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
Hb - HASBEE — A KA E R controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest
D209 HE 4 A5 = 1 1% T A B A of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and
HAEBNZ AT o over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

A A A W 8 N R 2 R A e A AR AR The Group’s interests in associate are stated in the
R e (il g R (=R R AR CIRG ) consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
B sEALEE M RDL R - A4 H 4 share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
I - ONEIPA L T E S Bl less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
AFRE W AR R KA RN o AR acquisition results and reserves of associate is included
BRI B A W HEAT 2 28 By T EE AR 2 R B in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
Bl g K e 48 DAAS SR T W 8 ) 2 reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting

R BT DA B > ME oA 5 B R 4R A R from transactions between the Group and its associate
5 W WY T P B S U BR A e are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
g B W A A ) EE A TR TN B A A associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
RS NFZ 2 —iy > EAEHE of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
T HEAT AR IS o from the acquisition of associate is included as part of the

Group’s interests in associate and is not individually tested for
impairment.

8 A ) 22 SE AT A Bl BRI B REAC The results of associate are included in the Bank’s income
ARERAT Z W 28 % o ARERAT A & A Rl 2 statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
PG B T U ) B AR AT AT Bk The Bank’s investments in associate are treated as non-current
BRI » assets and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

By A B RE TR B R FEIA AL W45 For regulatory reporting, the basis of consolidation for
R TR B 2 A R MR R R calculation of consolidated capital adequacy ratio of the
B Gk Z W 5ELA Group is set out in Note 1 of the “Supplementary Financial

Information” section.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011



o TR $R 4T (35 ) 45 B A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

2 EEEHEBORMER ) 2

2.5 FlEWA K H

I A B b R 2 LS A B S T 4R A
T ) 2 35 A WA A R D,

B P ) e R — TR O < R e R i
HES RAS > DA AR B A ] 20 1 ) A
AL St 2 J5 o BB A A 02 mT HE e < i
LA T AR 0 A0 A 22 R AR B 4 S Bl
AR R BE > B (s ) A5 BE W 3
By a% 4 T S e il B RUIR T (2 A8 o
at R PR A IRF > A AR B 7E Al w1 B 4 i IRF
5 JE 4 T B (N TR AR AE) 2 B A A
PR o (AR R R AR SRS o TTRRAI A
W 2w LG B A A KT 2 TR P S A B
e B 2 S R M) R AR B8 T TR B CH: At i
A U AE BT o

2 i 7 o — BURIIL2 4 L 7 2 B
L L2 TR 50 A B L
42K 5 DL R 3 4 o B2
i -

2.6 JEFBHWA

BB AR

B B A < — s 2 I A B R 5 R 42 R
HERRE SR o A7 B AR T BE R R 2 A AR 2 R ARUK
W T AR SE 7] A B B4 A ) S i
W8I % AR MM A 2 AR o SR SRR 2
TE SR B 358 AR - T A 4 AT oy 7 B AR
AL T % & AL > BT (R B 2 00 00 4 B
Hofth 2 177 2 BB FI AEAH R IRy > ERR 2 A o

AL o A A L 5K ) B M 5 B — M g I ] L
o e e AR T AR5 5 TR RE o

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all interest-bearing financial instruments using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums
or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, an interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Non-interest income

Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Commitment fees for loans that
are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related direct
costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate
on the loan. Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when
the syndication has been completed and the Group retained no part
of the loan package for itself or retained a part at the same effective
interest rate as the other participants.

Portfolio and other management advisory and service fees are
recognised based on the applicable service contracts, usually on a
time-apportionate basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Non-interest income (continued)

Net trading income

Net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes in
the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as
held for trading and available for sale. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of derivatives to the extent as described in the
accounting policy set out in Note 2.10 are reported as “Net trading
income”.

Gains and losses on foreign exchange trading and other transactions
are also reported as “Net trading income” except for those gains and
losses on translation of foreign currencies recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.15.

Dividend income
Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the
case of financial asset recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances, trade

and other receivables, loans receivable, quoted and unquoted
financial instruments, and derivative financial instruments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognised at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are
satisified.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstance, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to
sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets. The
reclassification from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets or held-to-maturity investments depends on
the nature of the assets.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held
for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, including cash and short-term funds,
placements with and advances to banks and other financial
institutions, trade bills and loans and advances to customers,
banks and other financial institutions, are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment.

Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in net interest income
in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in net interest income
in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement. Were the Group to sell
or reclassify other than an insignificant amount of held-to-
maturity investments, the entire category would be tainted and
reclassified as available for sale.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the
market conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale financial investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
income statement in other income, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve to the income statement. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are
reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the income statement as “net interest
income” and “dividend income from financial investments”.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (i) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (ii) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets
and management’s intent to do so significantly changes in
the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted
only when the Group has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount on the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in reserve is amortised to the income statement over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in reserve is reclassified to the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
(e)  Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay
in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assets, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a passthrough
arrangement, it evaluates it and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Fair value

The fair values of financial instruments that are traded in
active markets is determined by reference to quoted market
prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs. For financial instruments where there is no
active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. The Group establishes the fair value
by using valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm’s length market transactions, reference
to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same, a discounted cash flow analysis, and
option pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific
circumstances.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about the following loss events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

. the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty granting to the borrower, a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

. deterioration in the value of collateral;
. downgrading below investment grade level; or
. observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease

in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the
decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
assets in the group, including adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the group; or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with the defaults on the assets in the

group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowances are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised financial asset less costs for obtaining and selling
the collateral reflects the cash flows that may result from
foreclosure whether or not the foreclosure is probable.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e., on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, industry, geographical location,
collateral type, overdue status and other relevant factors).
Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future
cash flows from groups of such assets by being indicative of
the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the Group
and the historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the Group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect
the period on which the historical loss experience is based and
to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that
do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability
of losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the
related allowances for loan impairment. Such loan is written
off after all the necessary procedures have been completed
and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the allowances for loan impairment in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less
any impairment loss previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the income
statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount
of the asset and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part
of interest income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the income statement if the increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
income statement.

2.9 Financial liabilities

(a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held
for trading and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria of HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, including the Group’s own debt securities in issue are
designated as such at inception. Financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value and
any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised
in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(a)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in

hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39.

Any interests charged on these financial liabilities are included
in the income statement under “Interest expense”. It is carried
at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value

are recognised in the income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently stated
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the other financial
liabilities using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. The related interest expense is recognised within

“Interest expense” in the income statement.

(c)  Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the income statement.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted
market prices in active markets, including recent market
transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted
cash flow models and option pricing models, as appropriate. All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as

liabilities when fair value is negative.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(continued)

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e., the fair value of the
consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that
instrument is better evidenced by comparison with other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e., without
modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable markets. When
such evidence exists, the Group recognises profits on day one.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and
the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value separately recognised in the income statement unless
the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts at fair value
through profit or loss.

Derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the
fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or unrecognised firm
commitments (fair value hedge); or (ii) hedges of highly probable
future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a
forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting is used
for derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are
met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions.

The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception
and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(continued)

Derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting (continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to the
income statement over the period to maturity. The adjustment
to the carrying amount of a hedged equity security remains in
retained earnings until the disposal of the equity security.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income in the cash flow
hedge reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
recycled to the income statement in the periods in which the
hedged item will affect profit or loss (for example, when the
forecast sale that is hedged takes place).

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain or loss existing in other comprehensive
income at that time remains in other comprehensive income
and is recognised when the forecast transaction affects profit
or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is
immediately transferred to the income statement.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does

not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the

income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount

is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there

is currently enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and

there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (“repos”) are
reclassified in the financial statements as pledged assets when the
transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge
the collateral; the counterparty liability is included in deposits from
banks and other financial institutions or deposits from customers,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to customers,
banks or other financial institutions, as appropriate.

The difference between sale and repurchase prices is treated as
an interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest method. Securities lent to counterparties are also
retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchase
and sale are recorded with the gain or loss included in the trading
income. The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a
trading liability.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are reported as off balance-sheet items
and are stated at fair value. In the recovery of impaired loans and
advances, the Group may take possession of the collateral assets
through court proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by
the borrowers. In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy set
out in Note 2.8(a), impairment allowances for impaired loans and
advances are maintained after taking into account the net realisable
value of the collateral assets. On a sale transaction of repossessed
assets, the amount received will be used to offset the loans and
advances first until they are fully recovered, and any remaining
amount will be released to the borrowers.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of an entity: (a) that engages
in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions
with other components of the same entity), (b) whose operating
results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision
maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance, and (c) for which discrete
financial information is available.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translations at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in
other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges

and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value whose fair value changes recognised in
the income statement, such as equity held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value whose fair value changes recognised
in the equity, such as equities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, are recorded as other comprehensive income

and included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities
(none of which has a functional currency which is the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities of these entities are translated at the

closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

. their income statements are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate

component of equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)  Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are included in a separate
component of equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

(d)  Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

Property, plant and equipment

Bank premises and properties comprise mainly branches and offices.
Bank premises and properties are shown at fair value, based on
periodic, but at least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is restated proportionately with the change
in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount
of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount. All other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases
of property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of
bank premises and properties are credited to other reserves in
shareholders’ equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset are charged against bank premises revaluation reserve
directly in equity; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Each year the difference between the depreciation
amount based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset expensed
in the income statement and the depreciation amount based on
the asset’s original cost is transferred from the bank premises
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Bank premises and properties Over the remaining lease
period of the land on which the
properties are situated or 50
years, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term of the leased
premises or 10 years whichever
is shorter
Furniture and equipment 4 to 10 years
The residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount, with the amount charged directly to
the income statement.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained
earnings as a movement in reserves.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital appreciation
or both and that is not occupied by the companies in the Group is
classified as investment property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent transaction prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers. Investment properties that are being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment properties, or for which the market has
become less active, continue to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment properties reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the properties. Some of those
outflows are recognised as liabilities, including finance lease
liabilities in respect of land classified as investment properties; other
outflows including contingent rent payments, are not recognised in
the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Properties
that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment and
stated at cost until construction or development is completed, at
which time they are reclassified and subsequently accounted for as
investment properties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Investment properties (continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed of the acquired
subsidiaries at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition
of an associate is included in “Investments in associate”. The
carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. Each of those cash-generating units is
represented by each primary reporting segment.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Gains or losses from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income
statement when the assets are derecognised.
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2 EEEEBORBAR ) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 B EE (RS E) @) 2.19 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
(a) EIEHANF (a) Computer software

JIT RN 2 VRS AP T S O E A 2 Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on

7S e A 2 A PR IR 0 e U T DA the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use

ARAL o G A REAS A Al AT A 4 0 A Y the specific software. These costs are amortised over their

GRS - estimated useful life of four years.

B % S A R N R R A B 2 Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer

A o R A IR E R A BH S o T R B gk software programmes are recognised as an expense as

AT SRR I H 7S 4 [ 2 ) 2 e A A incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production

H > I HAR W] B8 — 4 4% 7 AR of identifiable and unique software products controlled by

FUAS 2 A ) 45 2 AR > T HERR £y B the Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits

B o B H AR L B B RN B A exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible

KA TR JE B S 2 R A B8 43 o assets. Direct costs include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

ERR s M TV ¥ 7 2 2 S 1 B o A Computer software development costs recognised as

T 0 FLAS 5 AT A7 B 7 (O 8 288 Y 47 intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life

S (not exceeding four years).

b) XHHE (b)  Trading rights

LA R ERIETBH A ITA Trading rights represent eligibility rights with indefinite useful

RN B 5 i AT e B 2 HER) - B lives to trade on or through The Stock Exchange of Hong

4 B ofi P A ) > I A A A AT (I o Kong Limited and are tested for impairment annually. Such

I Y G OR TSN o A AR intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life is reviewed

HEATREAN > DAHEE M BRAF 0 2 K E 2 5 annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment

AR PR SR > WA o H) A R continues to be supportable, if not, the change in the useful

life assessment from indefinite to infinite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.21

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation),
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for
as deferred income tax. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associate, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-
sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or credited
directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
deferred gain or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of the reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

2.24

Employee benefits (continued)

(b)  Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the
“ORSO Scheme”) and another defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for those employees of the
Group who are eligible and have elected to participate in the
schemes. The Group’s contributions to the ORSO Scheme are
made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and those made to the MPF Scheme are made based
on a percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant income as
defined in the MPF Scheme. These contributions are expensed
as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees of the Group who leave the schemes prior
to the contributions vesting fully. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when (i) the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; (ii) it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
(iii) the amount can be reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there is a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow of resources will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow of resources with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of
the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease
payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

2.26

Leases (continued)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement
on the straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The Group’s
interests in leasehold land and land use rights are also accounted as
operating leases.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased out
are included in property, plant and equipment in the statement of
financial position. They are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on a basis consistent with similar owned property, plant and
equipment. Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’
maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances
with banks and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other
eligible bills and certificates of deposit.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
Group’s control.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the Group’s control, or a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised either because an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation but is not probable or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as
an asset.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed

in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the

probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will

then be recognised as a provision.

2.27 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(®)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family

and that person

@

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28

2.29

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained earnings within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Bank’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions.
These assets and income arising thereon are excluded from these
financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates

and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

3.1

Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment on a
monthly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified with
an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change
in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or in the national
or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets
in the group of borrowers. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing
of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

3.2

3.3

3.4

33

3.6

Fair value of derivatives

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using various valuation techniques
according to the nature of the financial instruments. These include
third party price quotation, a discounted cash flow and option
pricing models. These models are built by reputable system suppliers
and are widely used in the market. They are reviewed and calibrated
by qualified personnel independent of the area that created them.
Valuation outputs are generated from these systems using relevant
current observable market parameters and are verified before they
are used for financial reporting purposes.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant
or prolonged requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share
prices. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is
evidence of a deterioration in the financial health of the investee,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and
operating and financing cash flows.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to classify non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for the specific circumstances, for example, selling
an insignificant amount close to maturity, it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale financial investments.
The investments would therefore be measured at fair value and not at
amortised cost.

Fair value of bank premises and properties

The fair value of the leasehold building is estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professionally qualified valuer on
an open market basis.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on the value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates of discount rate and long-term growth rate.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

3.7

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1

Overall risk management

Pursuant to the implementation of Basel II New Accord since
January 2007, the Group has been practising risk management since
2009 in congruence with the principles and requirements of the New
Accord. Paying increased attention to corporate governance, the
Board oversight and a top-down approach permeated through the
Group’s risk management structure, processes, policies and internal
control. For its business plan and activities, the Group identifies,
assesses, monitors, controls, reports and reviews the major risks to
ensure capital adequacy and compliance with regulatory guidelines
and adherence to the Board’s risk expectation, including during
stress times.

Risk management structure and principles

The Group has established policies and procedures for the
identification, measurement, control and monitoring of risk factors
(including credit, liquidity, market, interest rate, operational,
reputation, legal and compliance risks). Central to the Group’s risk
management is the Board’s oversight, which ultimately endorses
all core risk policies and their subsequent amendments. Two
Risk Management Committees, one at Board level and the other
at senior executive level, reinforce the Board and management’s
oversight in the risk management structure, process and policies.
The management of the Group, the Risk Management Department
and the relevant functional committees review and revise these
policies and procedures on a regular basis. The Group’s Internal
Audit Department also performs regular checks on compliance with
policies and procedures.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1

Overall risk management (continued)

Launch of new products and services

The launch of new banking products and services has to go
through the essential steps of development and approval process to
ensure their commercial viability, ethical suitability and statutory
compliance. The Product Development Department or other
relevant business unit is responsible to prepare a proposal for any
new product or service to the New Product & Business Committee
(chaired by a Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank) for approval.
The main objective of the process is to identify and assess the risks
associated with the product, to implement steps to eliminate these
risks or to control.

In accordance with Basel II Pillar I, the Group adopts the following
approaches for its credit, market and operational risk exposure in the
calculation of its capital adequacy ratio (“CAR”):

Credit risk
Market risk
Operational risk

- Standardized approach
- Standardized approach
- Basic indicator approach
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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Overall risk management (continued)
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4.1

Launch of new products and services (continued)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a borrower or counterparty of the Group
will be unable or unwilling to honour a repayment obligation.
The Group has standards, policies and procedures and designated
functional departments in place to control and monitor these risks.

The Group devotes considerable resources to maintaining sound
credit risk management. Management has set credit policies and
systems to identify, measure, monitor and control risks inherent
in various lending businesses. This process ensures prudence,
minimises operational omissions in credit matters, and aims at early
detection of potential problems, thereby minimising business loss.

High-level credit policies of the Group are set, reviewed and
constantly updated by the relevant functional departments and
committees, and for prominent issues, by the Management or even
the Board of Directors to take balanced account of dynamic market
situation, regulatory requirement, the Group’s usual prudent
lending practices and its latest business strategies. All these credit
policies, processes and practices, as they are developed, updated,
reviewed and revised, are written now and then into Credit Manuals
and supplementary lending product manuals for internal control
and compliance purposes. Given the Basel I Capital Accord
implemented since January 2007, the Group has been adjusting its
credit risk management practice in line with relevant guidelines
released by the HKMA and for the sake of enhancing internal credit
control, processing efficiency and product competitiveness. Given
the Bank’s privatisation in late 2010 and the subsequently more
intimate alignment with ICBC (“Parent Bank”) policies and risk
appetite, the Bank’s credit risk management have been increasingly
taking into account Parent Bank’s credit process, policies and
information. This is with an ultimate will to fit constructively into
the Parent Bank’s unified and consolidated credit risk policy.

Credit authorities are delegated to individual approvers for
efficiency and productivity purposes. Except for taxi loans, small
business loans and consumer loans, no business originating units
can singly approve any loan. Loans singly approved by business
originating units are nevertheless still subject to approval criteria
pre-set by the Credit Function or Credit Committee. Otherwise, the
Group generally requires “dual” approval whereby loan proposals
shall require joint approval by the Business Line and Credit
Function. The Bank’s Credit Committee, which approves all credit
policies and large loans, within its credit authority approved by
Parent Bank, shall not pass any credit related proposal if its Credit
Function approvers disagree. Only the loan proposals approved by
the Credit Committee would be submitted to Chief Executive Officer
for signature if and where it is needed.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2  Credit risk (continued)

The Credit Department (CRD) and the Loans Administration
Department (LAD) are the centralised departments in the Bank
mandated to carry out credit policies. They perform independent
credit assessment, post-approval credit administration and other
credit control functions to ensure that the credit process complies
with credit policies and guidelines laid down by the management.
Apart from the independent credit assessment and matrix approval
process, regular post approval inspection by the Risk Management
Department and credit audits are conducted on specific loan
portfolio or operating units in the credit process. To maintain its
independence, the Credit Department and Loans Administration
Department of the Bank have a direct reporting line to a Deputy
Chief Executive who is independent of business. Same control,
supplemented by system support, regular mark-to-market and case
by case approval by the Risk Management Department, also applies
to the counterparty credit risk of structured derivative products.

The Group employs RAROC techniques to help ensure that its loan
assets are commensurately priced on a credit risk-adjusted basis
according to Basel II principles.

Management spares no efforts in monitoring the quality and
behaviour of the loan portfolio. The Group’s internal credit risk
grading system consisting of 15 grades built on Basel IT - Compliant
Attributes is adopted for credit risk differentiation purpose. With
internal data to be constantly enriched through years of experience,
it is expected that the Group can make further use of the credit
statistics to profile and track down credit risk migration, to
measure loan default probabilities and to practise other credit risk
management processes, of which the new credit rating model is and
will substantially be an integral part.

The Group’s credit risk appetite is spelt out, disseminated and
referred to in daily credit decision. The purpose is to limit the range
of credit proposals presented to the credit approval process to those
that fit the Group’s risk appetite developed out of the Group’s past
experience, the Board’s preference and risk or reward evaluation.

The Bank is vigilant about risk concentration and has therefore been
practising credit risk exposure limits to individual customers in
absolute amount and as a percentage of the Bank’s equity, to industry
sectors and to geographical markets.

The Group’s quarterly credit guidelines and quarterly loan portfolio
review have been practised for years. In economic bad times, it is
basic to the mechanism for initiating pre-emptive measures to help
stabilise the quality of the Group’s loan asset portfolio. These have
by now been supplemented by Parent Bank’s credit risk appetites,
industry and common customer credit policies. The credit resources
of Parent Bank have been significantly useful to the Group in its loan
business, both in customer selection, screening, credit review and
decision.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2  Credit risk (continued)

A A T B A B R o A o J B R
R MR B B B EBOR AR B & 5 > i A
JEBR B S A3 B R 5O B £ v Ja e AL
I % F A PE AL o AT AR % 5 RS A5 6
AR R > R R E R RS - IR

P S A

(a)  JATFAHCIT gy A 1 B0 48 75 0t A 2

The Group attaches increasing importance to post-approval risk

monitoring. This is done by the Credit Control and Policy section

of the Risk Management Department which reviews for potentially

problematic borrowing accounts and performs group review of

special mention accounts and customers in high risk portfolios.

It is also done by Business Line relationship managers and Credit

Department who identify and review Early Warning List customers.

(a)  Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other

BRA M7 B B credit enhancements
A SR A AT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#L AR T#xL AR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
HHEEAENZ Credit risk exposures relating to
f BB on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
B4 KA SRAT LAl Cash and balances with banks and other

BRI &1 financial institutions 112,115,295 33,921,821 100,337,007 30,065,948
TESRAT B HoAth 4 Rl B s 2 Placements with and advances to banks

7 7 S Bk and other financial institutions 9,860,804 3,900,683 7,387,174 6,525,248
REXHRECHEE Financial assets held for trading 242,388 205,666 76,796 68,541
T8 E AT EE SRR Financial assets designated at fair

AR 4 value through profit or loss 709,231 951,345 709,231 951,345
i 4&m TR Derivative financial instruments 2,076,533 1,884,841 2,076,533 1,884,841
P AT R H Al Loans and advances to customers,

SR 2 B banks and other financial institutions 237,488,676 185,058,428 212,245,900 165,768,874
e & SR g Available-for-sale financial investments 36,273,409 35,644,015 35,419,691 35,643,702
A 23 e MR E Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,164,239 1,164,056 1,164,239 1,164,056
WEEAGRAIZ Credit risk exposures relating to

R Bt A off-balance sheet items are as follows:

B R a8 J HAt S S B R o Loan commitments and other credit
related commitments 22,152,438 22,454,056 11,199,339 7,998,169
T 5 98 R R AL £ A B Financial guarantees and other credit

A A fE related contingent liabilities 96,428,085 82,838,897 91,956,990 80,876,799

TR 8 30 A5 R At the end of the reporting period 518,511,098 368,023,808 462,572,900 330,947,523

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2  Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Credit quality

Gross loans and advances

(i) Distribution of gross loans and advances by credit

[ quality is summarised as follows:
AL H AT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#L SR T T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000
BB Gross loans and advances to customers:
— R A% dai 1 7 oK ol - neither past due nor impaired 198,289,064 165,454,643 177,820,851 149,534,700
— & A 0E R B A - past due but not impaired 1,837,514 1,011,596 1,801,338 1,011,596
— 2 E - impaired 1,249,184 1,007,772 1,020,986 735,364
Hat Total 201,375,762 167,474,011 180,643,175 151,281,660
ALEH ARAT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#x T T T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
SRAT T HoAth 4 T A Gross loans and advances to banks
A and other financial institutions:
— B 8 1 78 A Wk (L — neither past due nor impaired 36,543,627 18,048,036 31,729,881 14,729,572
— O AR R B - past due but not impaired 24,682 3,362 24,682 3,362
—EBE - impaired - - - -
st Total 36,568,309 18,051,398 31,754,563 14,732,934

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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4 B A B g BE om0 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
42 fE 8B 50 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) [FHEHZE (B (b)  Credit quality (continued)
AR () Gross loans and advances (continued)
(1) WE AT AN A U (B 2 B R A A 40 S (i) Distribution of gross loans and advances that are neither

past due nor impaired

A 0 45 BRI IV O 2 0 0 R e (E
ZHHFMA B2 ERERA2 AL
T R A 2 T T AT AR R B E AT AT

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances
that were neither past due nor impaired at the end of
the reporting periods can be assessed by reference to the

fli o internal rating system adopted by the Group.
A A HAT
Group Bank

INF R A 2011 2010 2011 2010
5 BFEAR Internal EW 2R T T 0 T T
Credit rating rating S&P’s equivalent HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
EH S Pass Grade A-E AAA to BBB- 73,283,964 52,543,792 72,321,624 51,243,550
F-H BB+ to BB 107,769,612 85,720,621 96,384,036 76,528,430
I-J BB- to B+ 48,588,510 39,141,127 35,984,256 30,567,096
W A A Special Mention Grade ~ K-L Bto CCC- 5,190,605 6,097,139 4,860,816 5,925,196
HEt Total 234,832,691 183,502,679 209,550,732 164,264,272

WAL RE KBRS o ARAE AR
B Sh SR AT R B HE R e > B =
— A — AR AR o A
JABEHE LA ([ R HE AT ) wPAR TR
RN A TR0 R AR ] B YE S T BT AR
A8 3 HI A R

fE BETR M B4 222 B # o A il i
RN MG BT o (5 SRTAR A o B
B L g T 22 A ol A R A [l
BRI > BLHE KE AT SR - R RTER I
Fr B o A AR B AR 4w K
AN SR B AN AT AR R o R
T~ T2l K REOEAE S S SO AE W]
ST T AR
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The various internal and external rating criteria and
calibrations are mapped back to one single internal
credit rating scale for statistical and regulatory purposes.
The Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) equivalent ratings are
based on the mapping of the individual probability of
default of each internal grade with that of the S&P’s
ratings.

The Credit Function and Credit Committee decide an
individual borrower’s credit rating. Credit rating is a
function of quantitative and management attributes
that include economic outlook, account conduct and
industry risk. The Group has a different rating scale for
large corporates and SMEs. The external rating of S&P,
Moody’s and Fitch will be adopted, if available.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2  Credit risk (continued)

(b)

Credit quality (continued)
Gross loans and advances (continued)

(if)

Distribution of gross loans and advances that are neither
past due nor impaired (continued)

The following table gives a distribution of the Group’s
total loans and advances by credit rating. The Group
has calibrated its borrowing customers into Grade A -
Grade O and works out their respective weighted average
probabilities of default (“PD”) and loss given default
(“LGD”) since 2005.

Pass Grades A to ]
Special Mention Grades K to L
Non-Performing

Loan Grade (NPL) M to O

Grades A - J: Loans where borrowers are currently
meeting commitment and full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt. There are 10 grades within the
performing category from A to J.

Grades K - L: All pass grade borrowers which have
overdue loans for a period exceeding one month are
downgraded to special mention rating or below, unless
with strong justification irrespective of the internal
ratings. Borrowers exhibiting one or more of the
characteristics per the HKMA’s special mention or non-
performing grades definition or as general economic
environment deteriorates, may also be graded K & L,
notwithstanding the absence of overdue loan on default
record. This is a stringent credit rating approach to raise
the Group’s credit risk alertness.

Parent Bank has another set of credit rating, which the
Group will gradually adopt to match the Parent Bank’s.
The Group is also in the process of implementing a
global Credit Management System to drive home the
reliance which the Group can build on Parent Bank
for its credit risk management and practice. Given the
Group’s increasingly important China loan portfolio, the
change will enable the group to enjoy the benefits of the
Parent Bank’s tested credit risk management framework
for the China market, on top of its own Hong Kong
based credit risk management capabilities.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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4 B A B g BE om0 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 %EEL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) [FHEHZE (B (b)  Credit quality (continued)

R () Gross loans and advances (continued)

(iil) © % E R (2 S R AR (iii) Gross loans and advances which were past due but not
impaired

PLTF 4317 1 75 17 45 300 44 ORI 2 2 The analysis below shows the gross loans and advances
BERBEZ P - 147 S H A4 to customers, banks and other financial institutions
A R KA that were past due but not impaired at the end of the

reporting periods:

AR AR HHUT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#x T T#x T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
i A 30 H Past due up to 30 days 969,837 477,779 969,837 477,779
L 31-60 H Past due 31-60 days 479,831 25,993 443,655 25,993
i ie1-90H Past due 61-90 days 389,467 3,269 389,467 3,269
w190 H A | Past due over 90 days 23,061 507,917 23,061 507,917
At Total 1,862,196 1,014,958 1,826,020 1,014,958
A 5 2 AP EE Fair value of collateral 977,179 883,216 977,179 883,216
bR &K BESL »  F—— X Other than gross loans and advances, no financial
T — T 7 WA B4 TR > I ST assets were past due but not impaired at the end of the
] 4 il 2 4 4 A R R o reporting periods of 2011 and 2010.
A G ot A (L o A K A - R Where collateral values are greater than gross loans and
FEA IR 2 AN M B R 2 AR advances, only the amount of collateral up to the gross
45H o loans and advances was included.

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2  Credit risk (continued)

(b)

Credit quality (continued)
Gross loans and advances (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Loans and advances individually impaired

The Group has a policy of downgrading customers
to the NPL grade when their loans are overdue over
90 days. Very seldom would a borrower with loan
outstanding for over 90 days be retained in pass grade
instead of impaired. Impaired borrowing accounts are
typically transferred to management by the Special
Assets Department, so that the prospect and means of
recovery can be more independently evaluated, decided
and implemented. The Special Assets Department
may not take any immediate recovery action. It may
even help in circumstances where the customer in
question is deemed to be able to be rehabilitated and
the collateral is important to the customer’s continued
business operation. The Group may at times join or
seek agreement with other creditor banks to stand still
in concert. Otherwise, the Group will take appropriate
measures to preserve the customer’s assets, to maximise
recovery and to fast realise property collateral in a timely
manner either by private sale or by public auction at
prices that are in acceptable proximity with the average
of several external valuations.

The Group adopts an objective individual impairment
policy in compliance with the requirement of HKAS 39.
Impairment requirement, if any, can always be traceable
back to reasonably expected discounted repayment cash
flows and/or the assessed net realisable value of the
collateral.

Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or
impaired

Restructuring activities include extended payment
arrangements, approved external management plans,
modification and deferral of payments. Following
restructuring, a previously overdue customer account
is reset to a normal status and managed together with
other similar restructured debts by the Special Assets
Department. Restructuring policies and practices are
based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgement
of management, indicate that payment will most likely
continue. These policies are kept under continuous
review. Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be
past due or impaired totalled HK$555,670,000 as at 31
December 2011 (2010: HK$445,000). They are retained
in classified loans as long as there is no sufficient
good reasons to believe that the obligor will be able
to sustainably meet the re-scheduled loan repayment
terms.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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4 B E| B A B (an)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 %EEL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) [FHEHZE (B (b)  Credit quality (continued)
fE 95 K R 2 Debt and equity securities
(i) LRI E#R 2 S E (i)  Financial investments by rating agency designation
TERIURA A ;4‘* H 4% 7T 8k The table below presents an analysis of financial
ﬁgﬁz%%%fgiigg;g investments by rating agency designation at 31
P A RN B N > : ; ;
5 H > 4 R - A Ele;c:;?ber;.basedt on S.&P sfr:tmgs. olr. thelrt equ1:ra11entt}tlo
SR T Y T AR A pective ca~ egorles.o inancia .1nves ments. In the
BB AT AR A 54 S 4 absence of such issue ratings, the rating scale adopted by
the issuers is used.
HREUAT
fefi A
HEARZ
EWEE
Financial i Ak & 5 EEEER ]
FEEHZ assets SBitE SRiE
LB%E designated Available- Held-to-
Financial at fair value for-sale maturity
assets held through financial financial Bt
for trading profit or loss investments investments Total
A Group T#x T#x T#T T#E T#E
e S 2011 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AAA AAA - 123,234 1,472,644 1,164,239 2,760,117
AA-ZAA+ AA-to AA+ 140,621 - 10,384,953 - 10,525,574
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 101,767 185,535 17,053,385 - 17,340,687
TEHRA- Lower than A- - 400,462 2,940,467 - 3,340,929
PSS Unrated - - 4,421,960 - 4,421,960
Mgt Total 242,388 709,231 36,273,409 1,164,239 38,389,267
EEUAT
{R{E A U
fiRARRZ
EMERE
Financial fhi it 5 15 R
REZHZ assets SRRE SRRE
SR E designated Available- Held-to-
Financial at fair value for-sale maturity
assets held through financial financial Bt
for trading profit or loss investments investments Total
S Group Tt Tkt Tt Tt Tt
“Z%F 2010 HKS’ 000 HK$’000 HKS’ 000 HKS’000 HK$’ 000
AAA AAA 252 124,165 2,875,564 1,164,056 4,164,037
AA-FAA+ AA-to AA+ 9,739 - 10,152,250 - 10,161,989
A-ZEA+ A-to A+ 58,550 416,015 16,323,669 - 16,798,234
fERA- Lower than A- - 411,165 3,287,056 - 3,698,221
Kt Unrated 137,125 - 3,005,476 - 3,142,601
At Total 205,666 951,345 35,644,015 1,164,056 37,965,082

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 %EEL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) [FHEHZE (B (b)  Credit quality (continued)
i 55 J % 55 5% 2 (40 Debt and equity securities (continued)
WA PSS E # ) 2 TE (41) (i) Financial investments by rating agency designation
(continued)
HREUAT
fefi A
HEARZ
EWEE
Financial i Ak & 5 EEEER ]
B2 assets SBiE SRiE
LB%E designated Available- Held-to-
Financial at fair value for-sale maturity
assets held through financial financial Bt
for trading profit or loss investments investments Total
HRRAT Bank T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x
e S 2011 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AAA AAA - 123,234 1,472,644 1,164,239 2,760,117
AA-ZAA+ AA-to AA+ 9,989 - 9,531,548 - 9,541,537
A-FA+ A-to A+ 66,807 185,535 17,053,385 - 17,305,727
R A- Lower than A- - 400,462 2,940,467 - 3,340,929
ENE Unrated - - 4,421,647 - 4,421,647
Mgt Total 76,796 709,231 35,419,691 1,164,239 37,369,957
LAY
AL
i RARRZ
EMERE
Financial it 5 15 AR 25
FEZHZ assets SRRE SRRE
SR E designated Available- Held-to-
Financial at fair value for-sale maturity
assets held through financial financial Mt
for trading profit or loss investments investments Total
ARAT Bank Tt Tkt Tt Tt Tt
ZE %K 2010 HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HK$’ 000
AAA AAA 252 124,165 2,875,564 1,164,056 4,164,037
AA-FAA+ AA-to AA+ 9,739 - 10,152,250 - 10,161,989
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 58,550 416,015 16,323,669 - 16,798,234
fERA- Lower than A- - 411,165 3,287,056 - 3,698,221
Kt Unrated - - 3,005,163 - 3,005,163
At Total 68,541 951,345 35,643,702 1,164,056 37,827,644
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2  Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit quality (continued)
Debt and equity securities (continued)

(ii)  Investment portfolio

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s debt securities
portfolio amounted to HK$36.9 billion, with a 2.8%
increase over the HK$35.9 billion as at 31 December
2010. HK$11.9 billion or 32% of the portfolio will
mature in 2012. The majority of the portfolio are
denominated in US$ and HK$ whereas the rest are
in other currencies, such as AUD, CNY, EUR, GBP,
JPY and SGD. Over 97% of the portfolio are kept in
the available-for-sale book category. Over 86% of the
portfolio falls within the investment grade category.
The Group’s debt securities portfolio operates under a
strict and prudent risk management framework and is in
compliance with all pre-determined internal investment
guidelines, which are reviewed and approved by the
Board of Directors annually. It is noteworthy that the
Group has no exposure to collateralised debt obligations
(“CDOs”) and United States subprime mortgages but
has some exposures to structured-investment vehicles
(“SIVs”) and commercial mortgage-backed securities
(“CMBSs”).

The Bank adopts HKAS 39 compliant accounting
and value impairment policy for its investment paper
portfolio other than the held-to-maturity ones. They are
marked-to-market on a monthly basis, often with prices
quoted by several reliable sources from which the more
realistically conservative one is selected for impairment
adjustment or permanent value diminution purpose.

Derivatives

The Group maintains strict control limits on open derivative
positions. At any one time, the amount subject to credit risk
is limited to the current fair value of instruments that are
favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where their fair values
are positive), which is only a small fraction of the contracts in
relation to derivatives, or is not limited to the notional values
used to express the volume of instruments outstanding. This
credit risk exposure is managed as part of the overall lending
limits with counterparties on nominal amounts. Collateral or
other security is obtained for credit risk exposures either in
the form of margin deposits or when the accrued marked-to-
market loss exceeds a pre-determined threshold.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2  Credit risk (continued)

(d)

(e)

(1)

Master netting arrangements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit risk by
entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties
with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions.
Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an
offset of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial
position, as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis.
However, the credit risk is reduced by a master netting
arrangement to the extent that if an event of default occurs, all
amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a
net basis.

Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that
funds are available to a customer to settle his obligations
as required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit which
represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its
obligations to third parties carry the same credit risk as loans.
Documentary and commercial letters of credit which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer
authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to
a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions are
collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to which
they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct lending.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments
to extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments.

However, even in the worst scenario, loss is likely to be less
than the total unused commitments, as most commitments
to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining
specific credit standards. The Group monitors the term
to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term
commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk
than shorter-term commitments.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to
customers in the forms of mortgages over property, other
registered securities over assets, cash deposits and guarantees.
Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances to
banks, except when securities are held as part of reverse
repurchase and securities borrowing activity. Collateral held
as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is
determined by the nature of the instrument.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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4 B E| B A B (an)

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 %EEL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(g) 17 B S BT Wt (g)  Credit risk stress test
MR8 W 5 0 R B B O AR 5 - A In accordance with the HKMA’s supervisory policy guidelines,
55 ) 78 SO TE Al TS~ AN S e o e b the Group runs the counterparty credit risk stress test
RV ==X (== o 1= BNy TR B (= = 9 1 periodically in estimation of the probable credit loss in mild,
B JBE g A o A B B — JUJLNAE & moderate and severe crisis scenario. The Group performs the
TR AR 2 an PN 4 R fE AR T (RS credit risk stress test on the basis of the empirical data during
TR ARV E R FEE R the Asian financial crisis spanning 1998 and 2004, including
TR TR 2 26 B BB A AT A 0 L e JRE the 2003 SARS epidemic and the 2008 financial tsunami. The
Tt o v A B B P 2 B A Senior Executive Risk Management Committee reviews the
BT R - K2R KB AL E S stress test, their parameters and their impact on the Group’s
ARFTERZ R - MRBLHAELE > M7 regulatory capital adequacy ratio. Contingent measures will be
T B IR it DA 428 1) AT RE 1 AS FAE DL o devised to control possible adversities, if deemed necessary.
A A AR A ] 2 i RS T T The following table summarises the result of the Group’s latest
JeEL 55 JE 3 et 2 R o credit risk stress tests for counterparties.
“F-—tZ A= -0 ZEF-FES A= H
1 B 1 Bt Crisis scenario 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
W ABARZTEN (FEET Mid NPL (HK$ million) 3,367 3,571
AN T A8 BRI LE 2 (%) NPL ratio (%) 1.95% 2.46%
TE (G SR K (7 & s oT) Expected credit loss (HK$ million) 2,200 1,581
WA R AR (A &) Moderate  NPL (HKS$ million) 4,222 4,313
AN T B AT EE 2 (%) NPL ratio (%) 2.45% 2.97%
A SR (F 8 T) Expected credit loss (HK$ million) 2,745 1,993
BEE REA A (FEHIE)  Severe NPL (HKS$ million) 4,999 4,989
N JB# B AR EE (%) NPL ratio (%) 2.90% 3.44%
TEWE SR (F #E ) Expected credit loss (HK$ million) 3,280 2,407

B A LAt B otk A R R B
AT A ) A 2 L ol e A L L B
LT B AT AR o A fE R EEUR
it Bl (B0 A0) A% T DL 2L ~ Rl - 99 B ER
BB R AN A o T 0 IR A6 1) 7 S
o R U IOA B R ~ 18R At o -
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All the above credit risk reports are reviewed monthly
by the Credit Committee or quarterly by the Senior
Executive Risk Management Committee. Warning
signals or policy deviations, if any, will be investigated,
discussed, rectified or dealt with, and, if necessary, be
reported to the Board in due course for information,
instruction or approval.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that market rates and prices on assets,
liabilities and off-balance sheet positions change, thus causing
profits or losses. Generally, the Group’s market risk is associated
with its positions in foreign exchange, money market, debt
securities, derivatives and stocks. Most off-balance sheet derivative
positions arise from the execution of customer-related orders and
positions taken for hedging purposes. Structured products are
basically offered to customers in most cases on a back-to-back basis
to maintain the Bank’s market competitiveness at minimal market
risk, commensurate with the Group’s risk appetite. The Board places
material emphasis on market risk control, including the operational
control of the Bank’s proprietary and non-bank customer dealing
operation, for which regular Board’s initiatives are made.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to optimise
return and control market risk in ways consistent with the Group’s
risk profile and its status as a premier provider of financial products
and services.

The Group classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or
non-trading portfolios. Trading portfolios include those positions
arising from market-making and proprietary trading positions.
Non-trading portfolios primarily arise from the effective foreign
exchange and interest rate management of the Group’s retail,
corporate and commercial banking assets and liabilities.

(a)  Market risk management framework

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions
is managed within risk limits and guidelines approved by
the Management and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (the “ALCO”), and for prominent issues, reviewed
by the Board of Directors. Trading limits are increased for
opportunities in the market. Exposures are measured and
monitored against limits on positions, stop-loss, DVO01,
delta, gamma, etc. Daily risk monitoring is carried out by
an independent market risk unit of the Risk Management
Department, which ensures all dealing activities are conducted
in a proper mode and within approved limits. The Group’s
market risk exposures are reviewed by the ALCO and the
Senior Executive Risk Management Committee. All exceptions
to limits are reported to the ALCO. Important derivations, if
any, will be escalated to the attention of the Risk Management
Committee of Board of Directors. Stress tests are performed
regularly to estimate the possible losses under extreme
circumstances. The Group’s Internal Audit Department also
performs regular review and testing on dealing activities to
ensure compliance with all internal guidelines.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Market risk management framework (continued)

Besides, various reputable treasury systems are being used to
further strengthen the functions of control and monitoring,
supplemented as mentioned by, among others, predetermined
stop-loss limits to keep the risk of increased trading limits
at bay. An enhanced system is in process of installation
with implementation in phases during 2009 through 2012,
with a view to ultimately strengthen the Group’s market
risk management and counterparty credit risk control for
structured products.

Measurement of market risk

Measurement techniques used to quantify the market risk
arising from the Bank’s trading and non-trading activities
include sensitivity analysis, stress testing and Value-at-
Risk (VaR). Sensitivity measures, concentration and stop-
loss limits are used as the risk management tools. Limits
are set for each portfolio, product and risk type. Stress tests
are performed regularly to assess the potential losses under
extreme circumstances. The ALCO and the Senior Executive
Risk Management Committee review stress test results on
a regular basis. VaR is adopted as one of the market risk
measures for debt securities investment portfolio.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group’s position may be
adversely affected by a change in market interest rates. Interest
rate risk arises mainly from the maturity mismatch of interest-
bearing assets and liabilities and yield curve movements.
Interest-rate risk exposures are managed within risk limits
approved and monitored by the ALCO with the participation
of the Risk Management Department. Interest rate risk
exposures in non-trading portfolio are measured once a month
and the results are reported to the ALCO.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by way of entering
into on or off-balance sheet interest rate risk hedging
instruments. The effectiveness of the hedging activities is
assessed regularly in accordance with HKAS 39. The Group’s
interest rate risk position is further regularly reported to
and scrutinised by the ALCO and the Senior Executive Risk
Management Committee.

Foreign currency funding used to fund Hong Kong dollar
assets is normally hedged using currency swaps or forward
exchange contracts to neutralise the foreign exchange risk.

The Group will use and counts on stop-loss limit,
management trigger limits, stress test and a software system
in installation to manage its interest rate risk. Systems are
installed or being installed to facilitate mark-to-market, VaR
measurement and market risk stress test.
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4 B E| B A B (an) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 T8 R A B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c) FIZ & s () (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
T 2R A I A AR 1 T T R ) 2R R B - 3l The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest
i R 1] (B9 7 AR B 1 2 7 K BB 0 T
eE B AE EE S HSE WA (M

rate risks. Included in the table are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of

R S UE) 210 o

contractual repricing or maturity dates.

~WAk  —EZMH ZEFCSHA —Z 4 HAEN L At &
Upto 13 3-12 1-5 Over5  Non-interest it
1 month months months years years bearing Total
KM Group T Ti#L T T T T T
i S S Y y | At 31 December 2011 HKS$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000
i3 Assets
B4 RAESRAT £ 5 R Cash and balances with banks
SRRHZ R and other financial institutions 109,830,781 - - - - 2084514 112,115,295
(RGP AL T Placements with and advances to
LEARER banks and other financial
institutions - 4,515,467 5,345,337 - - - 9,860,804
XA RRERMERE Financial assets held for trading - - 2% 54,505 6,802 181,036 242,388
REUATHERNGER Financial assets designated at fair
ARz &BERE value through profit or loss - - 180,469 528,762 - - 709,231
iESMTH Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,076,533 2,076,533
P SR Loans and advances to customers,
SHBHZER banks and other financial
institutions 125,918,414 60,986,376 45,588,517 3,259,495 1,534,572 01302 237,488,676
s E SR E Available-for-sale financial
investments 5,138,921 8,077,125 3,807,977 17,765,315 925,926 558,145 36,273,409
FEEIMERRY Held-to-maturity financial
investments - 699,584 464,655 - - - 1,164,239
g Other assets 512,595 - - - - 4,515,182 5,027,777
WyE Total assets 241,400,711 74,278,552 55,386,980 21,608,097 2,467,300 9816712 404,958,352
fifk Liabilities
EGEE YT Deposits from banks and other
[ {742 0 ; financial institutions 34,958,029 7,728,660 9,984,281 - - 1,699,955 54,370,925
[l AN Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,174,582 2,174,582
ERfH Deposits from customers 139,137,833 48,091,703 43219497 3,456,550 - 28,716,480 262,622,063
CEfFE Certificates of deposit issued 5,928,075 16,005,450 8,601,010 5,649,094 - - 36,183,629
TR Debt securities in issue 3,276,964 590,429 1,094,511 600,000 - 11,540 5,573,444
PSR AR 2 Subordinated debts measured at
HERE amortised cost 2,486,016 3,175,264 - 1,839,238 3,856,180 - 11,356,698
AR Other liabilities 144,765 - - - - 3,450,774 3,595,539
A Total liabilities 185,931,682 75,591,506 62,899,299 11,544,882 3,856,180 36,053,331 375,876,880
RSV Total interest sensitivity gap 55,469,029 (1,312,954) (7512,319) 10,063,215 (1,388,880)  (26,236,619) 29,081,472
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c) FIFEFE (4 (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
—MHAR —E=@A Z=E+-MEA —BHA T E i)
Upto 13 312 15 Over5  Non-interest il
1 month months months years years bearing Total
AER Group i T i i i il T
“E-FEFZAEtH At31 December 2010 HKS 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000
ji{i Assets
Ho RARTRERREM Cash and balances with banks and
SHBRZEE other financial institutions 33,424,924 - - - - 496,897 33,921,821
TEGRAT R A A Placements with and advances to
AR ER banks and other financial
institutions - 2,827,114 1,073,569 - - - 3,900,683
HELH R EHER Financial assets held for trading = = 14,104 25,555 6,442 159,565 205,666
RENAFRELRGER Financial assets designated at
MNRZ2REE fair value through profit or loss = = 228,000 723,345 = = 951,345
fit4MTR Derivative financial instruments - = = = = 1,884,841 1,884,841
FF - S R Loans and advances to customers,
SRR & banks and other financial
institutions 127,774,664 40,668,968 12,893,382 1,646,897 1,444,589 629,928 185,058,428
il e SR g Available-for-sale financial
investments 4,569,709 9,956,044 1,766,576 17,063,749 1,414,733 873,204 35,644,015
HEZIMEMEYE Held-to-maturity financial
investments - 699,713 464,343 - - - 1,164,056
Hi g Other assets 515,309 - - - = 3,692,289 4,207,598
WHE Total assets 166,284,606 54,151,839 16,439,974 19,459,546 2,865,764 7,736,724 266,938,453
fifi Liabilities
BOFERbER Deposits from banks and other
BRZETRE S financial institutions 11,911,116 7431456 7,404,295 - - 1,131,825 27,878,692
it EMITR Derivative financial instruments = = = = = 2,429,252 2,429,252
FEf Deposits from customers 113,741,629 34,353,541 32,266,744 2,733,177 28,424 10,420,036 193,543,551
EEf N Certificates of deposit issued 5,051,362 1,091,187 1,164,621 3,330,662 - - 10,637,832
ERfAER Debt securities in issue - 108,799 - - = 108,594 217,393
VU +:izIN ¥4 Subordinated debts measured
R atamortised cost 2,487,520 3,176,580 - - 3,855,348 - 9,519,448
HAA R Other liabilities 183,302 - - - - 2,380,152 2,563,454
ARAH Total liabilities 133,374,929 46,161,563 40,835,660 6,063,839 3,883,772 16,469,859 246,789,622
PES T R Total interest sensitivity gap 30,909,677 7990276 (24,395,686) 13,395,707 (1,018,008) (6733135) 20,148,831
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c) FIZEEFE (%) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
~WAK  —EEWA ZECHA —~B T4 TN L Kith
Upto 13 312 15 Over5  Non-interest Wit
1 month months months years years bearing Total
RHAT Bank Ti#x Tix Ti#x Ti#x Tl Tl Ti#x
it S ey e | At31 December 2011 HKS’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS’ 000
i43 Assets
BeRERTAERLEM Cash and balances with banks
EHEE T and other financialin-stitutions 98,133,572 - - - - 2203435 100,337,007
ERTREMEBBE Placements with and advances to
ZHERRER banks and other financial
institutions 364,201 6,207,349 815,624 - - - 7,387,174
LA Rk HER Financial assets held for trading - - 2 54,525 6,802 15,444 76,796
R AT EES G Financial assets designated at fair
AEZERER value through profit or loss - - 180,469 528,762 - - 709,231
it EMTH Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,076,533 2,076,533
P Rk E AR Loans and advances to customers,
(1 v4-¢ banks and other financial institutions 111,796,939 57,713,451 40,213,516 1,313,744 1,006,948 200,302 212,245,900
ks LR & Available-for-sale financial
investments 4,645,446 7,955,758 3,569,414 17,765,314 925,926 557,833 35,419,691
SRR Held-to-maturity financial
investments - 699,584 464,655 - - - 1,164,239
i ERE Other assets 512,595 - - - - 8,202,292 8,714,887
Wy Total assets 215,452,753 72,576,142 45,243,703 19,662,345 1,939,676 13,256,839 368,131,458
fifk Liabilities
FOGEY LT Deposits from banks and other
Wiz ER R A financial institutions 32,160,531 6,899,007 9,455,031 - - 1,969,604 50,484,173
it &MTHR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,174,582 2,174,582
KF Deposits from customers 126,042,229 45,379,314 31,096,076 572,504 - 29369909 232,460,032
BE Y2 ¢l Certificates of deposit issued 5,928,075 16,005,450 8,601,010 5,649,094 - - 36,183,629
EETER Debt securities in issue 3,276,964 590,429 1,094,511 600,000 - 11,540 5,573,444
PSR AR AR Subordinated debts measured at
HERE amortised cost 2,486,016 3,175,264 - 1,839,238 3,856,180 - 11,356,698
g & Other liabilities 144,765 - - - - 2,831,593 2,976,358
ARAH Total liabilities 170,038,580 72,049,464 50,246,628 8,660,836 3,856,180 36,357,228 341,208,916
AR P A Total interest sensitivity gap 45,414,173 526,678 (5,002925) 11,001,509 (1916504)  (23,100,389) 26,922,542
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c) FIFEFE (4 (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
—MHAR —E=@A Z=E+-MEA —BHA T E i)
Upto 13 312 15 Over5  Non-interest il
1 month months months years years bearing Total
@ Bank i T i i i il T
“E-FEFZAEtH At31 December 2010 HKS 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000
ji{i Assets
RGeS Ve Cash and balances with banks and
SHBRZEE other financial institutions 29,623,866 - - - - 442,082 30,065,948
TEGRAT R A A Placements with and advances to
AR ER banks and other financial
institutions 328,664 4,675,962 1,520,622 - - - 6,525,248
HELH R HER Financial assets held for trading = = 14,104 25,555 6,442 22,440 68,541
REDAFRELRER Financial assets designated at
NkZ &HEE fair value through profit or loss = = 228,000 723,345 = = 951,345
fit4MTE Derivative financial instruments - = = = = 1,884,841 1,884,841
75 JFIN ﬁﬁ & ﬁﬁﬂ ﬁ ﬁﬂ Loans and advances to customers,
Mt B3k banks and other financial
institutions 119,374,851 36,667,538 7,824,496 157,028 1,115,033 629,928 165,768,874
s SRR E Available-for-sale financial
investments 4,569,709 9,956,044 1,766,576 17,063,749 1,414,733 872,891 35,643,702
HEZIMEMEYE Held-to-maturity financial
investments - 699,713 464,343 - - - 1,164,056
Hi g Other assets 515,309 - - - = 5,884,322 6,399,631
W Total assets 154,412,399 51,999,257 11,818,141 17,969,677 2,536,208 9,736,504 248,472,186
fifi Liabilities
EGEEY SR Deposits from banks and other
LEHRE financial institutions 9,918,626 6,638,446 7,086,691 = = 1,133,420 24,777,183
it EMIR Derivative financial instruments = = = = = 2,429,252 2,429,252
KRG Deposits from customers 109,551,270 32,707,272 25,328,297 825,774 28,424 11,037,178 179,478,215
EEffE Certificates of deposit issued 5,051,362 1,091,187 1,164,621 3,330,662 - - 10,637,832
EHfER Debt securities in issue - 108,799 - - = 108,594 217,393
DR RAARZ Subordinated debts measured
HER atamortised cost 2,487,520 3,176,580 - - 3,855,348 - 9,519,448
i 5 Other liablties 183,302 - - - - 2,397,156 2,580,458
ARAH Total liabilities 127,192,080 43,722,284 33,579,609 4,156,436 3,883,772 17,105,600 229,639,781
PES T R Total interest sensitivity gap 27,020,319 8,276,973 (21,761,468) 13,813,241 (1,347,564) (7,369,096) 18,832,405
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Trading portfolio

The Group’s control of interest rate risk is based on restricting
individual operations to trading within the market risk
limits, and a list of permissible instruments authorised by
the Board. In particular, trading in the derivative products
is supported by robust control systems whereas more
complicated derivatives are basically undertaken on a back-to-
back basis. Sensitivity measures, concentration and stop-loss
limits are used as the risk management tools. Risk limits are
independently monitored on a daily basis.

Non-trading portfolio

The principal objective of interest rate risk management of
non-trading portfolios (also known as “banking book”) is to
optimise net interest income but without exposing to excessive
risk. This is done on a daily basis by the Global Markets and
Trading Department (“GMT”) taking over the interest rate risk
in non-treasury business under the supervision of the ALCO.
When the behavioural characteristics of a product differ from
its contractual characteristics, the behavioural characteristics
are assessed to determine their actual underlying interest rate
risk. The ALCO monitors all such behavioural assumptions
and interest rate risk positions to ensure they comply with
interest rate risk limits established by the Board. Interest rate
risk limits are set for the purpose of governing the interest
rate risk arising from non-trading portfolio. The limits are
measured and independently monitored on a regular basis.

There are four primary forms of interest rate risk faced by
the Group with regard to its banking book: re-pricing (or
maturity mismatch) risk, yield curve risk, basis risk and option
risk. Interest rate risk is measured in relation to the impact
of changes in interest rates on earnings or economic values
assuming all other factors remain constant, e.g., no action
taken by GMT or other business units to mitigate the impact of
this interest rate risk and interest rates of all maturities move
by the same amount. Prepayment and early withdrawal of
customer loans or deposits are usually not entertained or with
fees paid.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c)

2011

N
RMB
H#E®L
HKS$ million

Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest rate exposures in banking book

Sensitivities of earnings or economic value to interest rate

changes are summarised below:

2011 2010 2010 2010 2010
Bt T % ARH Bt
EUR HKS Uss RMB EUR

HHE®BL EEET EEET BB AEEET
HKS million HK$ million HKS million HKS$ million  HKS$ million

fis Fi| 2+ 5720018 Impact on earnings
AR AR 1210 A over the next 12
1 B 2 months if interest
rates rise by 200
basis points (77) 558

i 1 % #2001 Impact on economic

HE R EE value if interest
M EHR rates rise by 200
basis points (71) 470

IR TS ARE DU T RO AT

(1) Wi AR S R BT R )

(i) AL4 LA S )
(i) WHERERER R

(iv) VA 20 B A EOR 8 B e
B .
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122

(27)

(4) 338 166 (87) (19)

- (126) 536 19 1

The analysis is based on the following assumptions:

@

(ii)

(iii)

there is a parallel shift in the yield curve and in interest
rates;

there are no other changes to the portfolio;
there is no loan prepayment; and

deposits without fixed maturity dates are repriced on the
next day.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The tables below show the last stress tests on the Bank’s trading
and investment portfolios conducted in December 2011 and
2010 respectively. The testing scenario (bps of yield curve
shift) of the stress test represents the sensitivity to a reasonable
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Bank’s income statement:

R4 2011
328 By 2 ) 3l e D g 0k Interest rate stress test for interest rate trading
Tkt T B
HKS$’ 000 Scenario
L300 A Jie
Light Moderate Extreme
~100fHEEEE  +100fE 22 —200fHEE R +200fHEEEE  -300fH A% +300fH HEE
ZE 4 B B Yield curve shift -100 bps +100 bps -200 bps +200 bps -300 bps +300 bps
SR December
+=A 2011 (8,834) (2,154) (20,567) (4,295) (26,550) (6,415)
B M I 8 IR 2 B o B Interest rate risk for investment book debt securities
(HTMM#E )7 REENE:SF) (exclude HTM book and EFNs)
Tkt 502 #
HK$’000 Scenario
L300 A Jige T %54 kot 2 5 45 5 T
Light Moderate Extreme Yield curve steepen Yield curve flatten
+100MH 2 +200fH 22 +300f02% 10022 300fHEE  100fHEE 30000
NS T Yield curve shift +100 bps +200 bps +300 bps 100 bps 300 bps 100 bps 300 bps
TR December
+=H 2011 (47,638) (96,256) (144,921) (47,747) (153,020) (47,199) (141,524)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c) FIZE s () (c) Interest rate risk (continued)

TR 23 AT (4D Sensitivity analysis (continued)

i e 2010

338 Hy 2 ) 3l e oy 0k Interest rate stress test for interest rate trading
Tt T4
HKS$’ 000 Scenario

i A Jige T
Light Moderate Extreme
-100fH2%  +100f8 265 200258 +200fH2EE:  -300H2EEE  +30018 2%

ZEMARESY Yield curve shift -100 bps +100 bps -200 bps +200 bps -300 bps +300 bps
ZE R4 December
=5 2010 (4,152) (31,018) (8,351) (61,568) (12,598) (91,443)

B ¥ YR JE A 5 2 ) A L B Interest rate risk for investment book debt securities

(HTMHE /7 REFNE:SF) (exclude HTM book and EFNs)
Tt &L Hr
HK$’000 Scenario

£ il i T ZE s LT Z R mRET
Light Moderate Extreme Yield curve steepen Yield curve flatten
+100fHAEE  +200f8 % +300fHAEH  100fA RS 300fHAEE  100fHAER  300fHEE
EYSYETE T Yield curve shift +100 bps +200 bps +300 bps 100 bps 300 bps 100 bps 300 bps
“ER R December
+=H 2010 (307,851) (568,936) (811,963) (201,347) (498,724) (165,119) (414,232)
(d)  E¥mER (d)  Currency risk

B LB TG < kR 2 fE (TR A 4 A
171 A6 £ 38 4 B 2 JE By

A G [ 2 A1 B JL By T 2 47 < il i 3 T
HEAT Z AN NESS By KR A i A 45 F SR AT 36
B2 BWE B o R Ik 3 o) SE S A 2 B
BEELBR Ty S TG A > Dk
P At e 2 A TE R AR IR AU AT AR L
o BT 2 1 e B A B o AL
W A LB A4 2 A o PR B AT R
H s B g% -

T AR A A [ 2 AR SRAT T 2 S T
W o %2R B AR 4 B T A SRAT 45 IR Th (L
SR B E KA A WIET 8
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Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group’s foreign exchange exposures mainly comprise
foreign exchange dealing by GMT and currency exposures
originated from the Group’s banking business. Currency
exposures arising from non-trading businesses are transferred
to GMT for centralised management within foreign
exchange position limits approved by the Board of Directors.
Management has set limits on positions by currency.
Positions are independently monitored by Risk Management
Department against the approved limits on a daily basis.

The tables below summarise the Group’s and the Bank’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. Included in the
tables are the Group’s and the Bank’s assets and liabilities at
carrying amounts, categorised by currency.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d) B WE B () (d)  Currency risk (continued)
WL e b H5k
HKS$ Us$ Other Total

A AR Group T T#L T T#x
—Z——4t+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2011 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
% Assets
B4 T AE SRATR) 2 B I Cash and balances with banks and other

A 43 R M 2 A5 AF Financial institutions 33,056,139 40,949,438 38,109,718 112,115,295
TESRAT J Hofth 4 Rl A A Placements with and advances to banks

AR and other financial institutions 300,000 110,364 9,450,440 9,860,804
FEPE 28 5 i 4 T e Financial assets held for trading 181,036 6,802 54,550 242,388
1872 L PR AR i 4 R Financial assets designated at fair value

ARZ G through profit or loss 104,790 604,441 - 709,231
P AT R H A4 R Loans and advances to customers, banks

Bz B3 and other financial institutions 89,489,716 89,401,032 58,597,928 237,488,676
ey & SRR E Available-for-sale financial investments 1,443,296 24,697,363 10,132,750 36,273,409
FAEIMEmEE Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,164,239 - - 1,164,239
SN T 2 B Investment in an associate 213,667 - - 213,667
7 2 I H A Je Y Goodwill and other intangible assets 972,363 - 45,115 1,017,478
BBy Investment properties 43,400 - 32,416 75,816
Y ENE L] Property, plant and equipment 458,899 - 134,595 593,494
HA & Other assets 939,287 1,808,739 379,296 3,127,322
B Total 128,366,832 157,578,179 116,936,808 402,881,819
£ Liabilities
SRAT IR] 3 B At 4 Deposits from banks and other financial

R 2 A7 3K &5 B institutions 19,393,050 23,523,891 11,453,984 54,370,925
HF AR Deposits from customers 117,502,624 64,138,949 80,980,490 262,622,063
DT Certificates of deposit issued 3,864,550 18,140,079 14,179,000 36,183,629
BBITEE Debt securities in issue 3,111,540 2,338,493 123,411 5,573,444
DA AR AR Z Subordinated debts measured at

AR amortised cost 1,000,000 8,517,460 1,839,238 11,356,698
HAbAfE > @RBT Other liabilities, including current and

R LB IH A R deferred tax liabilities 1,154,806 1,226,858 1,213,875 3,595,539
M Total 146,026,570 117,885,730 109,789,998 373,702,298
Y BB A R Net on-balance sheet position (17,659,738) 39,692,449 7,146,810 29,179,521
15 SRk Credit commitments 76,334,872 24,819,304 17,426,347 118,580,523
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d) EWE B () (d)  Currency risk (continued)
ST ESVTH HAth st
HKS$ US$ Other Total
AL Group T T THIT T
“E—-FEF+H=+—H At 31 December 2010 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
243 Assets
B4 R A SRATIR) 2 B T Cash and balances with banks and

At 4 T MR A 2 5 A other financial institutions 11,702,524 11,208,845 11,010,452 33,921,821
TESRAT B HAth 4 Rl A A Placements with and advances to banks

2R BB and other financial institutions = 2,137,712 1,762,971 3,900,683
IR 5 Mg S G Financial assets held for trading 159,816 6,442 39,408 205,666

B8 LA AR I 42 R Financial assets designated at fair value

AR Z 4 RE through profit or loss 334,916 616,429 - 951,345
P RAT R HoA 4 B Loans and advances to customers,

e 2 B banks and other financial institutions 97,949,598 66,134,963 20,973,867 185,058,428
itk S mE g Available-for-sale financial investments 2,620,676 26,782,641 6,240,698 35,644,015
BEEINMEMTE Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,164,056 = = 1,164,056
RS AR ZE Investment in an associate 192,987 - - 192,987
7 2 S H A T B Goodwill and other intangible assets 972,412 - 44,235 1,016,647
i§-C/ES Investment properties 28,000 - 25,765 53,765
ENE L] Property, plant and equipment 408,257 = 93,594 501,851
HAth & e Other assets 996,535 1,212,620 233,193 2,442,348
HH Total 116,529,777 108,099,652 40,424,183 265,053,612
114 Liabilities
SRAT 7 3 J% oA 455 Deposits from banks and other financial

HERE 2 173 S 4 B institutions 8,427,673 15,592,075 3,858,944 27,878,692
%P Deposits from customers 94,533,521 68,162,543 30,847,487 193,543,551
O 847 Certificates of deposit issued 5,698,472 2,389,793 2,549,567 10,637,832
TS Debt securities in issue 108,594 108,799 = 217,393
DAHE 85 A A BR 2 Subordinated debts measured at

HAE IE amortised cost 1,000,000 8,519,448 - 9,519,448
HA a6 fEsaTk Other liabilities, including current and

R 4 o JH 4 iR deferred tax liabilities 1,116,775 942,332 504,347 2,563,454
W Total 110,885,035 95,714,990 37,760,345 244,360,370
g A BRI Net on-balance sheet position 5,644,742 12,384,662 2,663,838 20,693,242
GG Credit commitments 68,933,364 33,409,097 2,950,492 105,292,953
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

WL e b H5k
HKS$ Us$ Other Total
A HAT Bank T T T T#x
—“Z——4t+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2011 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
% Assets
B4 I AE $RAT [R] 2 B Cash and balances with banks and

A 43 R M A 2 A5 AF other financial institutions 33,285,068 39,267,644 27,784,295 100,337,007
TESRAT R Hofth 4 Rl A A Placements with and advances to banks

AR and other financial institutions 92,200 1,908,250 5,386,724 7,387,174
FEfE22 5 i 4 Wb A e Financial assets held for trading 15,444 6,802 54,550 76,796
8 7€ LA T (E Al 4 R Financial assets designated at fair value

ARZ GG through profit or loss 104,790 604,441 - 709,231
P AT R H A4 R Loans and advances to customers,

Bz B3 banks and other financial institutions 89,336,930 87,595,731 35,313,239 212,245,900
i L 85 5 45 Rl 1% Available-for-sale financial investments 1,442,984 24,697,363 9,279,344 35,419,691
HAEEIMEMEE Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,164,239 - - 1,164,239
TR s ) 2 BE Investment in an associate 138,138 - - 138,138
M A 2 B Investments in subsidiaries 400,403 - 3,567,704 3,968,107
7R T Al T Goodwill and other intangible assets 949,908 - - 949,908
REYE Investment properties 43,400 - - 43,400
LEN & d Property, plant and equipment 458,465 - - 458,465
HoAfth & Other assets 1,023,666 1,807,059 326,144 3,156,869
M Total 128,455,635 155,887,290 81,712,000 366,054,925
£ Liabilities
AT IR 2 K H A Deposits from banks and other financial

T 2 AR A institutions 19,549,865 22,662,275 8,272,033 50,484,173
EF AR Deposits from customers 117,965,596 63,622,850 50,871,586 232,460,032
T T Certificates of deposit issued 3,864,550 18,140,079 14,179,000 36,183,629
C#TER Debt securities in issue 3,111,540 2,338,493 123,411 5,573,444
DAHE8F A AR 2 Subordinated debts measured at

A8 amortised cost 1,000,000 8,517,460 1,839,238 11,356,698
HA e wiEsAT Other liabilities, including current and

J AR JE BT A R deferred tax liabilities 1,231,248 1,223,446 521,664 2,976,358
A Total 146,722,799 116,504,603 75,806,932 339,034,334
BEABRRNARTH Net on-balance sheet position (18,267,164) 39,382,687 5,905,068 27,020,591
Y Credit commitments 76,081,872 23,389,189 3,685,268 103,156,329
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d) EWE B () (d)  Currency risk (continued)
ST ESVTH HAth st
HKS$ US$ Other Total
A ERTT Bank T 0 Tt AR AR
“E—-FEF+H=+—H At 31 December 2010 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
243 Assets
B4 RAERATIR 8 Cash and balances with banks and other
At 4 MR A 2 5 A financial institutions 11,595,265 10,783,788 7,686,895 30,065,948
T SRAT J i Ath 4 04 A% Placements with and advances to banks
ZAER BB and other financial institutions 220,000 3,883,407 2,421,841 6,525,248
IR 5 Mg S G Financial assets held for trading 22,691 6,442 39,408 68,541
B8 DA AR i 42 R Financial assets designated at fair value
A2 4 BB through profit or loss 334,916 616,429 - 951,345
P RAT R HoA 4 B Loans and advances to customers, banks
e 2 B and other financial institutions 97,629,099 63,134,736 5,005,039 165,768,874
L& SR g Available-for-sale financial investments 2,620,363 26,782,641 6,240,698 35,643,702
BAEEIMERMTRE Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,164,056 = = 1,164,056
NE S AT Z E Investment in an associate 138,138 - - 138,138
il NEIPaE ¥ Investments in subsidiaries 400,403 = 1,716,538 2,116,941
TR S At AT Goodwill and other intangible assets 949,957 - - 949,957
BE W Investment properties 28,000 - - 28,000
ENET L Property, plant and equipment 407,727 = = 407,727
HAh & 7 Other assets 1,263,367 1,214,928 280,573 2,758,868
HE Total 116,773,982 106,422,371 23,390,992 246,587,345
£ Liabilities
SRAT 7 3 I A 45 Deposits from banks and other financial
M 2 A7 3K I 55 B institutions 8,429,130 14,784,320 1,563,733 24,777,183
&R Deposits from customers 95,040,484 67,499,392 16,938,339 179,478,215
O 847 17 Certificates of deposit issued 5,698,472 2,389,793 2,549,567 10,637,832
T E S Debt securities in issue 108,594 108,799 = 217,393
DI S A AR 2 Subordinated debts measured at
BRI amortised cost 1,000,000 8,519,448 - 9,519,448
HAbA R > @B Other liabilities, including current and
o A S TE A A deferred tax liabilities 1,365,284 945,680 269,494 2,580,458
B Total 111,641,964 94,247,432 21,321,133 227,210,529
% £ N A R Net on-balance sheet position 5,132,018 12,174,939 2,069,859 19,376,816
15 e Credit commitments 68,468,434 19,652,514 754,020 88,874,968
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

Stress test

The tables below show the last stress tests conducted in
December which calculated the change in dollar term of
a reasonably possible movement of spot rates and foreign

- ?EZ AT e st B A AR 2 exchange volatility for 2011 and 2010, with all other variables
%0 nfi 2 84t - held constant.
- SSE: 2011
A HE 47 e Bl B JE )y 03 Risk stress testing for foreign exchange position
T # T 5 8L 4 Wi
HKS$’000 Scenario
R A e
Light Moderate Extreme
B 391 (9%) B39 (12%) WP 381 (15%)
Spot (9%) Spot (12%) Spot (15%)
i (3%) W (4%) B (5%)
Volatility (3%) Volatility (4%) Volatility (5%)
5 I I 5H K% gt i 52 1) Worst of spot and volatility change
(NRHEEBRSL) (excluding CNY) (14,778) (19,435) (24,126)
T T W 0L 43 B
HK$’ 000 Scenario
L2 LA Jite T
Light Moderate Extreme
BP9 (1%) BP9 (3%) B 81 (5%)
Spot (1%) Spot (3%) Spot (5%)
W W (5%) e (5%) W W (5%)
Volatility (5%) Volatility (5%) Volatility (5%)
e A1 BRIV K b W 5 ) Worst of spot and volatility change
(AR (CNY) (5,453) (16,358) (27,264)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

JEE 7 305 (40 Stress test (continued)
AR 2010
A1 R 2 4% JL B JRE ) 3t Risk stress testing for foreign exchange position
T 1% DL 43 Hr
HK$’ 000 Scenario
LEE it A fie =
Light Moderate Extreme
B (2%) RIHA (5%) R 1 (15%)
Spot (2%) Spot (5%) Spot (15%)
PR (5%) PR (5%) R (5%)
Volatility (5%) Volatility (5%) Volatility (5%)
5 A B 40 R 3 i 5 Worst of spot and volatility change
(N R BRAM (excluding CNY) (3,889) (4,577) (5,588)
TH#TT 1% P43 A
HK$’ 000 Scenario
A 1L fge =
Light Moderate Extreme
U4 (19%) T 5A (3%) R8I (5%)
Spot (1%) Spot (3%) Spot (5%)
PR (5%) PR (5%) PR (5%)
Volatility (5%) Volatility (5%) Volatility (5%)
e A1 BRIV K W 5 ) Worst of spot and volatility change
(AR (CNY) (4,254) (14,105) (25,661)

SR 9 i 5 SR B B R T S B ) B
HE < 3 R IEAE B T T 3 S B S R 4%
e BRI s B A AR T A S R
J1 B EE FARTS b o S R JEL B ) 3 S
T AR s 1 DL 2 R Tl L B T

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011

According to recent market data, it showed that the volatility
of G7 currencies exchange rate was rising, and hence market
risk was also increasing. Therefore, in 2011 market risk stress
test program review, the light and moderate hypothetical
scenarios of FX risk had been revised in accordance with the
market situations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of the equity
portfolio decrease as the result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual stocks. Since the
second half of 2006, the Group has begun to take market risk
positions in shares at the time of their respective IPO process.
Concentration limits and stop-loss limits are set for individual
shares. Market risk positions on equity are relatively not
sizeable at this stage.

The Group’s equity exposures in 2011 and 2010 are mainly
long-term equity investments which are reported as
“available-for-sale financial investments” set out in Note
27. Equities held for trading purpose are included under
“Financial assets held for trading” set out in Note 23. These are
subject to risk management control procedures.

The Group takes into account its equity exposure as part of
risk-weighted assets for the purpose of calculating the capital

adequacy ratios.

Valuation and technique methodologies applied on equity

B R B 20 3R o A A 1 1A NI A investments are detailed in Note 2 of the financial statements.
R o There are no significant changes during the current reporting
period.
2011 2010
T#xT T
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
A R RS BLRE A A Y Cumulative realised gains arising from sales and
SR B liquidations of equity exposure - 614,353
57 SRAT B4 fott i T B AR Total unrealised gains recognised in the Bank’s
{H A B i 2R AR reserve but not through the income statement
R B R 1 S 5T 309,602 624,612

S RE O AN T L SR AL 4 7
A SRAT 9 B A0 AR 1Ay 19 A e
R Bk 4 1) B

Unrealised gains included in the Bank’s supplementary
capital for capital adequacy ratio purpose
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Liquidity risk management
is therefore to ensure adequate cash flows to meet all financial
obligations under both normal and contingency circumstances in
a cost-effective manner and within regulatory requirements. To
manage liquidity risk, the Group has established asset and liquidity
management policies that are reviewed by the relevant functional
committees, with prominent issues approved by the Board. Liquidity
is also managed and forecasted on a daily basis to enable GMT and
the relevant functional committee to act proactively according to the
changing market conditions and to implement contingent plans on a
timely basis. Stress tests are regularly performed to assess contingent
funding needs and the adequacy of funds to meet them. In case of
shortage identified, the corresponding remedial measures will be
executed. The Group continues to explore and diversify funding
channels to capitalise on opportunities for the Group’s business
expansion. Concrete funding from the parent company, ICBC,
has proven to be efficient in strengthening the Group’s liquidity
capability.

The liquidity position remained affluent throughout 2011 with an
average liquidity ratio of 41.7% (Average for 2010: 42.9%), that was
well above the statutory requirement of 25%.

In early 2009, the Group set up a new Asset and Liability
Management Department to support the ALCO in the latter’s
implementation of liquidity risk monitoring and control. The
Group has always a high vigilance for liquidity risk management,
relying much more significantly on customers’ deposits than on
inter-bank funding, particularly in volatile times. The Group will
continue to take the necessary measures commensurate with its scale
and complexity of operation to strengthen its liquidity capability,
including meeting various stress scenarios and liquidity risk
requirements.

The matching and controlled mismatching assets and liabilities
are fundamental to the liquidity management of the Group. It is
unusual for banks to be completely matched, as transactions often
entail uncertain terms and are often of different types. While an
unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, it increases
the interest rate risk and the liquidity risk of an entity.

As the trading and available-for-sale portfolios may be sold before
maturity or deposit from customers may mature without being
withdrawn, the contractual maturity dates do not totally represent
the expected timing and availability of future cash flows.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitments because the Group does not generally expect its third
parties to draw funds under the agreements. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or be terminated without being funded.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The tables below analyse assets and liabilities of the Group and the
Bank as at 31 December into relevant maturing groupings based
on the remaining period at the end of reporting period date to the
contractual maturity date.

AER I —% =2
WiEEE  —MAK WA WA —FhiFE EENE
Repayable Upto 13 3-12 1-5 Over fER it
on demand 1 month months months years Syears  Indefinite Total
KM Group T T T T T T T T
i S g | At31 December 2011 HKS’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000
i3 Assets
RERAERITRERLM Cash and balances with banks
eERHZER and other financial institutions 39,246,439 67,587,149 - - - - 5081707 112,115295
(RGP EA L T Placements with and advances to banks
LHEHREHR and other financial institutions - - 4,515,467 5,345,337 - - - 9,860,804
R ReHEE Financial assets held for trading - - - 25 54,525 6,802 181,036 242,388
RENAFHERNER Financial assets designated at
ANEZERERE fair value through profit or loss
S &SR - other debt securities - - - 180,469 528,762 - - 709,231
fiE2MTH Derivative financial instruments 170,723 220,175 273,238 407,425 429,041 575,931 - 2,076,533
KPS R A BB E Loans and advances to customers, banks
ZEH and other financial institutions 26549181 13,007,731 35903978 64,269,111 66,730,677 31,027,998 - 237,488,676
it E LR Available-for-sale financial investments
— i f AR - treasury bills - - 59,729 238,563 - - - 298,292
~IREFE S5 - equity securities - - - - - - 550,505 550,505
—[rfeh 2 Fa -~ certificates of deposit held - 369,777 615896 1,153,349 384,556 - - L5B578
% - other debt securities S L2481 1303,012 5735839 23,652,821 986,831 7,640 32,901,034
NEZHHORNE Held-to-maturity financial investments
—Ff R - treasury bills - - 699,584 464,655 - - - 1164239
REEAFAZEE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 213,667 213,667
HELAELEE Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 1,017,478 1,017,478
REmE Investment properties - - - - - - 75,816 75,816
EIT ] Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 593,494 593,494
i Other assets 25,281 779,969 218,655 813,281 185,529 S LI04607 3,127,322
W Total assets 65991624 83,179,632 43,589,619 78,608,054 91965911 32,597,562  9,025950 404,958,352
il Liabilities
RAFERA MR Deposits from banks and other financial
AR &R institutions 5,056,658 3L60LAIL 7,262,200 9,984,236 466,330 - - 54370925
fikZMTH Derivative financial instruments 12,269 305,260 228,873 440,809 789,767 397,604 - 2,174,582
ERfH Deposits from customers 77873063 88,863,846 49190953 43,237,651 3,456,550 - - 262,622,063
CHfTHRE Certificates of deposit issued - 490135 12,000565 13,632,780 5,649,049 - - 36,183,629
CE#T R Debt securities in issue - 10,820 591149 4371475 600,000 - - 5573444
VABESH AR AR 2 % B O Subordinated debts measured
atamortised cost - - - 1,000,000 6500518 3,856,180 - 11,356,698
Hitsf aFnk Other liabilities, including current and
BIEHEAE deferred tax liabilities 114,595 497,468 790468 1,951,507 241,267 - B4 3,595,539
A MK Total liabilities 83,056,585 126,180,040 70,064,298 74618458 17,703,481 4,253,784 24 375,876,880
Y A Netliquidity gap (17,064961)  (43,000408) (26474,679) 3,989,596 74,262,430 28343778 9025716 29,081,472
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4 W I A B ) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 {ﬁ y] ﬁﬁ’-ﬁ Fﬁ (%) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
HEKE -% B
MrEE  —WAR =R TZEA —ERE RENE
Repayable Upto ik 312 15 Over ERH At
on demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
] Group T Tk T Tt T Tt T T
ZE-BETZASA-R At31 December 2010 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
K Assets
B4 RFERITRERL D Cash and balances with banks and
SHBRZEE other financial institutions 10,830,668 20,971,719 - = - - 944 3928
TR REME BB Placements with and advances to banks
ZHA R and other financial institutions = - 28714 073569 = = - 3,900,683
WIELH B R R Financial assets held for trading - - - 14,104 25,555 6,442 159,565 205,666
REUAFHERRGEE Financial assets designated at fair value
MNEZERERE through profit or loss
~HibfE% - other debt securites - = - 228,000 723,345 = = 951,345
fMEgMIA Derivative financial instruments 9,582 419,634 302,776 772,706 208,690 171,453 - 1884841
K ST RS R e Loans and advances to customers, banks
ZEH and other financial institutions 20,789,989 14115612 14254798 33058464 68143678 32695887 - 185058428
il e LR Available-for-sale financial investments
GE o - equity securities - - - - - - 865,251 865,251
—[iReE 2 - certificates of deposit held = = 421,606 461820 1,208,306 = - 209173
—H 5% - other debt securities - 1554541 488020 3045981 26044712 1545824 7953 32,687,032
REZIMERRY Held-to-maturity financial investments
-EERE - treasury bills - - 699,713 464343 = = - 1164056
REE AT 2 E Investment in an associate - - - - - - 192,987 192,987
T8 R B Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - L6647 1016647
fEmE Investment properties - - - - - - 53,765 53,765
VEVTL Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 501,851 501,851
HibgE Other assets 10,591 533,901 109,461 637,613 138,873 - L0909 2,440,348
mER Total assets 3640830 37595407 19,103489 39756600 96493159 34419606 5929362 266938453
£k Liabilities
BTRERIb SRR Deposits from banks and other financial
LIS RE R institutions 4641286 8401654 7431459 7404293 - - - 278869
fikEMIR Derivative financial instruments 5470 160,565 41,089 754,703 681,79 405,629 - 240905
RN Deposits from customers 49368349 74287952 34610714 32475968 2,772,144 28,424 - 193,543,551
CERITRE Certificates of deposit issued - - LO9LIST 4791950 4754695 - - 10,637,832
EE 1T Debt securities in issue - 87,957 129,436 = = = = 217,393
DA B8 R A B Subordinated debts measured
LERER atamortised cost - - - 61880 3487520 5410048 - 9519448
Hibfif - B8R Other liabilities, including current and
JEAERH AR deferred tax liabilities 99,083 571,689 0484 1003677 97,520 10,634 138367 2,563,454
ik Total liabilities 54114188 83509817 44106369 47072471 11793675 5854735 138367 246,789,622
B A kR Net liquidity gap (0473358)  (45914410)  (25,002,880)  (7515871) 84699484 28564871 5790995 20,148,831
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4 R KA B (50 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 {ﬁyj ﬁﬁ’-ﬁ Fﬁ (%) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
HERW —& =8
WistEE  —MAK WA tSHR —FiE EENE
Repayable Upto 13 3-12 1-5 Over RN it
on demand 1 month months months years Syears  Indefinite Total
ARt Bank T T T Ti#x Ti#x T Ti#x Ti#x
i S S e e | At 31 December 2011 HKS’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 Assets
BeRESTFAERL M Cash and balances with banks and
EL AT other financial institutions 40,821,555 59,515,452 - - - - - 100,337,007
(RGP R T Placements with and advances to banks
2RI RER and other financial institutions - - 4800746 2,586,428 - - - 78174
R eMEE Financial assets held for trading - - - 25 54,525 6,802 15,444 76,796
RENATHERNER Financial assets designated at fair value
MNEZ&BERE through profit or loss
SR - other debt securities - - - 180,469 528,762 - - 709,231
fEe@Ia Derivative financial instruments 170,723 220,175 273,38 407,425 429,041 575,931 - 2076533
P B REM BB Loans and advances to customers, banks
ZEH and other financial institutions 26347497 11630392 32,941,703 53,864,993 58,784,786 28,676,529 - 212,245,900
il Esmi g Available-for-sale financial investments
-5 - equity securities - - - - - - 550,193 550,193
~FRE 2 F - certificates of deposit held - 369,777 615896 1,153,349 384,555 - - BT
—HibfE% - other debt securities - 720,355 141434 5735839 23,652,822 986,331 7,600 32,345,921
FHEIMSRRY Held-to-maturity financial investments
— R R4k - treasury bills - - 699,584 464,655 - - - 1164239
BB G Investment in an associate - - - - - - 138,138 138,138
TRIHEA E 2 B Tnvestments in subsidiaries - - - - - - 3968107 3,968,107
T2 R IR B Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 949,908 949,908
HEmE Investment properties - - - - - - 43,400 43,400
EITL] Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 458,465 458,465
&R Other assets 16,069 833,045 186,176 782,213 179,048 - LI60318 3,156,869
W Total assets 67,355,844 73,290,196 40,758,777 65175396 84,013,539 30,246,093 7,091,613 368,131,458
fifk Liabilities
BRREREDEHERE Deposits from banks and other financial
ZHEA R institutions 5301328 28,828,807 6,899,007 9,455,031 - - - 50484173
[lific AN Derivative financial instruments 12,269 305,260 228,873 440,809 789,767 397,604 - 2174582
EFfH Deposits from customers 70,404,110 85,008,028 45,379,314 31,096,076 572,504 - - 232,460,032
BRI Certificates of deposit issued S 4901235 12,000,565 13,632,780 5,649,049 - - 36,183,629
CH#TER Debt securities in issue - 10,820 591,149 4371475 600,000 - - 5573444
VAR GH BRR A BR 2 4 1 R Subordinated debts measured
atamortised cost - - - 1,000,000 6500518 3,856,180 - 11,356,698
HAbA - QR Other liabilities, including current and
SORIEHE A £ deferred tax liabilities 102,412 479,986 705395 1,634,103 53,933 - 59 2,976,358
ABHH Total liabilities 75820119 119534136 65,804,303 61,630,274 14165771 4,253,784 529 341,208,916
¥ A Net liquidity gap (8,464275)  (46,243.940) (25,045526) 3,545,122 69,847,768 25,992,309 7,091,084 26,922,542
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4 W I A B ) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 {ﬁyj ﬁﬁ’-ﬁ Fﬁ (%) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
HEKE -% B
MrEE  —WAR =R tZEA —ERE O REE
Repayable Upto ik 312 15 Over ERH At
on demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
ART Bank T T T T T T T T
ZE-BETZASAH At31 December 2010 HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
B Assets
e R ER L Cash and balances with banks and
SRBELEE other financial institutions 10,140216 19,925,732 = = - - - 30,065,948
TERAT R A Placements with and advances to banks
LR REHR and other financial institutions - - 3841098 2,684,150 - - - 652548
RlELG R e RER Financial assets held for trading - - - 14,104 25,555 6,442 20,440 68,541
R DA B A g & Financial assets designated at fair value
MNEZ2RERE through profit or loss
—HibfE% - other debt securities = = = 228,000 723,345 = = 951,345
kST Derivative financial instruments 9,582 419,634 302,776 772,706 208,690 171,453 - 1884841
P R REME R EE Loans and advances to customers, banks
ZEH and other financial institutions 0618179 13402850 10926976 25957159 61753365 31110345 - 165,768,874
il e SR Available-for-sale financial investments
e - equity securities = = = = = = 865,251 865,251
L TiVA:S G - certificates of deposit held = = 41,606 461820 1,208,306 = - 209173
- K% - other debt securities - 1,554,541 488,021 3045981 26044712 1,545,824 7640 32,686,719
HEZHMEMRYE Held-to-maturity financial investments
— BB - treasury bills - - 699,713 464343 = = - 1164056
REE AR Z T E Investment in an associate = = = - - - 138,138 138,138
B AR 2 & Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - 2,116,941 2,116,941
[ PN ESIA Goodwill and other intangible assets = - - - - - 949,957 949,957
fE Investment properties = - = = = = 28,000 28,000
EY T Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 407,727 407,727
g Other assets 9351 795,564 110,608 640,110 138873 - 064362 2,758,868
wEw Total assets 777308 36098321 16790798 34268373 90,102,846 32834064 5600456 248,472,186
ffi Liabilities
BIRERIbSH Deposits from banks and other financial
BRZET LSS institutions 4413167 6638879 6638446 7,086,691 - = - 4777183
fikEMIR Derivative financial instruments 5470 160,565 41,089 754,703 681,796 405,629 - 24929
KF s Deposits from customers 4460877 TBITSTL Q07272 25308097 825,774 28,424 - 179478215
EEfTET# Certificates of deposit issued - - LO9LIST 4791950 4754695 = - 1063783
EE#THE Debt securities in issue - 87,957 129,436 = = = = 217,393
DR RA AR REFE Subordinated debts measured
at amortised cost - - - 621,880 3,487,520 5,410,048 - 9,519,448
Hibaf Qs Other liabilities, including current and
JOERER A 18 deferred tax liabilities 95,855 768,114 397317 LI7L401 41,481 - 106290 2,580,458
AR Total liabilities 5975369 80,783,086 41384747 39754922 9791266 5844101 106290 229,639,781
L b Y Net liquidity gap (19,198,041)  (44684765)  (24593,949)  (5486549) 80311580 26,989,963 5494166 18,832,405
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The tables below present the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on a gross basis by remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the
tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the
Group manages the inherent liquidity risk based on the expected
undiscounted cash inflows.

Those derivatives that will be settled on a net basis include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter (“OTC”)
currency options; and

. Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements and OTC interest rate options.

Those derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps; and
. Interest rate derivatives: cross currency interest rate swaps.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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4 B E| B A B (an)
4.4 WBYE 4 EBE ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

HERI
WFEE SMAEUT =£12MA —E T4 LR L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 it
on demand or less months years years Total
KM Group T T T T T T
. 3 i =8 | At31 December 2011 HK$’ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000
S Financial Liabilities
VSN R VAN Deposits from banks and other
R& financial institutions 5,056,710 38,981,253 10,068,013 466,330 - 54,572,306
EFfH Deposits from customers 77,993,858 138,656,479 43,924,042 3,513,918 - 264,088,297
C TR Certificates of deposit issued - 17,026,635 13,790,705 5,724,942 90,000 36,632,282
MBS BR AR 2 E BT Debt securities in issue measured
at amortised cost - 610,954 4,409,674 668,640 - 5,689,268
DB AR A MR 2 4 (B 50 Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost - 16,311 1,364,379 8,014,811 5,443,098 14,838,599
e 6 Other financial liabilities 72,581 230,821 669,734 21,054 149,001 1,143,191
SRAGAK Total financial liabilities 83,123,149 195522453 74226547 18,409,695 5,682,099 376,963,943
Rk LA Derivative cash flow
WFEERNMESRTR Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis (260) (61,375) (124,891) 1,329,078 - 1,142,552
A Total inflow 1,402,343 4,821,516 14,498,366 27,753,894 16,207,096 64,683,215
it Total outflow (1,402,603)  (4,882,891)  (14,623,257)  (26,424,816)  (16,207,096)  (63,540,663)
ARG ENMESMTE Derivative financial instruments
settled on gross basis
AL Total inflow 20,694,200 129,714,171 94,071,415 10,123,407 - 254,603,193
i it A Total outflow (20,808,549)  (125,072,069) (94,112,094) (10,353,941) - (250,346,653)
BEAMKKMEH Off-balance sheet items
—4ERYT —F T4 TR L At
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
KM Group THL T T THiL
it S 3 ey =y At31 December 2011 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BRIk Loan commitments 79,938,191 13,753,887 - 93,692,078
lRE - REH LI Guarantees, acceptances and other
B financial facilities 22,152,438 - - 22,152,438
BRI Forward forward deposits placed 2,736,007 - - 2,736,007
it Total 104,826,636 13,753,887 - 118,580,523
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4 B E| B A B (an) 4

4.4 WBYE 4 EBE ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

EFERE —“MARMT =Z+=fA DL
Repayable 3 months 3-12 NI Over5 &t
on demand or less months 1-5 years years Total
FER Group Tt Tt Tt T T Tt
“Z-FE+-H=1—H At31 December 2010 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS’ 000
SBAH Financial Liabilities
BT R R R 2 A SR B Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions 4,641,526 15,911,637 7,490,519 - - 28,043,682
KR Deposits from customers 49390201 109,104,908 32,845,753 2,946,615 28424 194315901
EEfFNE Certificates of deposit issued - 1,136,229 4,850,275 4,825,270 - 10,811,774
DIBRBH R A BR 2 B BT E % Debt securities in issue measured
atamortised cost - 218,928 - - - 218,928
DA G LR A SR 2 S B R Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost = 14,182 863,475 4,507,218 6,625,884 12,010,759
HiemaE Other financial liabilities 84,728 674,081 958,574 64,123 149,001 1,930,507
LA GAER Total financial liabilities 54116455 127,059,965 47,008,596 12,343,226 6,803,309 247,331,551
RS AR Derivative cash flow
DA ENfTE2MTR Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis (1,863) (71,418) (160,120) (24,759) 20,359 (237,801)
ABH Total inflow 640 556,805 8,500,527 25,198,292 15,425,431 49,681,695
i Total outflow (2,503) (628223)  (8,660,647)  (25223,051)  (15405072)  (49,919,496)
NAREENREEMTE Derivative financial instruments
settled on gross basis
AR Total inflow 8,539,245 91,185351 102,556,448 6,700,124 ~ 208,981,168
i it A Total outflow (8,532,947)  (91,058,265)  (102,500,684) (6,841,869) - (208,933,765)
HEAKFNEH Off-balance sheet items
—EFLT —EhE HAED E At
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
ALEH Group T#T TiHT T TiHT
“E—FE+-H=+—H At 31 December 2010 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$’ 000
Bk Loan commitments 65,270,071 17,335,621 = 82,605,692
IR BAR R LI Guarantees, acceptances and other
B A financial facilities 22,454,056 = = 22,454,056
CAER A M Forward forward deposits placed 233,205 - - 233,205
Gt Total 87,957,332 17,335,621 = 105,292,953
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4 B E| B A B (an)
4.4 WBYE 4 EBE ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

HE R
WiEE ZMARUT Z2+ZMH —F 4 TN
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 it
on demand or less months years years Total
N Bank SR SR T T TR T
ZF——HtZJ=+-0 At 31 December 2011 HKS’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
SBARK Financial Liabilities
OV EN R A Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions 5,301,380 35,803,013 9,536,525 - - 50,640,918
EFHH Deposits from customers 70,417,655 130,873,738 31,611,527 589,268 - 233,492,188
TR Certificates of deposit issued - 17,026,635 13,790,705 5,724,942 90,000 36,632,282
DASESH AR AR 2 BB AT Debt securities in issue measured
atamortised cost - 610,954 4,409,674 668,640 - 5,689,268
DG LR A BR 2 S BB R Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost - 16,311 1,364,379 8,014,811 5443,098 14,838,599
R4 mAR Other financial liabilities 85,030 601,777 1,317,201 48,426 529 2,052,963
AMAREN Total financial liabilities 75,804,065 184,932,428 62,030,011 15,046,087 5,533,607 343,346,218
A B4R Derivative cash flow
UBSREENMEEMTE Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis (260) (61,375) (124,891) 1,329,078 - 1,142,552
WA S Total inflow 1,402,343 4821516 14498366 27,753,894 16,207,096 64,683,215
it Total outflow (1,402,603)  (4,882,891)  (14,623,257)  (26,424,816)  (16,207,09)  (63,540,663)
PR SRTR Derivative financial instruments
settled on gross basis
WAL Total inflow 20,694,200 129714171 94,071,415 10,123,407 - 254,603,193
i Total outflow (20,808,549)  (125,072,069)  (94,112,094)  (10,353,941) - (250,346,653)
B AN Off-balance sheet items
—HEEUTF —Z 4 AN 5t
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
N i Bank SR T# TR T
R+ =4—H At 31 December 2011 HKS$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
Bk Loan commitments 79,351,044 9,869,939 - 89,220,983
R B AR ML Guarantees, acceptances and other
W mE financial facilities 11,199,339 - - 11,199,339
B AR IA Forward forward deposits placed 2,736,007 - - 2,736,007
EEil Total 93,286,390 9,869,939 - 103,156,329
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4 BAES B B e 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 ﬂﬁ@] gﬁ’ﬁ FXAR' (47) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
AEK
IRFERE =MARMT =Z+=fA —EHE Fik:)
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over A5t
on demand or less months years 5 years Total
ARLT Bank T T T SR SR T
“E-FEF A=A At31 December 2010 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000
SBAH Financial Liabilities
BT R R R 2 A SR B Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions 4,413,191 13,314,503 7,128,955 - - 24,856,649
KR Deposits from customers 47469905 105,998,710 25,568,895 839,084 28424 179,905,018
NS Certificates of deposit issued - 1,136,229 4,850,275 4,825,270 - 10,811,774
MBS AR BB TES Debt securities in issue measured
at amortised cost - 218,928 - - - 218,928
DA G AR A SR 2 SR BB R Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost = 14,182 863,475 4,507,218 6,625,884 12,010,759
HiemaE Other financial liabilities 84,484 898,012 948,538 39,466 106,290 2,076,790
LA GAER Total financial liabilities 51,967,580 121,580,564 39,360,138 10,211,038 6,760,598 229,879,918
RS AR Derivative cash flow
DA ENfTE2MTR Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis (1,863) (71,418) (160,120) (24,759) 20,359 (237,801)
WAKE Total inflow 640 556,805 8,500,527 25,198,292 15,425,431 49,681,695
i Total outflow (2,503) (628223)  (8,660,647)  (25223,051)  (15405072)  (49,919,496)
NAREENREEMTE Derivative financial instruments
settled on gross basis
AR Total inflow 8,539,245 91,185351 102,556,448 6,700,124 ~ 208981168
i it A Total outflow (8,532,947)  (91,058,265)  (102,500,684) (6,841,869) - (208,933,765)
HEAKFNEH Off-balance sheet items
—EHLT —BHE LN E At
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
RRAT Bank T T T T
“E-FEFZA=+—H At 31 December 2010 HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS' 000 HK$’ 000
Bk Loan commitments 65,230,101 15,413,493 = 80,643,594
IRE - RfEE R Guarantees, acceptances and other
ipr il financial facilities 7,998,169 = = 7,998,169
CHRENEBER Forward forward deposits placed 233,205 - - 233,205
Gt Total 73,461,475 15,413,493 = 88,874,968
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.5

Strategy in using financial instruments

By their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to
the use of financial instruments including derivatives. The Group
accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating rates,
and for various periods, and seeks to optimise the interest margins
by investing these funds in high-quality assets. The Group seeks to
increase these margins generally by consolidating short-term funds
and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining
sufficient liquidity in the process to meet all claims that might fall
due.

The Group also seeks to raise its interest margins, net of allowances,
through lending to commercial and retail borrowers with a range of
credit standing. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet
loans and advances but also guarantees and other commitments such
as letters of credit and performance and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments by taking positions
in OTC instruments to take advantage of short-term market
movements in currencies, interest rates and securities prices. The
Management places trading limits on the level of exposure for
trading products.

(a)  Fair value hedges
The Group hedges part of the existing Hong Kong dollar and
foreign currency interest rate risk in its fixed rate assets by
means of interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps. The net
fair value of these swaps as at 31 December 2011 was HK$486
million negative (2010: HK$430 million negative).

(b)  Cash flow hedges
The Group uses interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps
to protect against exposures to variability in future cash flows
on non-trading assets which bear interest at variable rates.
The net fair value of these swaps as at 31 December 2011 was
HK$90 million negative (2010: HK$231 million negative).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation
technique

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
The quoted market price and used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price; and the appropriate quoted market
price for financial liabilities is the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, OTC derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on observable market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. Market quotes are
used for debt securities and structured derivatives. The fair value of
interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated
future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at the
end of the reporting period.

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from
the fair value from other observable current market transactions
in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data from observable markets, the Group
immediately recognises the difference between the transaction price
and fair value (a “Day 1” profit) in “Net trading income”. In cases
where data which is not observable is used, the difference between
the transaction price and model value is only recognised in the
income statement when the inputs become observable, or when the
instrument is derecognised.

Determination of fair value hierarchy

The Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted (unadjusted) prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)

FH— FH SH= W
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
A AR Group T#x T#x T#x T
—E—-—4E A=t 31 December 2011 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
Eo 0 Financial assets
A 4 TR Derivative financial instruments
i W HME & 49 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 1,118,267 - 1,118,267
SN A 4 Structured foreign exchange contracts - 21,282 - 21,282
Edics b d| Currency swaps - 38,829 - 38,829
A1 HEE 39 HE FX options - 40,592 - 40,592
Fl Ry g Interest rate swaps - 844,740 - 844,740
Quantof4 1 Quanto swaps - 12,595 - 12,595
MR R EH Structured interest rate contracts - - - -
I SR T Equity options - 228 - 228
- 2,076,533 - 2,076,533
REX G R SRERE Financial assets held for trading
i Debts securities 61,352 - - 61,352
HERE Fund investment - - - -
i Equities 181,036 - - 181,036
242,388 - - 242,388
6 57 DL T8 (48 0k 45 38 Financial assets designated at fair value
AR & B & through profit or loss
(83 Debts securities 343,343 365,888 - 709,231
343,343 365,888 - 709,231
e & S Mg Available-for-sale financial investments
&% Debts securities 25,233,704 10,477,592 3,968 35,715,264
J 5 Equities 466,199 - - 466,199
25,699,903 10,477,592 3,968 36,181,463
il ARLAE Total financial assets 26,285,634 12,920,013 3,968 39,209,615
Eo SR Financial liabilities
A 4 TR Derivative financial instruments
A1 T 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 949,863 - 949,863
FEVESME A 4 Structured foreign exchange contracts - 21,281 - 21,281
edicsinc| Currency swaps - 171,335 - 171,335
S HEE 35 HE FX options - 31,987 - 31,987
Fl Ry g Interest rate swaps - 999,888 - 999,888
MR R AR Structured interest rate contracts - - - -
e 5 S HE Equity options - 228 - 228
- 2,174,582 - 2,174,582
878 LA PR (H 28 i it R Financial liabilities designated at
ARRZ 4 fair value through profit or loss
BB Certificates of deposit issued - 77,818 - 77,818
CEATHES Debt securities in issue - - - -
- 77,818 - 77,818
& A AR Total financial liabilities - 2,252,400 - 2,252,400

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

T SN (4 4 () Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)
S — £ - EH= A
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AAEH Group T T T THIT T
“E-FELA=ZT—H 31 December 2010 HKS$’000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$’000
LR Financial assets
it A 4 b T B Derivative financial instruments
i AN & 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts = 1,379,339 - 1,379,339
HWESNE & 4 Structured foreign exchange contracts - 11,882 - 11,882
W i 1) Currency swaps - 2,362 - 2,362
S HEE S HE EX options = 109,495 - 109,495
] 3 4w 1A Interest rate swaps = 377,168 58 377,226
Quantoi‘ﬁy}q Quanto swaps - 1,044 - 1,044
AR RE A Structured interest rate contracts - 2,687 - 2,687
B S S HE Equity options = 806 = 806
= 1,884,783 58 1,884,841
REX G R SRERE Financial assets held for trading
it Debts securities 46,101 - - 46,101
BEefRE Fund investment 137,125 S - 137,125
i Equities 22,440 = = 22,440
205,666 - - 205,666
8 E AT EE R Financial assets designated at fair value
AR & fE through profit or loss
i Debts securities 427,358 523,987 = 951,345
427,358 523,987 - 951,345
ke & S Mg Available-for-sale financial investments
(it Debts securities 24,054,176 10,715,914 722 34,770,812
i Equities 781,210 - = 781,210
24,835,386 10,715,914 722 35,552,022
il ARLAE Total financial assets 25,468,410 13,124,684 780 38,593,874
Eo SR Financial liabilities
A 4 TR Derivative financial instruments
A A A Forward foreign exchange contracts - 1,160,520 - 1,160,520
ARSI A Structured foreign exchange contracts = 11,882 = 11,882
edicsindl Currency swaps = 111,249 = 111,249
A1 e 1 HE EX options = 120,293 = 120,293
) 2 45 Interest rate swaps = 1,021,607 58 1,021,665
BRI RAH Structured interest rate contracts - 2,837 - 2,837
RS Equity options = 806 - 806
- 2,429,194 58 2,429,252
&€ AT A8 Financial liabilities designated at
AR 5 B fair value through profit or loss
ATk Certificates of deposit issued = 884,795 - 884,795
BRI ES Debt securities in issue S 108,799 - 108,799
- 993,594 - 993,594
SR AR Total financial liabilities = 3,422,788 58 3,422,846
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)

FH— FH SH= W
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
A HAT Bank T#x T#x T#x T
—E—-—4E A=t 31 December 2011 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
Eo 0 Financial assets
A 4 TR Derivative financial instruments
i W HME A 49 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 1,118,267 - 1,118,267
SN A 4 Structured foreign exchange contracts - 21,282 - 21,282
Edics b d| Currency swaps - 38,829 - 38,829
A1 HEE 39 HE FX options - 40,592 - 40,592
Fl Ry g Interest rate swaps - 844,740 - 844,740
Quantof4 1 Quanto swaps - 12,595 - 12,595
MR R EH Structured interest rate contracts - - - -
T 2 S Equity options - 228 - 228
- 2,076,533 - 2,076,533
HELS G2 2MERE Financial assets held for trading
&% Debts securities 61,352 - - 61,352
L Equities 15,444 - - 15,444
76,796 - - 76,796
168 VAT E IR R Financial assets designated at fair value
AMRZ 4 T through profit or loss
% Debts securities 343,343 365,888 - 709,231
343,343 365,888 - 709,231
L& SR g Available-for-sale financial investments
(e Debts securities 24,873,774 9,984,117 3,968 34,861,859
= Equities 466,199 - - 466,199
25,339,973 9,984,117 3,968 35,328,058
il ARLAE Total financial assets 25,760,112 12,426,538 3,968 38,190,618
Eo SR Financial liabilities
A 4 TR Derivative financial instruments
A1 T 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 949,863 - 949,863
FEVESME A 4 Structured foreign exchange contracts - 21,281 - 21,281
edicsinc| Currency swaps - 171,335 - 171,335
S HEE 35 HE FX options - 31,987 - 31,987
Fl Ry g Interest rate swaps - 999,888 - 999,888
MR R AR Structured interest rate contracts - - - -
e 5 S HE Equity options - 228 - 228
- 2,174,582 - 2,174,582
&€ AT EE R AR Financial liabilities designated at
AMRZ & B AT fair value through profit or loss
B BT S Certificates of deposit issued - 77,818 - 77,818
CEITES Debt securities in issue - - - _
- 77,818 - 77,818
GRA AR Total financial liabilities - 2,252,400 - 2,252,400

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

T SN T (4 4 () Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)
S — S5 SFH= B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARAT Bank T T T T
SE-FEFZA=1—H 31 December 2010 HKS$000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
&R Financial assets
i m TR Derivative financial instruments
i AN & 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 1,379,339 - 1,379,339
HWESNE & 4 Structured foreign exchange contracts - 11,882 - 11,882
W i 1) Currency swaps - 2,362 - 2,362
A HEE S HE EX options = 109,495 - 109,495
] 3 4w 1A Interest rate swaps = 377,168 58 377,226
Quantoi‘ﬁy}q Quanto swaps - 1,044 - 1,044
g A g Structured interest rate contracts - 2,687 - 2,687
B S S HE Equity options = 806 = 806
- 1,884,783 58 1,884,841
REX G R SRERE Financial assets held for trading
E% Debts securities 46,101 - - 46,101
IES Equities 22,440 = = 22,440
68,541 - - 68,541
58 VAT EE I R Financial assets designated at fair
ABRZ 4 T value through profit or loss
% Debts securities 427,358 523,987 - 951,345
427,358 523,987 - 951,345
5 1 85 5 4 Pl R Available-for-sale Financial investments
&% Debts securities 24,054,176 10,715,914 722 34,770,812
& Equities 781,210 = S 781,210
24,835,386 10,715,914 722 35,552,022
A E AR Total financial assets 25,331,285 13,124,684 780 38,456,749
EoGRER Financial liabilities
it e TR Derivative financial instruments
W HMES 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 1,160,520 - 1,160,520
LEEMEANE A A Structured foreign exchange contracts = 11,882 = 11,882
g st ncl Currency swaps = 111,249 - 111,249
1 TE 1 HE FX options = 120,293 = 120,293
] 5 4. 4 Interest rate swaps = 1,021,607 58 1,021,665
AR R AL Structured interest rate contracts - 2,837 - 2,837
i 55 S Equity options = 806 = 806
= 2,429,194 58 2,429,252
58 VAT EE AR R Financial liabilities designated at
UN Pt =L fair value through profit or loss
C ATk Certificates of deposit issued - 884,795 - 884,795
TS Debt securities in issue - 108,799 - 108,799
- 993,594 - 993,594
Sl A AR Total financial liabilities - 3,422,788 58 3,422,846
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4 B R B e 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
46 ZEERABEZAFEME @) 4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
BT 5 S = TR 5 Movements in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value
T T N A (G B IR Y AL = e S The following tables show the reconciliation of the opening and
T A 2 4F A7) B A BEL AR AR R 2 HIE ¢ closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities which are

recorded at fair value:

RN
PRz, AR W
(k1) 4% lkz  RF——4
gt S 3 Total gains/ Wi +-A=+—H
—H—H (losses) Total gains At
At recorded in recorded in 31 December
1 January 2011 profit or loss equity 2011
T#xL T#x T#x T#xL
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
SRERE Financial assets
MEsmTE Derivative financial instruments
| e 4510 Interest rate swaps 58 (58) = -
58 (58) - -
e & SRR g Available-for-sale financial investments
&% Debts securities 722 - 3,246 3,968
722 - 3,246 3,968
B WG Total level 3 financial assets 780 (58) 3,246 3,968
AL Financial liabilities
e LA Derivative financial instruments
| e 510 Interest rate swaps (58) 58 - -
L= AEAH Total level 3 financial liabilities (58) 58 = -
EH=GMEE /(A BERE Total net level 3 financial assets/(liabilities) 722 = 3,246 3,968
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4 B A B g BE om0 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 SmEEKIABZATEME @) 4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
WL THEE 2 FH =2/l L A2 25 () Movements in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value
(continued)
AL N
Fl gz e di / A HERR N
(1) A3 b1l =vd
e S 213 Total gains/ (BEH) M8 R-ZF—%F
—H—H (losses) Total (losses) T —H =+—H
At recorded in recordedin At 31 December
1 January 2010 profit or loss equity 2010
L L 70 FibTE
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
SWERE Financial assets
rAESMTE Derivative financial instruments
iR s R Interest rate swaps 55,681 (55,623) = 58
55,681 (55,623) - 58
e & SR E Available-for-sale financial investments
&% Debts securities 1,960 - (1,238) 722
1,960 - (1,238) 722
SRR R Total level 3 financial assets 57,641 (55,623) (1,238) 780
Eod 5L Financial liabilities
fitsm TR Derivative financial instruments
| 2 4 1 Interest rate swaps (55,681) 55,623 = (58)
FRE B WA Total level 3 financial liabilities (55,681) 55,623 - (58)
ER=SMEE /(AR FEEHE Total net level 3 financial assets/(liabilities) 1,960 = (1,238) 722
AR EE W SR ER =M TR Wi Gain/losses on Level 3 financial instruments included in the income
A statement for the year comprise:
o 5 Bl 41 o 5 B 2% i
Unrealised losses Unrealised gain Total
TH#n T#L T#xL
R4 2011 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
AR Bl 5 R Total losses included in income
Pl EisEE ) statement for the year - - -
o 5 B e 18 o 5 Bk 4 A
Unrealised losses Unrealised gain Total
TH#TT T T THTT
TR R 2010 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
AR I 55 R Total losses included in income
b EisVE statement for the year = - _
WE-F-—FF+_HA=+—HILFEE, I During the year ended 31 December 2011, there was no transfer into
M EHER =R HER =D - or out of Level 3.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Significant transfers between Level 1 and 2

The following tables show significant transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities

PN .V which are recorded at fair value:
HY 55 8 — R A A
Transfers from level 1 to level 2
2011 2010
T#L T T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
M5 BEE B SRR & Available-for-sale financial investments
(e Debts securities 1,247,641 947,074
6 78 A PB4 0 45 ] AR Financial assets designated at fair value
2 RE R through profit or loss
(e Debts securities 80,629 -

ErlEmEEbhSR - MEESR— 2R
BEEEENRAFECABAGRE S - Ml
I 2 S (L 79 A AR 8 T R B B T i A
BRI LA (77 R UG

The above financial assets were transferred from Level 1 to Level
2 as they ceased to be actively traded during the year and their fair
values were consequently obtained using valuation techniques using
observable market inputs.

HI S8 R R

Transfers from level 2 to level 1

2011 2010
T T T
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Ak 8 B G R Available-for-sale financial investments
(e Debts securities 706,149 56,850
858 LLAPE B AR it % Financial assets designated at fair value
YNty through profit or loss
&% Debts securities - 1,205,336

Lol R f SR SR R
R R RN A GRS > B AT
B (L 2 46 S 748 ) AT 9B 099 Tl 355 i A S LA
T 77 5 IS

0E T LU 42 i TR

S E R A AFEEMNFIT

(a) SRIT R A2 B H 2 47 17 RA7

A7 TR S 1) 77 2 A7 AN B A7 3K AT
BB BRIV HCHR A B > J81 5 3R A7 30 (i)
D) S FEA TR > IR
T 4 L 4 B R I 3 R 5 B R B 4 A
oo Ht s AP EEASRILRA(E

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011

The above financial assets were transferred from Level 2 to Level
1 as they have been actively traded during the year and fair values
were no longer obtained using valuation techniques using observable
market inputs.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are estimated as
follows:

(a)  Balances and placements with banks and other financial

institutions

The fair values of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits are their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest-bearing deposits, all of which are less than one
year, is based on the discounted cash flows using prevailing
money-market interest rates and the remaining maturity.
Therefore, their fair values are approximately equal to its
carrying values.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

R — HESR 2 B E A E () Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
(b)  FJT -~ RITR My R B (b)  Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions
B~ SRAT B H A <5 Rl B A 2 B ERAE Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
5% vk (B HE A5 18 51 BEE o BR/NVER 20 25 P AR K institutions are net of allowances for impairment. All items,
Hb - HERERE LUF BRI 5HE o AL except a very insignificant portion of loans and advances to
FHEEE ~ SRAT MOH A A A R customers, bear interest at a floating rate. The Group has
ZANVEERC ZEME 2 A xR assessed the fair values of loans and advances to customers,
S B VA (A 4 LI T (E AR AR banks and other financial institutions, after taking into
fEERER - account the relevant market interest rates and noted that
the total fair value is not materially different from the total
carrying value.
(c) HHEIHzHMtE (c)  Held-to-maturity financial investments
A EZRWME SR 2 AN TEETI 2 BT H The fair values of held-to-maturity debt securities are
HEFE E o W REN AT - B A determined with reference to the available market values. If
-1 B AR 5 (A Al 5 o quoted market prices are not available, then the fair value is
estimated on the basis of pricing models.
IR i 1 AP i
Carrying value Fair value
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#x R T#x R
AR B AR AT Group and Bank HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
SRE R Financial asset
FrA B e M E Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,164,239 1,164,056 1,164,133 1,163,771
(d) FF - R I7 KA R 7 R A (d)  Deposits and balances from customers, banks and other
a financial institutions
A FE 2 B AE 3RS A A A The estimated fair values of deposits and balances with no
B A 2 BV AER 19 2 B8 > 3256 2 R AL B stated maturity are the amount repayable on demand. The fair
PRSP (B B 2% HCAR T M o values of those balances having an interest at floating rate are
their carrying values.
B (7] A7 K S % A T A 3 R The estimated fair values of the fixed interest-bearing deposits
B o A T S f0 A 2 B B 4 AL of banks and deposits from customers without quoted market
i PR R R R B0 H R £5 5 A R prices are based on discounted cash flows using interest
B0 A RESE A5 ORI IR B R Al R rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity. As their
RFHE DR — 4 B> HAFEE maturity is normally less than one year from the end of the
)45 H IR HI (- reporting period, their fair values are approximately equal to
their carrying values.
(e) EFEITIFAHEREEEE (e)  Certificates of deposit issued and subordinated debts
AR 5 R GRS 2 A E AR E % IR The Group has assessed the fair values of certificates of deposit
AR B 22 i 2 it 4 o Sl VR R B AP E A after taking into account the relevant yield curve and noted
Ao LR T (A R - that the total fair value is not materially different from the total
carrying value.
) HMEERAMAM (f)  Other assets and other liabilities

oAt 7 e H A B — A AN A AL
ZAEER  DRIBEHAS R T (6 2 HL AR T
{H -

The estimated fair values of the other assets and other
liabilities, which are normally non-interest-bearing, are their
carrying values.
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4 BB B A B a0) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.7 HEARGEHL 4.7 Capital management
AL E 2 B AN B A R DA AT R R R A A The Group’s objective for managing capital is to allocate capital
2B EA > DLVEAL A TR 2 S8R in an efficient and risk-based approach to optimise risk adjusted
AR R (] g o A A ] O B L A O % A return to the shareholders. The Group periodically reviews its
FRERE 2 EAR TR L SR s R B o capital structure and maintains a strong capital base to support the
BASATIR —F —FERFIE - A% EHE development of its business. The privatisation of the Bank in 2010
BEAT T &7 >R A5 3 bE AR S S A RO facilitates greater responsiveness than before to the Group’s need
MR = F——4FE LA EEe B TN A M for capital injection from its parent company as and when it arises.
w0 BLI[A] IR - AGRAT MG SR ARIN I 25 AL A This was evidenced by the capital injection of HK$6.1 billion from
LT AR T - FEARERAT v] LA 8 LU DA i SR 4 the parent company in September 2011. At the same time, the credit
B ARG 1 T7 AE EA T B INE A - standing of the Bank is also enhanced as a result of the privatisation,
which enables the Bank to raise supplementary capital from the
capital market in a more cost-efficient manner than before.
A A [0 0 P AR A AU AT LR Mg The Group manages its capital to execute its strategic business plans
PEZEF T > ARSI R AL - AL E and support its growth and investments in an efficient way. The
R FE =T HZBOEARLL Group’s core capital ratio and capital adequacy ratio were 10% and
RICEAR T RS A F510% 5 15.9% o 455 15.9% respectively as at 31 December 2011. The Group adjusts its
VB S R o L S S R W N R A T Bt DA AL business and lending strategy from time to time to optimise its risk-
JEBS IR AL G o A T 4 Y — TH R ) A return profile. A detailed capital planning and allocation policy has
w1 K 4 BE BOK  DAHEOR 23 SF T 28 AT A B been drawn up to ensure compliance with Basel IT Pillar IT and the
FE SR T DA KA I 4 A LR R BR KR E o related HKMA requirements, engineered by the Asset and Liability
B2 B AT B B oy Bl R R G e B A B Management Department and the Risk Management Department.
o Jm o A PR 3R o
Uk 4 A B JR) R AR SRAT MR B B A The HKMA requires the Bank to maintain a ratio of total regulatory
R BT R B 2 ) CEAR 7R R FER) 7 capital to the risk-weighted asset (the capital adequacy ratio) at the
FAK 19.8% T B i — 1R :‘éQZIKf’Z‘Qﬁf o ASEHE minimum of 8% plus a capital cushion. Certain subsidiaries of the
T B JES 2 R IR 2R A G Al B L A T R Group are also subject to statutory capital requirements from other
KA ERBEERER @Fﬁ il 7B 2 5 E AR regulatory authorities, such as the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
FRAE o EARTE AR LT AR 2 M AR 4R Commission. Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital
@ "'SIEJE DL AR RN i 5T 08 2 7 R AT B are closely monitored by the Management, employing techniques
Z B o JUT T ORI 2R B LA ST BB i R based on the Capital Rules. The required information is filed with
XL THEBERER - G472 R the HKMA on a quarterly basis. The disclosure of capital adequacy
Jo 7R HE i 22 A 0 T B A R B REL and capital base are shown in Note 1 of the Supplementary Financial
Information.
DL 31 7 A SR AT A B SE T Ih 8 = Sk — 4% 45 The following exhibits the Bank’s Basel II Pillar I Regulatory Capital
BRUEEEERTER A E T —— Adequacy Ratio (“CAR”) on a consolidated basis. During the two
R CE-FESH = — H LW AR AR E years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group complied with
N > AR A R SE T AT U 4 A B R A AR all of the capital requirements externally imposed by the HKMA.
A EARRE o
2011 2010
B TR Capital adequacy ratio 15.9% 14.9%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.8

4.9

Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of unexpected financial losses resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems and
from external events. It is inherent to every business organisation
and covers a wide spectrum of issues. Enhanced efforts in identifying
and understanding the underlying operational risks in process are
taken. This is part of the job of the Risk Management Department.
Its capability for handling operational risk management is enhanced.
An Operational Risk Committee is in place in forging ahead with
the initiatives. Such operational risk is further mitigated through
the implementation of key risk assessment, key risk indicators,
comprehensive internal control systems, adequate insurance
cover, offshore computer back-up sites and contingency plans
with periodic drills. The Group’s Internal Audit Department also
plays an important role in detecting any deviations from operating
procedures and identifying weaknesses at all operating levels
independently and objectively. The Group will keep on pursuing
active and proactive operational risk management practice in
accordance with the relevant Basel IT and HKMA guidelines and
principles.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal and compliance risk is the prospective risk of legal and
regulatory sanctions, financial loss, or reputation loss that the Group
may suffer as a result for violations of, or non-compliance with, all
applicable laws, regulations, internal policies, etc; with respect to the
conduct of business.

Legal and compliance staff members advise the management on
the legal and regulatory developments and assist the management
in establishing policies, procedures and monitoring programme to
ensure compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements. They
conduct regular compliance checking so that the Bank can identify
any potential non-compliance issue and take remedial action on a
timely basis. They also issue monthly bulletins and arrange training
from time to time to enrich the knowledge of all staff in the legal
and regulatory requirements. Furthermore, regular reports on non-
compliance issues and the legal and regulatory developments are
made to the Executive Committee.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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SEGMENT REPORTING

5.1

Class of business

The Group comprises seven operating segments. Commercial
banking represents commercial lending and trade financing. Retail
banking represents retail banking, hire purchase and leasing, and
credit card business. Global markets and trading represents foreign
exchange, money market and capital market activities. Corporate
and investment banking mainly comprises corporate banking,
the provision of debt capital market and investment banking.
Institutional banking represents financial institution business.
Chinese Mercantile Bank represents the business of the Bank’s
subsidiary in Mainland China. Unallocated items mainly comprise
the central management unit, bank premises and any items which
cannot be reasonably allocated to specific operating segments.
During the year, the Group has changed the presentation basis
for segment reporting. Inter-segment elimination entries which
previously eliminated within the corresponding segment were
grouped into unallocated items as at 31 December 2011.
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5 A EHRE @ 5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
5.1 FEBEE 3 5.1 Class of business (continued)
RER
BT SHNHH HERHRAT
Corporate HERL RERLG Global BRR Chinese
and investment  Commercial Retail marketsand Institutional ~ Mercantile AR Wit
banking banking banking trading banking Bank  Unallocated Total
Tl T Tl Ti#x T T T T
I S S Y e | 31 December 2011 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000
FHEIA Netinterest income 764937 1,537,485 520,893 833,377 3682 1,011,858 (671) 4,906,701
W& R A Fee and commission income 173918 350,585 392,349 2,670 133,640 130,806 9,03 1,193,004
YU ES T Fee and commission expense (64,688) (41,3200 (119,436) - (6,192) (752) 5,851 (226,537)
e YLk NS | Net fee and commission income 109,230 309,265 22,913 2,670 127,448 130,054 14,887 966,467
BRARA/ (L) Net trading income/ (expense) 56,700 213,824 54,141 33,121 18,339 (4,016) (9489) 362,620
HEMATRER % Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and
MNEZEREERAR liabilities designated at fair
() /i value through profit orloss - - - (1807 - - 6929 (34878)
KEERMBEZBEMA Dividend income from financial
investments 1,579 - 64 - - - 6,668 8,311
FAEERA Other operating income 6,266 1,072 749 1,186 109 4751 5,167 19,300
BERA Operating income 938,712 2,061,646 850,760 828,547 38718 1,142,647 B4 628520
LE ST Operating expenses (115147)  (71,007)  (682,313)  (164,355) (55022)  (234,890) (21,351)  (1,644,285)
AMBHERK % Operating profit before
Al impairment losses 823,565 1,690,639 168,447 663,992 327,696 907,757 2140 4,584,236
SHBMERE L) /8 (Charge for)/write-back of impairment
B losses on loans and advances (370,907) (116,672) (8,026) (155) (9,633) (148,457) 428 (653,422)
FHZHI R R A A Write-back of impairment losses on
BRI held-to-maturity financial investments - - - 139,067 - - - 139,067
MBHER S B ER A Operating profit after impairment losses 52,658 1,573,967 160,421 802,904 318,063 759,300 2,568 4,069,881
AR Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - - - 6,651 3,814 10,465
HE /BRNER R E Net gain/(loss) from disposal/
BB/ (R 55 reversal of revaluation deficits
- of property, plant and equipment - (6) (456) - - (6) 31 (437)
HERELHE SRS Net loss on disposal of
EBREH available-for-sale financial investments - - - (99,437) - - - (99,437)
SRR/ (R Gain/(loss) on disposal of loans and
advances - 360 9 - - - - 351
BB Operating profit 452,658 1,574,321 159,956 703,467 318,063 765,945 6413 3,980,823
FEA A v A Share of profit of an associate - - - - - - 20,681 20,681
BB A A Profit before tax 52658 1,574,321 159,956 703,467 318,063 765,945 27,094 4,001,504
e Segment assets 72,208,008 102274247 28,626,675 146225777  1L18L,697 52,422,624  (11,216,012) 401,813,016
REEAE 2 RE Tnvestment in an associate - - - - - - 213,667 213,667
ABERE Unallocated assets - - - - - - 2,931,660 2,931,669
mEE Total assets 72,208,008 102274247 28,626,675 146225777  1LI8L697T 52,422,624  (8,070,676) 404,958,352
e Segment liabilities 63,000419 68,103,779 63,543,761 48219223 45104804 47310704  (12,186,642) 323,105,048
ABAR Unallocated liabilities - - - - - - TS 577183
AfEAE Total liabilities 63,000419 68,103,779 63,543,761 48,219,223 45,104,804 47,310,704 40,585,190 375,876,880
BAH, Capital expenditure 192 672 39,274 1,421 38 34,488 26,019 102,104
il RBHER Depreciation and amortisation charges 391 1,621 26,885 1,158 14 16,518 18,997 65,694
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5  EEHE @)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

5.1 ZEHFEME ) 5.1 Class of business (continued)
¥R
i35 001 A ERT5H EHRIT
Corporate HERT TEHfT Global BaL Chinese
and investment  Commercial Retail ~ marketsand  Institutional ~ Mercantile KB Fiby
banking banking banking trading banking Bank  Unallocated Total
T T T T T T T T
—“Z-FE+-H=+-H 31 December 2010 HKS' 000 HK$000 HKS' 000 HK$000 HK$' 000 HK$000 HK$' 000 HK$’000
FH EIA Net interest income 769,760 1,044,580 517,573 470,629 247,862 459,342 77,597 3,587,343
& R A Fee and commission income 135,807 206,722 365,074 1,728 71,060 54,151 17,622 852,164
Wik R 3 Fee and commission expense (35,488) (32,030) (76,660) (101) (234) (2,482) (48) (147,045)
W& RS AR Net fee and commission income 100,319 174,490 288,414 1627 70,826 51,669 17,574 704919
BB/ (i) Net trading income/(expense) 63,305 167,041 55,501 61,398 9,714 (10,058) 2,398 369,299
e LA TR % Net gain on financial assets and
MRZERERERA R liabilities designated at fair value
gt B through profit or loss - - - 20,408 - - 6,930 27,338
RHEMBE 2 BELA Dividend income from financial
investments 583 - 28 - - - 3,979 4,590
HAEERA/ () Other operating incomel (expense) 3,174 16 415 1,179 0) 6,697 9211 20,690
BERA Operating income 937,141 1,386,127 861,931 555,241 328,400 507,650 137,689 4714179
ES T Operating expenses (99,009)  (373471)  (681,006)  (142,741) (36946)  (120,841) (18.468)  (1,472,482)
AR BERE 2B ERET Operating profit before impairment losses 838,132 1,012,656 180,925 412,500 291,454 386,809 19221 3,241,697
SHMMABE L8 /P (Charge for)/write-back of impairment
~ losses on loans and advances (153,641) (16,096) 7,880 (70) 16,725 (119,029) 2,461 (261,770)
REZHMSBRERARR Write-back of impairment losses on
m held-to-maturity financial Investments - - - 234 - - - 234
MRHEE R 2B ERER Operating profit after impairment losses 684,491 996,560 188,805 412,664 308,179 267,780 121,682 2,980,161
TR EWERR Revaluation gain on investment properties = = = = = 5,052 2,500 7,952
&/ REE RS2 Net gain/(loss) from disposal/reversal of
BRI/ (FR) revaluation deficits of property,
i ) plant and equipment = 1 (64) (18) = - 2,120 2,039
HEREHE SRR Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
Rk financial investments = = = 1,554 - = 614,354 615,908
HEEHEH/ (ER) Gain/(loss) on disposal of loans and advances 34,888 3,953 (9,657) - 1,359 - - 30,543
BERH Operating profit 719379 1,000,514 179,084 41400 309,538 72,83 40656 3,636,203
HEAG B AL A Share of profit of an associate = = = = = = 17,810 17,810
B Bt Profit before tax 719,379 1,000,514 179,084 414,200 309,538 272,832 758,466 3,654,013
G Segment assets ST657,083 64938814 28127049 0119499 16618793 25488482 1604633 264554753
REEAT B H Investment in an associate - - - - - - 192,987 192,987
ANFERE Unallocated assets - - - - - - 210713 2190713
BERE Total assets 57,657,283 64,938,814 28,127,249 70,119,499 16,618,793 25,488,482 3,988,333 266,938,453
HaE Segment liabilities 55,868,253 52,244,637 58,566,166 23,746,189 17,049,412 17,707,874 828,058 226,010,589
AR Unallocated liabilities - - - - - - 2077903 20,779,033
AfAE Total liabilities 55868053 5D44637 58566166 23746189 17049412 17707874 2L607,091 246,789,622
xS & Capital expenditure 20 202 5,893 1,155 40 2837 19,274 29421
TERBHER Depreciation and amortisation charges 592 2,001 24,34 1,590 169 14,201 18,472 61,567
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5 S @ 5

5.2 IEHbISE] 4 5.2

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Geographical area

A A A S A ST o i B SR The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong. The geographical

#7> 2 W3O A in R analysis, which has been classified by the location of the principal
operations, is as follows:

BEEUIZ

K b IR

Asia Pacific
B3 (excluding K A
Hong Kong  Hong Kong) Europe Consolidated
A4 Group T#x T Tt T
e 2011 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
BERA Operating income 5,085,874 1,142,647 - 6,228,521
¥ B8 i ¥4 Profit before taxation 3,235,559 765,945 - 4,001,504
% AR Total assets 352,535,728 52,422,624 - 404,958,352
A fE4a% Total liabilities 328,566,176 47,310,704 - 375,876,880

R A ORI Contingent liabilities and

commitments 103,156,329 15,424,194 - 118,580,523
FENEAIH Capital expenditure during the year 67,616 34,488 - 102,104

b & LS 2

5K b [

Asia Pacific
s (excluding ¢l ot
Hong Kong  Hong Kong) Europe  Consolidated
AR Group T-H#5 7T THs T THs T THs T
R 2010 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BEWRA S (EEiR) Operating income/(loss) 4,269,129 507,650 (62,600) 4,714,179
Tk B AT 36 Rl (548 Profit/(loss) before taxation 3,443,897 272,832 (62,716) 3,654,013
W AR Total assets 241,449,971 25,488,482 = 266,938,453
=Rk Total liabilities 229,081,748 17,707,874 = 246,789,622

oK A SR I Contingent liabilities and

commitments 88,874,968 16,417,984 = 105,292,952
FENEARH Capital expenditure during the year 26,584 2,837 - 29,421

A AR R AR MR I — S

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or
AR 5 B T30 5 2 W A AR B P AU 10%
Bk -

counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue
in 2011 or 2010.
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6 HFEWA 6 NET INTEREST INCOME
2011 2010
T#IT TH#s T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’000
LA NIEH Z A B WA Interest income on:
B 4 B GRAT B Ath < Al Cash and balances with banks and
w2 &5 A7 other financial institutions 464,870 167,085
SRAT B A 4 Rl R 2 A7 K Placements with and advances to banks and
VSE=E other financial institutions 544,470 56,093
T~ SRAT B A <5 il B Loans and advances to customers, banks and
Z BN other financial institutions 6,431,253 4,272,861
SRLIE — e Financial investments — available-for-sale 1,095,996 958,362
SEE A E3H Financial investments — held-to-maturity 2,738 3,117
8,539,327 5,457,518
FrERR 5 Mg 2 4 & 7 Financial assets held for trading 1,427 1,369
6 7€ DL A EE B A i 5 RAR Financial assets designated at fair value
2 & RE E through profit or loss 41,185 45,571
8,581,939 5,504,458
DITFEHZFE X Interest expense on:
SRAT Ko Hoh 4 Rl A A 2 A7 Bk % & R Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 862,336 304,937
B AFH Deposits from customers 2,146,698 1,135,301
AT A7 e Certificates of deposit issued 274,691 43,271
DL B A A M 2 45 A R T Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 274,889 99,063
DU 8 AR AR 2 1 55 Debt securities measured at amortised cost 29,183 -
Ho Aty Others 76,947 300,002
3,664,744 1,882,574
188 A A RS 5 RAR Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
2 4 R R profit or loss 10,494 34,541
3,675,238 1,917,115
A B A Net interest income 4,906,701 3,587,343
FHA BT H 2y B 6 B R R R R A Included in the above is interest income accrued on impaired
55,838,841 7t (— % — % 4F : 53,380,766 70) A& financial assets of HK$55,838,841 (2010: HK$53,380,766),
5 B2 O R 18 2 2 LS AT i [ 34,505,57995 ¢ (— including unwinding of discounts on loan impairment losses of
E—FAF 1 20,411,466%5 TC) © HK$34,505,579 (2010: HK$20,411,466).
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7 W R WO 7  NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2011 2010
T#IT TH#s T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’000
B B AR Loans, overdrafts and guarantees 408,081 280,496
W AR Securities and brokerage 138,748 181,203
E o E Trade finance 319,111 161,371
(ERiRS Credit card 147,198 96,567
T 3K Remittance 60,161 54,478
PR B Insurance 24,146 24,156
HoAt 4 e 7 S SR AT R 5 Other retail and commercial banking services 15,112 13,133
HoAt Others 80,447 40,760
& PR A TN Fee and commission income 1,193,004 852,164
Wi K A 4 S Fee and commission expense (226,537) (147,245)
sz 25 R AR A i A R R Net fee and commission income 966,467 704,919
Hr o Of which:
T A (7 i E BT I R 3R I Net fee income, other than amounts included in
B FFA ~ G IE R E SR 5 ik determining the effective interest rate, arising
36 5 DA TE E 8k 28 R AR from financial assets or financial liabilities that are
24 BT S < R E A not held for trading nor designated at fair value
ZARIERRIN) through profit or loss 727,192 441,867
AL AR P A E E 5 Net fee income on trust and other fiduciary activities
W& 2 A5 5t e HAh 32 58 N ZEH where the Group holds or invests on behalf of its
M A 2 e B A customers 10,975 21,515
Ho e Of which:
i 7S i AH L2 Wi 2 B AR B Mg A Fee and commission income by product line
S DA g T A 4 A R constitutes not less than 10% of the total amount
HazZz W : of fees and commission income, as follows:
— SR £ K - syndication loan 234,220 152,094
— MR - bills 151,032 43,168
—fEHF - credit card 147,198 96,567
— Bk MR - securities and brokerage 138,748 181,203
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8 WRIABA 8 NET TRADING INCOME
2011 2010
T#x T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
JHE 3% Equity investments (201) 10,763
7% Debt securities
—FEERC B i A - Financial assets held for trading 3,813 17,296
— k8 B B g — Available-for-sale financial investments (8,801) =
AETR Derivatives 51,732 67,510
S HE Foreign exchange 322,225 262,882
368,768 358,451
b iE B 2 (F8) s (Loss)/gain from hedging activities
S 158 {3 Fair value hedges
— 3 o L gy 2 B 2 3 0EH H - Net (loss)/gain on hedged items
(k5 18) i 45 15 4R attributable to the hedged risk (81,336) 296,607
— ¥ p LRt (R548) WA — Net gain/(loss) on hedging instruments 75,188 (285,759)
(6,148) 10,848
122 2 WA Ha Total net trading income 362,620 369,299
TR AR 7 138 G W AR vl A D A R A A There was no gain or loss on financial liabilities measured at amortised
Wz &Ml A s U 1 (22— 4 - ) - cost which was included in total net trading income in 2011 (2010: Nil).

9 HBEVUATFEMERKMREAEZSHE 9 NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
EAAEE(BR) s Ea LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2011 2010
T#x T# 0
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
6 DA P (A K00 5 R AR Financial assets designated at fair value
Z R E through profit or loss (41,777) 20,378
i 7€ LA E i 45 RAR Financial liabilities designated at fair
Z A A A value through profit or loss 6,899 6,960
BEUANTFEESK G EZARS Total net (loss)/gain on financial assets
il E K B (5 HR) ksl and liabilities designated at fair value
TFRHZ K through profit or loss (34,878) 27,338
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10 KHEEmBBEEZBSWA 10 DIVIDEND INCOME FROM FINANCIAL

INVESTMENTS
2011 2010
T THs T
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEXR G Mgz L& E Dividend income from listed financial
& S A assets held for trading 2,657 720
TR B S R A 2 R A Dividend income from listed available-for-sale
financial investments 2,206 -
IE b T AL B B A R Dividend income from unlisted available-for-sale
Z BB A financial investments 3,448 3,870
A B 4 & 2 S e A AR Total dividend income from financial investments 8,311 4,590
11 H A EIWA 11 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2011 2010
T#x T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
BB A Management fee income 6,625 7,500
A A Rental income 53 32
WG EZAEWA Rental income from investment properties 2,896 2,508
W AN EEHSIRAZREYE Less: Direct operating expenses arising from
ZEEEE LN investment properties that generated
rental income during the year (117) (119)
HoAt Others 9,843 10,769
HoAb ZE A AR Total other operating income 19,300 20,690
12 BEITH 12 OPERATING EXPENSES
2011 2010
T T T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’000
BT Staff costs:
—#F e R HAb S - Salaries and other costs 840,776 774,213
—E - Redundancy payments - 1,563
—iBRE T - Retirement benefit costs 40,649 37,779
881,425 813,555
L/E V& & B Premises and equipment expenses, excluding
(AL 36 4 85 S gy) - depreciation and amortisation:
L/E it - Rental of premises 284,173 250,267
— HoAth - Others 91,373 80,396
375,546 330,663
PSR A 8 3 Depreciation and amortisation expenses 65,694 61,567
ST 4 Auditors’ remuneration 5,002 5,179
T A General administration expenses 26,004 40,390
i JiE 27 Business promotion expenses 57,302 50,555
A8 51 2 Communication expenses 43,722 45,837
HoAt 8 23 Other operating expenses 189,590 124,736
CESELF L Total operating expenses 1,644,285 1,472,482
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13 BIkE S H 13

B g Fe AR 2 AR R4 Tl S AR AR AR R
IBIR &R BRG] K m A  wt B ([RZ5 581 ) ZE0E
ZAEK o

W2 &R > AEE Y B TR EK2E8EUS
A AT AR A% A R R AN 4R [ R R Ak DA
WAL 2 3K o 4R N BB A A 454,200,000 00 (=%
—EAF 1 4,500,00095 70) 2 ZUCHERK > RAESS H B
440,000%5 70 ( & —&4F 190,000 76) 4 1F H &40
WAL Z A -

TGRS FI MG T B2 (e (B — 4
$) o 3% B 2 G 2 A A B SR
2 78 4 B AR ©

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the income statement
represents contributions payable by the Group to the ORSO Scheme and
the MPF Scheme (the “Schemes”).

Under the Schemes, the Group’s contributions are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the Schemes prior
to the contributions vesting fully. Forfeited contributions totalling
HK$4,200,000 (2010: HK$4,500,000) were utilised during the year, leaving
HK$440,000 (2010: HK$190,000) available at the year-end to reduce future
contributions.

No contributions were payable to the Schemes at the year-end (2010: Nil).
The assets of the Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

14 Bk IR AR 1R 2K 32 8 14 CHARGE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON LOANS
AND ADVANCES
2011 2010
T#xL T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
AR H R S8 Charge for impairment losses on loans and advances
A8 5 5T Al Individually assessed
— S 488 4 A — New allowances 442,907 310,173
— 4 - Releases (12,732) (131,352)
— S [m] (it &E26) - Recoveries (Note 26) (15,125) (7,222)
EEIERERE S S UEERiEES Net charge for impairment losses on individually
SEH IR AR (B aE2e6) assessed loans and advances (Note 26) 415,050 171,599
bR Collectively assessed
— T4 A - New allowances 238,372 136,793
— 5 — Releases - (46,622)
ALG WAL SR E S Net charge for impairment losses on collectively
ST EE (K E26) assessed loans and advances (Note 26) 238,372 90,171
& & R ] Net charge to the income statement 653,422 261,770

15 W& R RS A
(5 48) W 2 13 4

15 NET (LOSS)/GAIN FROM DISPOSAL/REVERSAL OF

REVALUATION DEFICITS OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

2011 2010
T#L T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
2 R 2 (k18 /Wi i 1 4 Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (309) 2,013

SRATHEE (AN 1R) 5 A s 8 43 (Revaluation deficits)/reversal of revaluation
deficits of bank premises (128) 26
(437) 2,039
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16 HiH 16 TAX
T W R 1B T AR A AR BE AR B s 2 A T B ik Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%)
PG R %16.5% (. F —F4E 1 16.5%) HEA o A B on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.
AN AT B B G 2 ) R B Ta A 10 B TR 4 A 4 [H 4 Taxes on profits assessable for overseas branches and subsidiaries have
T AE I R BLAT B RO o been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

A A AR RS R B S The amount of tax charged to the consolidated income statement
represents:
2011 2010
T#L T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
AR I Current tax
— 4 7 1 A5 BV A - Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 539,535 564,562
— 4F [ g SR JE AR - Provision for overseas tax for the year 319,018 86,926
TEAEUEM AN Underprovision in respect of prior years 2,001 -
R 2L ol AR Deferred taxation (11,933) (691)
848,621 650,797
AR AR AT R R B T i ) 2 A I BB A 4 AT B e i The difference between the tax expense for the Group’s profit before tax
R BB A2 and the theoretical amount that would arise using the current tax rate is as
follows:
2011 2010
T#x T
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
BR L il i £ Profit before tax 4,001,504 3,654,013
B A16.5% (= F —F4E 1 16.5%) 7t H  Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) 660,248 602,912
oAt B0 AN [R) B 3 2 s Effect of different tax rates in other countries 181,018 42,656
e JH L 2 A Income not subject to tax (8,122) (22,845)
BT S R AT 4nis 2 K Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 16,888 31,013
A48 A S0 ] 0 T 2R Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous periods 2,344 3,497
4345 W R B IE Share of tax of an associate (3,412) (2,939)
G \BIH Taxation of partnership (343) (3,497)
B IE T Tax charge 848,621 650,797
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17 #HFHE 17 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
HRAB A 5 2N FR ) 5 161 1% > 4 S5 TN 4 2 Rtk R Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong
mr Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
2011 2010
Tt THs T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
G Fees 865 1,220
oA 4 Other emoluments:
3 B Salaries and allowances 8,124 10,582
i 1% 16 4L Discretionary bonuses 3,649 5,000
AR Contribution to the Schemes
(E 75 WL B 5E13) (as defined in Note 13) 708 740
13,346 17,542

3 I il 2
A GRAT 1 B AR PR A SRAT 10 2 B AN AT A (0 £
DA BAE T R R H AL S -

1] I AT AT R K R 2 IR 2 T R
E AN A AR BT S AT R DA IR AT R G
AR 0 [ e A el o

fEEBATHE SN SR CE MU TR R

. EBHE
. EBER

o YKL
o DA A A SRAT SE TS 19 8 AR

o ARERAT Y HEH R RR S H A JF A5 R R

T S B A R A T 28 o HE I R B 2 B GE A B Y
B -

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011

Remuneration system

It is the Bank’s policy to maintain a fair, equitable and market competitive
remuneration packages based on the Bank’s performance and industry
practice.

The level of fees paid to Non-executive Directors is determined by
referring to factors such as fees paid by others institutions, and the Non-
executive Directors’ scope of work and efforts.

In the determining the remuneration packages of Executive Directors, the
following factors are considered:

. Business needs

. Business performance

. Economic and market situation

. Individual contributions to the Bank’s business in the past and
future

. Overall risk and non-financial factors of the Bank

To avoid conflict of interest, the Directors will not be involved in the
determination of his/her own remuneration.
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DIVIDENDS

7 4 JE AT IR Dividends attributable to the year
2011 2010
T#L Tt
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B IR A o 0 P B A R A e Paid interim dividend of HK$Nil (2010: HK$0.37)
T (. F—F4F 037 T) per ordinary share - 500,263

RoE-HE=ZA ARG ERLE EEE
BEARMEE T+ A=+ HILFE
AR B ER -

19 FBREA

AR B A IS R AR e ) AT e A AR L S SR A 4 1y
i A o BR USRI 84T 3 2 B R S A

19

At a meeting held on 28 March 2012, the board has not recommended the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share amount is calculated by dividing the profit for the
year attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2011 2010

i HME A %55 A (T 0) Profit attributable to equity holders (HK$’000) 3,152,883 3,003,216
B AT 5 B 2 RS- (T ) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue (thousands) 1,478,859 1,335,524

BB FEA B A (s T) Basic earnings per share (HK$) 2.13 2.25

HRALEREE R ——F+ A=+ K"
F—RFE+ A=+ —HILFEI D ST
T A o R A A T A I A < B A
EA B AR o

Diluted earnings per share amount for the year ended 31 December 2011
and 31 December 2010 were the same as basic earning per share, as the
Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those
years.
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20 EEHAE

20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS

774\
AERU
Bl
Mk
Designated Bk b
# atfirvalue  BEERSEE  RAEEN EMGRE CRSINA
H#ERANE  HNe through  Available- Heldto-  Loansand Other it
Trading Hedging  profit or loss for-sale maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
HAEH Group Tl T Tl T Tl T T Tl
REZ——FFZA=T—H At31 December 2011 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
i3 Assets
BeRESTREMEH Cash and balances with banks and
[ 174t other financial institutions - - - - - - 112115295 112,115,295
ST R 4 B i Placements with and advances to
R RER banks and other financial
institutions - - - - - 9,860,804 - 9,860,804
QLA AN Derivative financial instruments 1,718,728 357,805 - - - - - 2076533
P BT REAM Loans and advances to customers,
SHBHEHR banks and other financial
institutions - - - - - 237,488,676 - 237,488,676
BEHS Tnvestment securities 242,388 - 709231 36,273,409 1,164,239 - - 38,389,267
SREESE Total financial assets 1,961,116 357,805 709231 36273409 1164239 247349480 112,115,295 399,930,575
keREE Non-financial assets 5,027,777
W Total assets 404,958,352
fifk Liabilities
B REM R Deposits from banks and other
AR &R financial institutions - - - - - - 54370925 54370925
fiteMTE Derivative financial instruments 1,599,100 575,482 - - - - - 217458
ERfR Deposits from customers - - - - - - 262,622,063 262,622,063
CHRITHIE R Certificates of deposit issued
CE#T S and debt securities in issue - - 77,818 - - - 4679255 41,757,073
DB AR Subordinated debts measured
HERE atamortised cost - - - - - - 11,356,698 11,356,698
SHARLEE Total financial liabilities 1,599,100 575,482 77,818 - - - 370028941 372,281,341
FeRARK Non-financial liabilities 3,595,539
A4 Total liabilities 375,876,880

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011



20 EFEFE @)

o TR 64T (35 ) 45 B A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)

fHED
ATEE
Bfgi %
N
Designated HR Hit
B atfirvalue  BESE  BEEIN O BGUE  EESNA
BELH A% ik through Available- Held-to- Loans and Other a3
Trading Hedging  profit or loss for-sale maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
KER Group T T T T T T T T
RZF-FEFZA=1—H At31 December 2010 HKS*000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS' 000 HKS000 HKS 000
i3 Assets
BeRESTREMEH Cash and balances with banks and

[ 174t other financial institutions = = = = = - 3BoLl 339181
T A7 R A 4l e Placements with and advances to

2 R banks and other financial institutions = = = = - 3,900,683 - 3,900,683
fit 2B TR Derivative financial instruments 1,883,173 1,668 = = = = = 1,884,841
P SR Loans and advances to customers,

SRS X banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 185,058,428 - 185,058,428
i roed Tnvestment securities 205,666 = 951345 35644015 1,164,056 = - 37,965,082
SHEEAH Total financial assets 2,088,839 1,668 951345 35644015 1164056 188959111 33921821 262,730,855
FeMER Non-financial assets 4,207,598
Wy Total assets 266,938,453
A Liabilities
GV Deposits from banks and other

ZHEF R financial institutions = = = = = S 7878692 27,878,692
ik &MTH Derivative financial instruments 1,768,039 661,213 = - = - = 2,429,252
FFREHR Deposits from customers - - - - - - 193,543,551 193,543,551
EEITHERER Certificates of deposit issued and

CDETES debt securities in issue = = 993,594 = = S 986LE3l 10,855,205
PSR AR AR Subordinated debts measured at

HEEE amortised cost = = = = = = 9,519,448 9,519,448
SRARAH Total financial liabilities 1,768,039 661,213 993,594 = = - 20803322 244226168
Fematk Non-financial liabilities 2,563,454
ARAH Total liabilities 246,789,622
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20 EFEFE @)

20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)

774\
AERU
Bl
N3
Designated Bk b
# atfirvalue  BEERSEE RAEEN EMGOE  CRENA
H#ERANE  Hie through  Available- Heldto-  Loansand Other ik
Trading Hedging  profit or loss for-sale maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
AT Bank Tl T Tl T Tl Tl Tl Tl
REZB——FFZA=T—H At31 December 2011 HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000
B Assets
BeRESTREMEH Cash and balances with banks and

BEZER other financial institutions - - - - - - 100,337,007 100,337,007
ST R 4 B i Placements with and advances to banks

R RER and other financial institutions - - - - N ATYAVZY N KIAVE
ke LA Derivative financial instruments 1,718,728 357,805 - - - - - 2,076,533
P R R Loans and advances to customers,

SREELEX banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 212,245,900 - 212,245,900
ft&&% Investment securities 76,796 - 709,231 35,419,691 1,164,239 - - 37,369,957
SHEESE Total financial assets 1,795,524 357,805 709,231 35,419,691 1,164,239 219,633,074 100,337,007 359,416,571
FeMER Non-financial assets 8,714,887
W Total assets 368,131,458
ki Liabilities
GV Deposits from banks and other

ZIHRE R financial institutions - - - - - - 50484173 50484173
fik2MITH Derivative financial instruments 1,599,100 575,482 - - - - - 2,174,582
EREHR Deposits from customers - - - - - - 230,460,032 232,460,032
EHRITHIE R Certificates of deposit issued and

CHT R debt securities in issue - - 77,818 - - - 4679255 41,757,073
DB RAARZ Subordinated debts measured at

HERER amortised cost - - - - - - 11,356,698 11,356,698
SRAKLE Total financial liabilities 1,599,100 575,482 77,818 - - - 335,980,158 338,232,558
FEmAfH Non-financial liabilties 2,976,358
A Total liabilities 341,208,916
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20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)

e
ATEE
Bfgi %
A
Designated HR Hit
B atfirvalue  BESE  BEEIN O BGUE  EESNA
BELH A% ik through Available- Held-to- Loans and Other a3
Trading Hedging  profit or loss for-sale maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
KT Bank T T T T T T T T
RZF-FEFZA=1—H At31 December 2010 HKS*000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS' 000 HKS000 HKS'000
i3 Assets
RN G Cash and balances with banks and

HhEREEz S other financial institutions S = = = . S 30065948 30,065,948
T AT RE 4 B B Placements with and advances to banks

2HEHREHL and other financial institutions - - - - - 6,525,248 - 6,525,248
fMtEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,883,173 1,668 = = = = = 1,884,841
P B REM Loans and advances to customers,

SREHEZEN banks and other financial institutions = = = = - 165,768,874 - 165,768,874
s Investment securities 68,541 = 951345 35643702 1,164,056 = - 3787644
SREEAH Total financial assets 1,951,714 1,668 951345 35643702 1164056 172294122 30,065948 242,072,555
FomERE Non-financial assets 6,399,631
fY T Total assets 248,472,186
A Liabilities
AT RS R Deposits from banks and other

LR RER financial institutions = = = = = S WIS 24777183
fit&MTR Derivative financial instruments 1,768,039 661,213 - - - - - 2,429,252
R Deposits from customers - - - - - - 179478215 179478215
EEIFHER Certificates of deposit issued and

RS debt securities in issue = = 993,594 = = - 9861631 10855205
DS AR Z Subordinated debts measured at

HEER amortised cost = = = = = - 9519448 9519448
BRAEAE Total financial liabilities 1,768,039 661,213 993,594 = = - IBE36ATT 227059303
FemAak Non-financial liabilities 2,580,458
A B Total liabilities 209,639,781
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21 Bl A SRAT B Ath 5 Al B A 2 S A7

21

CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND OTHER

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

A A HAT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#x Tt T Tt
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B4 Cash on hand 508,873 305,978 508,492 305,975
ILERT 2 B 77 Balances with central banks 23,208,894 6,405,914 17,474,989 3,242,971
HAERAT K 4 Al Balances with other banks and
Wz & financial institutions 20,810,374 6,238,210 22,838,074 6,591,270
18 A LAm E 2 4T Placements with banks and other financial
T H Al 45 7l A% R A7 K institutions maturing within one month 67,587,154 20,971,719 59,515,452 19,925,732
112,115,295 33,921,821 100,337,007 30,065,948

22 TESRAT Jo B fth 4 Rl B 2 A K I BEK

22

PLACEMENTS WITH AND ADVANCES TO BANKS
AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

ALEM A HAT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#x TH# T T#x BRI
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
A—F+ Az Placements with banks and other
SRAT B HoAth financial institutions maturing
& BB N A7 K between one and twelve months 9,860,804 3,900,683 7,387,174 6,525,248
9,860,804 3,900,683 7,387,174 6,525,248
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23 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING

A 4R
Group
2011 2010
T#x T T
HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
2% A FEE - Debt securities, at fair value:
TR AR BT Listed in Hong Kong 35,156 6,694
kb Unlisted 26,196 39,407
61,352 46,101
RS AT Equity securities, at fair value:
iR ] Listed in Hong Kong 181,036 140,387
JE B Unlisted - 19,178
181,036 159,565
FrlE 22 5 P o 4l o AR (E Total financial assets held for trading 242,388 205,666
FER D iz s RERE Financial assets held for trading are analysed by
BT NIER A an T category of issuer as follows:
o SR B SR AT Central governments and central banks 25 24
N Public sector entities - 252
SRAT Ko HAth 4 il A% A Banks and other financial institutions 207,207 198,948
12 Corporate entities 35,156 6,442
242,388 205,666
AGUT
Bank
2011 2010
T#L T T
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
5 > AP Debt securities, at fair value:

iR i ] Listed in Hong Kong 35,156 6,694
E ] Unlisted 26,196 39,407
61,352 46,101

IR RIS T A TEE Equity securities, at fair value:

R AR BT Listed in Hong Kong 15,444 22,440
FRAEZE 55 o W o 7 AR Total financial assets held for trading 76,796 68,541
FrE 2 o Mk 2 & B Financial assets held for trading are analysed by

FBAT NBE R AT an T category of issuer as follows:

o BUR B S g AT Central governments and central banks 25 24
NN Public sector entities - 252
SRAT F HoAth 4 1 A A Banks and other financial institutions 41,615 61,823
13 Corporate entities 35,156 6,442

76,796 68,541
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24 387 VLo i B A8 M ER AR AR 24 FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE
Z 4 g THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
71 35 B e A R AT
Group and Bank
2011 2010
T#xT T T
HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
% > HA-FEE Debt securities, at fair value:
iR e ] Listed in Hong Kong 80,629 310,340
AT W DA S [ b s Listed outside Hong Kong 443,067 452,990
I b Unlisted 185,535 188,015
67 DA P18 1 K00 5 R AR Total financial assets designated at fair value
2 4 R A AR through profit or loss 709,231 951,345
HE AT EELSRERARZ Financial assets designated at fair value through
SREEMARELTEE ¢ profit or loss are comprised of the following item:
HAt 7% Other debt securities 709,231 951,345
58 LA EER IR G RARZ Financial assets designated at fair value through
4 Rl 7 F AT NBUI AT R profit or loss are analysed by category of
issuer as follows:
N L Public sector entities 123,234 124,165
SRAT Ko HoAth 4 Rl AR A Banks and other financial institutions 180,469 189,071
e Corporate entities 405,528 638,109
709,231 951,345

25 4T A

A AR B RTSE N S BE A HE AR ~ B3R K R S5 AR B ) T 2R
SR TR & A AR R R B 2

TE A 5 A6 8 TR R A — HJ RS T A OK

24k
W ©

B W T ) 3 A U I S ) B < U i PR o 4
B9 &5 R E 5y ARNTR B ~ Al (i [ il 42 57 )
F2) B b BT A AL A (R38R e dmi i) -
BRI 2 & W g ) 5 495 > %52 b SRR A HRAS & o
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group enters into the following equity, foreign exchange and
interest rate related derivative financial instruments for trading and risk
management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign
currency on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or a combination of all these
(i.e., cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for certain currency swap
contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.



25 A4 H o

HNEE ~ |38 T R HE 45 A 4 WIRE S 46 IRER 2 (i
FOT) B BT (Fe A7) PR TR R A — e e B R
R BR A W A 4 E A R R (R A
HE) BCET N R VE M) — 5 O A9 2l T HL i HE
(T FF AR ) 09— T 5 o R Ry AR 40 S0 HEE R ) 4 J B
AR > SRR B 5 9 BT O — R IS RE A - R
2 30 ST R A 2 LSS T 7 7 355 S ioh TR 2 0 2 )
A A5 ITHEAT (AR 2 5 T HEAT T 2 SR -

AT R 2 E M T REXH ZHRELHH
BB FESIR T & o A B &M T R
EH) AR EUR TR A RRE 2 R 5E
R RN E A WA (P FegOF C il
PR T — W B 5 BB IR LR A0 il R 9 LA 2P
HARZ &R TR S LR - AR il AR
JIT 5 B 9 A A 14 B < U B B I P MR A TR
AN B S I A AR 1] 9 T B ) D e g T 3 S
B 5 AT A < T L A G O B Y T 8 B
HF e A3 HE A 10 5 B o A7 A < LA A0l (BT REE
EERATA A () BAA (B M - k&
Pl T L 2 T % MR o S (AR AR AN R T
W Dl By -

AAR BT N R 5 AMiT Ae E  AC B ) EEE H R
PR %5 5 2605 o AR R F KB R 5 AT A4
JEE ity 52 7y J4) 7 A TR AR AR 4 R 1) 45 A B o T L B
% .

ATAE T 7 8 P R B BRAT MR 0 A e S B - A
L 2 7 i 44 BB SO O AT A A T AT RS 5
AT A i 22 5 T AR A B A 3 4% 6 TR DA R R 4%
il > S A R 22 By 9 b AR A PR HL A i 2 A T IR
TH o BESRATAL E M 2 Sy A T BRI AR BB ZR 5% > LA
EATHG - TEE A - ol KB
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Foreign currency, interest rate and equity options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder)
the rights, but not an obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put
option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the
financial instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the
assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller receives
a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated OTC between the
Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for
example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contractual/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The
contractual/notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume
of transactions outstanding at the end of reporting periods and certain
of them provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments
recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position. However,
they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved
or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as
a result of fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates
and equity relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative
financial instruments (assets and liabilities) can fluctuate significantly
from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC)
mainly for customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management
policies in providing derivative products to the customers and in trading
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking
book. A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product
list before any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are
limits to control the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative
transactions and the maximum tenor of the deal and management alert
limit in profit or loss is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into
the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting
and control.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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25 fid4RT H g 25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

TERAMAESM TR EHEEZLMNR A
St -RZE#/ AREEIME

The following tables summarise the contractual/notional amounts of each
significant type of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December:

7 45 T B A AT
Group and Bank
a8/ BESB ATHMEE A TRESN
Contractual/ Fair value Fair value
notional amount assets liabilities
T#xL T#T T#x
R4 2011 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’000
1) FER S Bz E T A 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) AhEE ﬁf\’# TH a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— B MR - Currency forwards 248,598,417 1,151,790 (1,046,031)
— 54 & bﬁg WIREE A - OTC currency options purchased 5,680,470 40,592 -
— 35 50 8 W I RE 5T — OTC currency options written 5,658,614 - (31,987)
— RIS HE T A - Structured foreign exchange
instruments 399,489 21,282 (21,281)
SMNEEATAE T H A8%H Total foreign exchange derivatives 1,213,664 (1,099,299)
b) FlRfTAETH b) Interest rate derivatives
— I F 45 1 — Interest rate swaps 45,977,775 490,898 (447,221)
*Quanto?ﬁyﬁ - Quanto swaps 5,266,416 12,595 -
PR A7 4 T H 48 %8 Total interest rate derivatives 503,493 (447,221)
o) MeAATET A ¢) Equity derivatives
— A S - Equity options 77,384 228 (228)
M AT A T H A0 Total equity derivatives 228 (228)
¥ f’F T MEfiAE T A Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
Y, (AR held for trading 1,717,385 (1,546,748)
2) FEfEH ?“HFH wATAE TR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a)  F55E BN TAE A B b a) Derivatives designated as fair
ZAiE TR value hedges
— 7 ﬁ—ﬁ—ﬁﬁ - Interest rate swaps 7,207,594 - (410,498)
— 28 X W 1 - Cross currency swaps 958,069 5,282 (75,167)
. 5,282 (485,665)
b) F8E 5B 4 = b) Derivatives designated as
ZATE TR cash flow hedges
— R R — Interest rate swaps 8,318,165 352,499 (89,817)
— 38 WAL W A - Cross currency swaps 403,978 24 -
352,523 (89,817)
BESWHGBZ A TH Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
HE,/ (A held for hedging 357,805 (575,482)
3) e FHERIARTF S ES W 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for
A& - BB RE DL TR (E accounting purposes but which are
Al e HLH A Bk A 2R managed in conjunction with the financial
BRI A—RERZ instruments designated at fair value
it TH through profit or loss
— | R 454 - Interest rate swaps 869,111 1,343 (52,352)
AIEEEE W &z iAE TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) not
%, (A A5 qualified as hedges 1,343 (52,352)
BT A THEE (A1) Total recognised derivative
HaEH assets/(liabilities) 2,076,533 (2,174,582)
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25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

AL [ S AR SR AT
Group and Bank
GHZHREE O ATHEMEEE ATHEESRCME
Contractual/ Fair value Fair value
notional amount assets liabilities
T#IT T T
—E T 2010 HKS$’000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
1) FRERS @2 fiiE TR 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) AREEATAE T A a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— B - Currency forwards 204,435,982 1,380,033 (1,187,915)
— G IRE R A - OTC currency options purchased 6,827,340 109,169 (326)
— 5 R W I RE R - OTC currency options written 5,784,932 326 (119,967)
—HEMIESNE LR - Structured foreign exchange
instruments 272,353 11,882 (11,882)
AP ERT A= T H A8 Total foreign exchange derivatives 1,501,410 (1,320,090)
b) FIRATAETH b) Interest rate derivatives
— | 2R 45 1) - Interest rate swaps 28,535,440 373,641 (347,318)
— I AR E A ~ Interest rate options purchased 505,278 - -
— I SR - Interest rate options written 505,278 - -
— Quantof# ] - Quanto swaps 3,086,546 1,044 -
—HEREERI R T A - Structured interest rate instruments 651,669 2,687 (2,837)
| A7 A T H 450 Total interest rate derivatives 377,372 (350,155)
o) MEAfTA T A ¢) Equity derivatives
— A B R - Equity options 205,160 806 (806)
A fii 2k T H 4850 Total Equity derivatives 806 (806)
FefEzxx 5 HEME LR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
% (AR A held for trading 1,879,588 (1,671,051)
2) FEAEE A& A TH 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a)  F55E BN B A B a) Derivatives designated as fair
ZiiE TR value hedges
— ] 2R 451 1) — Interest rate swaps 7,854,240 - (346,063)
— 28 A5 W b - Cross currency swaps 958,649 972 (83,854)
972 (429,917)
b) 1 E B4 R E b) Derivatives designated as cash
AT A flow hedges
— i Ze 5 1 - Interest rate swaps 7,022,861 - (231,296)
— 22 LA WL - Cross currency swaps 404,222 696 =
696 (231,296)
BESWHGBZ A TH Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
Y, (A1) held for hedging 1,668 (661,213)
3) e EHE AR S AEE W 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for
FIR o B BLAE 52 LA SF-E (B accounting purposes but which are
wh i A Bt A8 1 managed in conjunction with the financial
G T HE R instruments designated at fair value
fiidk TR through profit or loss
— ) Ze 45 1 - Interest rate swaps 1,069,577 3,585 (96,988)
A EEE W AE2 fid TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) not
“iE,/ (BfE) &5 qualified as hedges 3,585 (96,988)
CERMATREE, (AR Total recognised derivative
HaER assets/(liabilities) 1,884,841 (2,429,252)
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25

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The contractual or notional amounts of contingent liabilities and
commitments and derivative financial instruments provide only an
indication of the volume of business outstanding at the end of the
reporting period and bear little relation to the underlying risks of the
exposures.

Among the above derivative financial instruments, certain of them were
designated as hedging instruments.

Fair value hedges are used by the Group to protect it against changes in
the fair value of financial assets due to movements in market interest rates.
The financial instruments hedged for interest rate risk mainly include
available-for-sale debt securities. The Bank uses interest rate swaps and
cross currency swaps to hedge interest rate risk.

The effectiveness of the hedge based on changes in fair value of the
derivatives and the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk recognised
in the income statement during the year is presented as follows:

7 4 1 e AR AT
Group and Bank
2011 2010
T#xT T T
HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
AFEEE T (18 it > Ll FEE (Loss)/gain arising from fair value hedge, net:
—Hh TH - Hedging instruments 75,188 (285,759)
— S i JE B 2 AR B 2 e E - Hedged items attributable to the hedged risk (81,336) 296,607
(6,148) 10,848

B W R I EAER & — A RT 3L 2 Pl
ZE B MR A o R DR A 4 T G % T ) A
B T R IR T A AR SRR o s A SO A E
Z Wi B AR 20 B H R AR A 2 B4 L e ) o £
M RE Sl TE B vt RS A AR IR A
R o f% TR TR OB A0 1 AR 2 Wi S 1R T
RIVERE 7 Wi 2 SR TR R o AR P S0 A A i R Pl TR
B 4 v b I P AR RS A (AR ) o

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011

Cash flow hedge consists of interest rate swaps and cross-currency
interest rate swaps entered into in 2011 that are used to protect the Group
against exposures to variability of floating-rate assets and liabilities. Gains
and losses on the effective portion of the swaps are initially recognised
directly in equity, in the cash flow hedging reserve, and are transferred
to the income statement when the forecast cash flows affect the income
statement. The gains and losses on ineffective portions of such derivatives
are recognised immediately in the income statement. During the year,
there was no ineffectiveness recognised in the income statement that arose
from cash flow hedges (2010: Nil).
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A5 A 4 i T B ) 25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
DINRF RSN E —F——4+ " A=+—H K Below is a schedule indicating as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December
SR -REF A= AL B B 2010, the periods when the hedged cash flows are expected to occur and
G U 2 T TR DA R T ) R S e i 0 B A O R e when they are expected to affect profit or loss:

WBHR AR A ]

—4EN - =X o =& )N\ MNEDL L
HEEIL WL HEEL WL
Within 1 year 1-3 years 3-8 years Over 8 years
R ——Ap 2011 HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million  HKS$ million
HERA (EE) Cash inflows (assets) 21 41 103 19
Band (A Cash outflows (liabilities) (44) (69) (39) (1)
<& Uit B AR Net cash flow (23) (28) 64 18
—4EN —H A =F N NAELLE
H A BT [ER: 350 [ER: X5 [ER: 350
Within 1 year 1-3 years 3-8 years Over 8 years
T — T4 2010 HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million
BlamA (E7E) Cash inflows (assets) 12 23 58 22
Bl (A1) Cash outflows (liabilities) (12) (11) (3) =
G Uit B IR AR Net cash flow - 12 55 22
ARIN > S I B HRORE 2 v 1) 350 4 i 3B b 5 A T E R During the year, realised gain amounted to HK$68,591,000 previously
2.68,591,000%5 7o L% 2 Bl ik 4 O 48 Bl R - WEEEA recognised in equity under the cash flow hedge reserve was transferred
AR A (R — 4 0 B2 B k5 $823,020,0007 to the income statement and included in the net interest income (2010:
JT) e realised loss of HK$23,020,000).
S 9 22 by & Bl < T O gt IR 2 TR & o R There were no transactions for which cash flow hedge accounting had to be
Nt A5 ] g IS 2 B AR 2R — — AR . ceased in 2011 as a result of the highly probable cash flows no longer being

expected to occur.
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25 HiAaR T A @ 25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
bl BAR B A R R I A AT A 4 Al L Y A A The aggregate replacement costs and credit risk weighted amounts of the
A KA B BN RE R A above contingent liabilities and commitments and derivative financial

instruments are:

A 45 1 B AR B AT
Group and Bank
2011 2010
£vi £, B 15 £ )3 B
T i 4 7 TR 4 %
AR Credit risk HE A Credit risk
Replacement weighted  Replacement weighted
cost amount cost amount
T#xL T#x T#IT T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’000 HK$ 000 HKS$’000
R A RORIE Contingent liabilities and commitments - 14,930,572 - 17,523,389
HNES A Exchange rate contracts
— & - Forwards 945,752 1,832,574 1,048,272 2,040,861
— 4 — Swaps 38,829 123,717 2,362 56,794
— Wik - Options 49,184 142,422 115,810 116,656
1,033,765 2,098,713 1,166,444 2,214,311
R A4 Interest rate contracts
— — Swaps 857,335 779,267 380,958 430,518
— - Options - - - 505
857,335 779,267 380,958 431,023
A G # Equity contracts 228 510 806 1,392
1,891,328 17,809,062 1,548,208 20,170,115
ol JE B TE H 2 EE R AN R R R B R 4 I YR The replacement costs and credit risk weighted amounts of the exposures
PEl 3 ek e - do not have the effects of bilateral netting arrangements.
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26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS

AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

26.1 Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial

institutions
A 4 M A GAT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#L TH#TT T#¥IT TH#TT
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

EIRB-
SRAT S HAth & BB AR 2 453K

Advances to customers

Advances to banks and other financial
institutions

Trade bills

166,777,362 161,894,142 146,665,637 145,842,342

36,568,309 18,051,398 31,754,563 14,732,934
34,598,400 5,579,869 33,977,538 5,439,318

HE ST I H A 4 AR A
2 HH A

Gross loans and advances to
customers, banks and other
financial institutions

237,944,071 185,525,409 212,397,738 166,014,594

JRE 5t 1B Accrued interest 1,109,286 553,512 1,046,033 501,294
239,053,357 186,078,921 213,443,771 166,515,888
BB c I Less: Impairment allowances
— 1 5| 5P Al - Individually assessed (769,238) (472,586) (697,257) (371,265)
— AR - Collectively assessed (795,443) (547,907) (500,614) (375,749)
237,488,676 185,058,428 212,245,900 165,768,874
A 4 A GAT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T T#T T#x T T
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$’ 000
RNk Gross impaired loans and advances 1,249,184 1,007,772 1,020,986 735,364
e R 2 A A Impairment allowances made in
respect of such loans 769,238 472,586 697,257 371,265
I E B K AR AR A S K AR Gross impaired loans and advances as
ZHET a percentage of total gross loans
and advances 0.52% 0.54% 0.48% 0.44%
A i T Market value of collateral 506,965 351,230 350,749 180,143

B B ROE 2 % BRI UOHE R AR B —
B Z (7 35 AT DL AT 5 Al 5 R 2 B4 U A R
B2 A (TR E]) B Bl i € fr
A %5 8L T8 1 w8 5% 7 280 118 ] 5 £ ) 68K

BoFE -t A= R R R
TZA=t+ B AEBETRT R A
PRSI S > WA BUEEK > N RA B
5 Y R A5 A AT A 1 3 (L e A

Impaired loans and advances are defined as those loans which are
individually determined to have objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the loans that can be
reliably estimated.

There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial
institutions as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010; nor were
there any individual impairment allowances made for them as at
these two dates.
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26 B~ SRAT I A RS 2 B R (w0 26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS

AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

26.2 5~ SRAT Jo oAt 4 b BE A Bk 2 Bk

26.2 Loan impairment allowances against advances to customers,

VAT YE A banks and other financial institutions
A4
Group
A8 30w A #4 WAl
Individual Collective B
assessment assessment Total
T T#L T#L
SR AR 2011 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
AU (L YA A 5 Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances:

AT ——4E— ] — HE&RE Balance at 1 January 2011 472,586 547,907 1,020,493
WA (W 3E14) Impairment losses (Note 14) 415,050 238,372 653,422
T‘?ﬂﬁfﬁ N 145( D= Loans written off as uncollectible (102,601) - (102,601)

R 2 R S ) B0 (E Unwinding of discounts of loan
HEA I BL(ELBE ] (Kff te) impairment allowances recognised
as interest income (Note 6) (34,506) - (34,506)
Wi ] 288 7 4 B L SEY B Recoveries of loans written off in
(Pt sE14) previous years (Note 14) 15,125 - 15,125
FEE 53, % G Ath 34 5 Exchange and other adjustments 3,584 9,164 12,748
AR ——4FEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2011 769,238 795,443 1,564,681
ik A - Deducted from:
&K Advances to customers 769,238 677,641 1,446,879
SRAT B o Ath 45 B A B R Advances to banks and other financial
institutions - 16,686 16,686
[GE % Trade bills - 101,116 101,116
769,238 795,443 1,564,681
AL
Group
il B FF A ARG
Individual Collective HEAE
assessment assessment Total
TH#TT T AR P
T 2010 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
(L Y A 4 ) Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances:
h_E—FFE—H— H R Balance at 1 January 2010 441,896 453,392 895,288
uﬁﬁ}ﬁﬁe (B 5E14) Impairment losses (Note 14) 171,599 90,171 261,770
N L|5I ] 2 £ Loans written off as uncollectible (130,800) - (130,800)
e R 7 LB A Y IRt (L Unwinding of discounts of loan
AT B (A 48 1A (P 5Ee) impairment allowances recognised
as interest income (Note 6) (20,411) - (20,411)
WAz (] 388 A B Y B 3k Recoveries of loans written off in
(Bt 5E14) previous years (Note 14) 7,222 = 7,222
7 52, K HAth 7 2 Exchange and other adjustments 3,080 4,344 7,424
WoE—FFE+_HA=+—H At 31 December 2010 472,586 547,907 1,020,493
EZ= Deducted from:
% F R Advances to customers 472,586 531,267 1,003,853
SRAT B At 4 il B A 4 3K Advances to banks and other financial
institutions - 1,580 1,580
R Trade bills = 15,060 15,060
472,586 547,907 1,020,493

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011



o TR 64T (35 ) 45 B A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

26 B~ SRAT I A RS 2 B R (w0 26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS

AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

26.2 5~ SRAT Jo oAt 4 b BE A Bk 2 Bk

26.2 Loan impairment allowances against advances to customers,

TAE KA () banks and other financial institutions (continued)
AR HAT
Bank
A8 5w A iRt
Individual Collective Bk
assessment assessment Total
T T T
e 2011 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
A Y A A ) Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances:
h_FE——F—H— H R Balance at 1 January 2011 371,265 375,749 747,014
WE B K Impairment losses 380,099 124,865 504,964
i EE AS B 7] 2 K Loans written off as uncollectible (46,120) - (46,120)
Tt R RS B 1 8 I (L Unwinding of discounts of loan
A T B A 8 ) impairment allowances
recognised as interest income (22,411) - (22,411)
WA T A0 A A L AR B K Recoveries of loans written off in
previous years 15,125 - 15,125
[TEE 5, i L At 37 Exchange and other adjustments (701) - (701)
AT ——E - H=1—H At 31 December 2011 697,257 500,614 1,197,871
gz B : Deducted from:
R Advances to customers 697,257 391,772 1,089,029
BRAT B H At 4 R B R 2K Advances to banks and other financial
institutions - 16,686 16,686
[EE% Trade bills - 92,156 92,156
697,257 500,614 1,197,871
A AT
Bank
& Bl FF Ak HAE AL
Individual Collective HHEE
assessment assessment Total
T T T
T 2010 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
AU (L EE A 5 ) Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances:
R E—TE— ] — HRE Balance at 1 January 2010 370,636 366,056 736,692
ICAEESEN Impairment losses 134,601 9,693 144,294
B A BB ] 2 B 3Kk Loans written off as uncollectible (130,800) = (130,800)
T R 4 LB A B B (E Unwinding of discounts of loan
R AT B 458 ) impairment allowances recognised
as interest income (8,841) - (8,841)
WAz (] 408 4 3 Y B 2k Recoveries of loans written off in
previous years 5,669 = 5,669
o FE—FE A= T—H At 31 December 2010 371,265 375,749 747,014
gz B : Deducted from:
B RN Advances to customers 371,265 360,629 731,894
SRAT B At 4 il B A 4 3K Advances to banks and other financial
institutions - 1,580 1,580
R Trade bills = 13,540 13,540
371,265 375,749 747,014
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26 B ~ 4T N H A4 ahBERE 2 B3k () 26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS

AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

26.3 HBIE P~ SRAT B M A S R BERS 2 Bk
(A 455 7 3 5% 9 % B WAk )

26.3 Overdue advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions (excluding trade bills and receivables)

A RAPATEE - F R —F
FEroA=t—-Hze@EBMER - 817 &
HC A <6 AR 2 B EK AR (O RLHE T 36 SRR

The gross amounts of the Group’s and the Bank’s advances to
customers, banks and other financial institutions (excluding trade
bills and receivables) overdue as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 are

JRENSC ) 43 Bl analysed as follows:
A AR 4 L
MImnifL  AREB RS WAERMk
£k BB Market  Amountof  Amountof  Individual
Gross FREK value of secured  unsecured impairment
advances FifiH /A1 collateral balance balance allowance
T-WIL % of advances T T Tt T
A%H Group HK$000 tocustomers  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
e S 2011
i Overdue for:
PSR SRS =10 A Six months or less but over three months 12,919 0.0 39,972 11,346 1,573 2,515
— AT R A A One year or less but over six months 685,970 0.4 85,888 29,582 656,388 386,328
i — A Over one year 357,896 0.2 301,537 232,118 125,778 188,006
1,056,785 0.6 427,397 273,046 783,739 576,849
e Sl 2010
i Overdue for:
B A ST EE R =M A Six months or less but over three months 10,317 0.0 16,021 9,066 1,251 1,168
— AT R A A One year or less but over six months 505,843 0.3 3,369 502,767 3,076 1,950
i —A Over one year 400,985 0.2 251,841 225,275 175,710 217,015
917,145 05 271,231 737,108 180,037 220,133
A 4 e L]
MImf  HREH AREE  WHERMH
ji¢ k] Market  Amountof  Amountof  Individual
Gross R value of secured  unsecured impairment
advances BifiE 21k collateral balance balance allowance
T#IL % of advances T Tt Tt T
AHUT Bank HK$’000 to customers HKS$000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
-4 2011
i Overdue for:
AR ST E R = A A Six months or less but over three months 12,919 0.0 39,972 11,346 1,573 2,515
—AEH L HE#E A One year o less but over six months 685,970 0.5 85,888 29,582 656,388 386,328
i — 4 Over one year 129,698 0.1 145,321 75,902 53,796 116,025
828,587 0.6 271,181 116,830 711,757 504,868
R R 2010
i Overdue for:
SR A BT R = A A Six months or less but over three months 10,317 0.0 16,021 9,066 1,251 1,168
—AEF PR A A One year or less but over six months 505,843 0.3 3,369 502,767 3,076 1,950
B — 4 Over one year 128,577 0.1 80,754 54,188 74,389 115,694
644,737 0.4 100,144 566,021 78,716 118,812
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26 B~ ST R Al 4 B AR 2 B3 (a0 26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS
AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

26.3 MM E P - SRAT R oAt 4 Bl AE 2 Bk
(A 2955 v 2 48 % ME Wk JE) (40)

26.3 Overdue advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions (excluding trade bills and receivables)
(continued)

B AR AR

The criteria for eligible collateral are as follows:

. KA ity T 2 7% it 5 5 RT 4 B M 8 R «  The market value of the collateral is readily determinable or
B can be reasonably established and verified;

. I THE - HA R AR T «  The collateral is marketable and there exists a readily available
R secondary market for disposing of the collateral;

. A SR AT Ui ] AR A B R AR 9 o T B . The Bank’s rights to repossess the collateral is legally

7 ELAE S AE: o] BELBBE 5 B

enforceable and without impediment; and

o AR A AT RS B B R o B AR .
FTARAE > BUAGRAT T e 5 FL 7 oL o

If the collateral is a movable asset, it should be under the
Bank’s custody, or its whereabouts can be located by the Bank.

BT EE R AR

The eligible collateral is mainly properties, deposits and shares.

26.4 H-fth 76 1 B E

26.4 Other overdue assets

2011 2011 2010 2010

M A B Jo b ¥ JE &R HoAth

Accrued Other Accrued Other

interest assets interest assets

T#L T T#s 7T Tt

A4 Group HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

W Overdue for:

A DE RS AN (< X Six months or less but over three

months 714 25,202 - -

— AR DL HE S 8 A One year or less but over six months - 7,006 2,431 =

i — 4R Over one year 72,360 - 52,185 -

73,074 32,208 54,616 -

EAEE Rescheduled assets - - - -

73,074 32,208 54,616 -

2011 2011 2010 2010

M A B oAb % JE R RS oA ¥ e

Accrued Other Accrued Other

interest assets interest assets

T#xL T T#s 7T Tt

A @AT Bank HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

i Overdue for:

75 AR A Bk DA H A =R A Six months or less but over three

months - 25,202 - -

— AR DL H B S 8 A One year or less but over six months - 7,006 2,431 =

i — 4 Over one year - - - -

- 32,208 2,431 -

HAEE Rescheduled assets - - = =

- 32,208 2,431 -

FOAb R 7 5 7 S TR AR T RO

Other assets refer to trade bills and receivables.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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26 FF -~ ST R b S BB Z BEAR (a0

26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS

AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

26.5 HAE R 26.5 Rescheduled advances

2011 2010
T¥#L T oo
AR I B AR B AT Group and Bank HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000

o AH B O AL 45 Rescheduled advances (excluding overdue loans
=B A 2z R EK) over three months) 76,144 98,456
2011 2010
FERHIAEE S As % of advances to customers 0.05 0.06

AR A AE w1 B MK v 0 = H 1) T4
FEE b ST 26,338 1 B 23 A L[ -

I S o s B E ) e S 2
T A=t —H o WA T SRAT e HoAth 4 Rl
A R A R R = 5 IR AT AT SR AT K
At 4 il B AR 1Y R AR o

26.6 W [Bl & E

WoE——FEt+ A=t —H  AEHFAH
3,550,000%5 6.2 Y FI & i (—F —FF 2 H
= H ) o i In] B A B A Tk
A3 MR 3% 8 O AT 17 BUAS (A35 i v 47 B
AH B N T ) BT B R ¥ o

26.7 i Zr BT % 1m0 I b e ) B A

i 5] J 52 5 T o R A A R A I T LA M
RS R = - — =+
H B 28 P18 (8 £53,316,295,0003k 7T (45 ¥ 17 %
BRI SR (ZF—F4F 1 2,247,577,000%5
JG) o ANAEAS H o A S R R LI AR
H B B o AR AT AT G 1 1 i A B S
T B Y — i M K o

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011

26.6

26.7

Rescheduled advances which have been overdue for more than
three months under the revised repayment terms are included in the
analysis of overdue advances in Note 26.3 above.

There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
which were overdue for over 3 months; nor were there any
rescheduled advances to banks and other financial institutions as at
31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010.

Repossessed assets

There was repossessed assets of the Group amounted to
HK$3,550,000 as at 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010: Nil).
Repossessed assets only comprise properties which the Group has
acquired access or control (e.g. through legal actions or voluntary
actions by the borrowers concerned) for releasing in full or in part on
the obligations of the borrowers.

Cash collateral on securities borrowed and reverse
repurchase agreements

In respect of reverse repurchase transactions, the fair value of
collateral held by the Group which was permitted to be sold or
repledged amounted to HK$3,316,295,000 (the amount if the
Reverse Repo) as at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$2,247,577,000).
No collateral has been actually sold or repledged by the Group as at
the year end. The transactions are conducted on terms that are usual
and customary to standard lending activities.
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27 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

A4
Group
2011 2010
T ¥ T T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
&% - Debt securities:
A BT Listed in Hong Kong 4,181,019 2,658,936
AW US| Tl Listed outside Hong Kong 18,972,699 18,304,817
I b Unlisted 12,569,498 13,815,011
35,723,216 34,778,764
JBe R w5 Equity securities:
A i} Listed in Hong Kong 466,199 781,210
F ] Unlisted 83,994 84,041
550,193 865,251
e 11 51 5 4 Bl G ARAR Total available-for-sale financial investments 36,273,409 35,644,015
bR sE i Market value of listed securities 23,619,917 21,744,963
et ABEERZ Debt securities after taking into account of impairment
EHREFEUTHEA : losses are comprised of the following items:
P A7 K Certificates of deposit held 2,523,577 2,091,732
HAb 25 Other debt securities 33,199,639 32,687,032
35,723,216 34,778,764
AL gH & S M & Available-for-sale financial investments are
HEBAT NI A an T analysed by category of issuer as follows:
o BUR B g AT Central governments and central banks 1,373,603 1,307,822
UNCE T Public sector entities 421,593 514,234
SRAT B At <5 Pl B AR Banks and other financial institutions 22,243,581 24,418,907
13 Corporate entities 12,233,955 9,402,375
HoAtly Others 677 677
36,273,409 35,644,015

AT PR ST 08 36 A 5 T 22 A8 3L 645 < R 50 AR o 1R 5l
WAEEE (T F - R4E ) -

There was no individual impairment loss to the Group’s available-for-sale
financial investments made during the year (2010: Nil).
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27 HiBEE B S RIE () 27 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
(continued)
AR GAT
Bank
2011 2010
T THs T
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
&% - Debt securities:
A A BT Listed in Hong Kong 4,181,019 2,658,936
A WS LASI b [ | Tl Listed outside Hong Kong 18,972,699 18,304,817
JE b Unlisted 11,715,780 13,814,698
34,869,498 34,778,451
B R S Equity securities:
A i} Listed in Hong Kong 466,199 781,210
oF bfi Unlisted 83,994 84,041
550,193 865,251
A 1L B B 4 T S B AR Total available-for-sale financial investments 35,419,691 35,643,702
LEiiREHEZ HE Market value of listed securities 23,619,917 21,744,963
et ABEERZ Debt securities after taking into account of impairment
EHRAFEUTEA : losses are comprised of the following items:
FriEE 2 A7 ks Certificates of deposit held 2,523,577 2,091,732
HoAth 5 % Other debt securities 32,345,921 32,686,719
34,869,498 34,778,451
HALSHE SR E Available-for-sale financial investments are analysed by
FEBAT NI A an T category of issuer as follows:
o BUR B R AT Central governments and central banks 1,013,673 1,307,822
N Public sector entities 421,593 514,234
BRAT B Al 4 il B Banks and other financial institutions 21,750,105 24,418,907
3 Corporate entities 12,233,943 9,402,362
HoAth Others 377 377
35,419,691 35,643,702

A A ST 08 3 AR GRAT 22 A8 3L 645 < R 150 AR o 1R 5l
WAEEE (T F - R4E ) -

There was no individual impairment loss to the Bank’s available-for-sale
financial investments made during the year (2010: Nil).
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28 BAZRIMEERE 28 HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
4 1 e R AT
Group and Bank
2011 2010
T#L T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
2% Debt securities:
i) Listed - -
F b Unlisted 1,164,239 1,164,056
1,164,239 1,164,056
W BEE K Less: Impairment losses - -
T A 2 5| ) 4 Rl 3% A Total held-to-maturity financial investments 1,164,239 1,164,056
bR i E Market value of listed securities - -
REET AN WE IR R 2 5 4 Debt securities after taking into account of
PITNIHE - impairment losses are comprised of the
following items:
J& 5 Treasury bills 1,164,239 1,164,056
R 22 E MR E R g A Held-to-maturity financial investments are
BT E analysed by category of issuer as follows:
RO K YL ER AT Central governments and central banks 1,164,239 1,164,056
R 2 B 304 4G 2 46 TR e A 5 ) Movements in collective impairment allowances on held-to-maturity

financial investments

A AR 1 B AR B AT
Group and Bank
2011 2010
T T3 5%
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
w—H—H At 1 January - 234
A0 AUk 18 2K T 43¢ Write-back of collective impairment losses - (234)

W+ A=+—H At 31 December _ _

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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29 REEAFZRE 29 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

AR

Group
2011 2010
TH#L Tt
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000
JE A ¥ Share of net assets 183,881 163,201
i W B A 2 Goodwill on acquisition 29,786 29,786
213,667 192,987

A BLAT

Bank
2011 2010
T T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’000
JE BT B > e AR 5 (E Unlisted shares investments at cost 138,138 138,138

AR B M B A R 2 AR - B Al
IR b W

The Group’s interest in its principal associate which is unlisted, is as
follows:

¥R fifi L'ON i AR £
GRU AR Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit "l
Place of T T#xT T T#L % of interest
incorporation HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 held
2011
s 241,143 120,961 22,291 19,388 40%
IEC Investments Limited Hong Kong
2010
ik 230,141 129,347 22,184 17,867 40%
IEC Investments Limited Hong Kong

IEC Investments Limited 75 7 #5 f¢ 35 0 & B o AR 45
9] 7 A 79 4988 A 40,000 A 455 5 T (L 1345 T 2 5% W 4 /A &)
B o

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011

IEC Investments Limited engages in investment holding in Hong Kong.
The Group held 40,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each of this associate
during the year.
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30 TR N H bR G E 30 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
I ik A R 5 hE
[k Computer Trading ik
Goodwill software rights Total
T#xL T#x T#x T#x
A4 Group HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$ 000
A AR B A T T (E Cost or net carrying amount
R ——FE—H—H At 1 January 2011 999,715 221,450 1,895 1,223,060
wE Additions - 9,231 - 9,231
A Disposal - (98,570) - (98,570)
H A o 42 Other adjustments - 358 - 358
AR ——4FE T ZH=+—H At 31 December 2011 999,715 132,469 1,895 1,134,079
B RTHESH Accumulated amortisation
R ——FE—H—H At 1 January 2011 - 206,413 - 206,413
F I 81 Charge for the year - 8,550 - 8,550
e Disposal - (98,570) - (98,570)
HoAth 54 Other adjustments - 208 - 208
AR ——4FEFZH=+T—H At 31 December 2011 - 116,601 - 116,601
W T T (E Net book value
HwWoE—-——F+_H=1+—H At 31 December 2011 999,715 15,868 1,895 1,017,478
o A 22 5 HE
(RS Computer Trading &wk
Goodwill software rights Total
TH#TT THTT THsTT THTT
A E Group HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
A AR B T T (E Cost or net carrying amount
R —FFE—H—H At 1 January 2010 999,715 215,865 1,895 1,217,475
B Additions - 5,428 - 5,428
i Disposal - (60) - (60)
HoAth 4 B Other adjustments - 217 - 217
AT —RIFET+_H=1T—H At 31 December 2010 999,715 221,450 1,895 1,223,060
ZRTHESH Accumulated amortisation
R —FE—H—H At 1 January 2010 = 196,582 = 196,582
A I 81 Charge for the year - 9,785 - 9,785
i Disposal - (60) - (60)
HoAth 74 Other adjustments - 106 - 106
AR+ H=1T—H At 31 December 2010 = 206,413 = 206,413
[EJTTRE(E] Net book value
R —FFEF A= —H At 31 December 2010 999,715 15,037 1,895 1,016,647
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30 P A A b JOE F A () 30 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(continued)
B WK 1
[F; Computer e
Goodwill software Total
T¥#L T T#HL
ARHAT Bank HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
A SR T 3 B Cost or net carrying amount
e At 1 January 2011 937,986 214,830 1,152,816
NHE Additions - 7,147 7,147
A Disposal - (98,570) (98,570)
A F——4 " H=+—H At 31 December 2011 937,986 123,407 1,061,393
E2yie i Accumulated amortisation
o E——F—H—H At 1 January 2011 - 202,859 202,859
F I 81 Charge for the year - 7,196 7,196
e Disposal - (98,570) (98,570)
WoE——4F+ A =1+—H At 31 December 2011 - 111,485 111,485
R T Net book value
Mo ——4F+_H=+—H At 31 December 2011 937,986 11,922 949,908
o S A
[ Computer &
Goodwill software Total
T Tt AR P
ARERAT Bank HK$’ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000
A AR B R T T (E Cost or net carrying amount
MR-FE—-FHFE—-H—H At 1 January 2010 615,669 209,599 825,268
700 20 255 TR — R Ja 2 A Addition through closure of a subsidiary 322,317 - 322,317
WA Additions = 5,291 5,291
fieges Disposal - (60) (60)
W oE—FEF_HA=+—H At 31 December 2010 937,986 214,830 1,152,816
2T 4 Accumulated amortisation
WoE-FFE—HA—H At 1 January 2010 = 194,301 194,301
A 1) 44 8 Charge for the year = 8,618 8,618
e Disposal - (60) (60)
WoE—FESH=+—H At 31 December 2010 = 202,859 202,859
W T Net book value
WoE—ZE+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2010 937,986 11,971 949,957
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30 B RICMIETE B & o 30 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(continued)
B 3 Notes:
(i) HEEBHERANR _FERLE+TAEGTHE  H (i)  The Core banking system was upgraded in October 2005 with direct costs
2 A 35 kA B TR 1) 2 A AR B RS - Sl 4 I e including software development consultancy fees and employee costs
AR _EENFER _EFNFFT_A=+—HZ recognised as intangible asset as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 respectively.
T G o
(i) R EEIUAE AT E W RITIEICBC Asia Wa (ii)  In 2004, the Bank acquired all the issued share capital of ICBC Asia Wa Pei
Pei Limited % [l 2 22 % & 8547 A o S IH Wil 2 75 Limited group from Fortis Bank. The goodwill of the acquisition amounted to
2 /$322,317,000 7T © fEICBC Asia Wa Pei Limited 2 HK$322,317,000. After the operations and the cash-generating units of ICBC
SEWS o B4 A B SE A F N RS RAT (BRI 1% - Asia Wa Pei Limited was fully merged with that of ICBC Asia, ICBC Asia Wa
ICBC Asia Wa Pei Limited £ i & —Z4F N5 > 1 Pei Limited was liquidated during 2010, and the goodwill was released to the
T2 IR B A A SRAT - bank accordingly.
(i) B2 P A 3R 4 R B 2 W B At (iii) Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill.
A A B i S 4 0 40 T PR T T 9 ) 9 B < A E AL ([ B Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGU) identified
SAFEREAL] T according to business segment as follows:
2011 2010
Tl it 5T
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
1 3 B A K SR AT Corporate and Investment Banking 585,715 585,715
P RAT Commercial Banking 230,450 230,450
T RAT Retail Banking 142,386 142,386
HoAt Others 41,164 41,164
999,715 999,715

i 4 A A 4 T [ < R AR B 6 D R (RO o RHBE O
T R TR A A T 2 4 S0 T ) 5 T ) B
it o AR — A JUT T A B < 0 A AL B A A R A A B
e A )T A B <6 VAL T 2 g R R A T A B e
AL T S R R R B B R R

FHA FH G5 B (R A 47 B % 50.5% 552.5% (=& — FH4F ¢
0.5%%£4.5%) °

A L AR R A % T I 5 R DA PR R S R B -
HET- 2438 1= 4 AT SR 5 70 BT AR O — 30 -

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations.
Such calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period are
extrapolated using the estimate rates stated below. The growth rate which applies
to the cashflow projections over the one-year period does not exceed the long term
average growth rate for the business of which the CGU operates.

The discount rates used for value-in-use calculations are ranging from 0.5% to 2.5%
(2010: 0.5% to 4.5%).

Management determined the budgeted financial performance based on the past

performance and its expectation for market development. The weighted average
growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
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31 BEWE 31 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
A4 B R HAT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#x T T#L T
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
R —H— H Z Wi Carrying amount at 1 January 53,765 46,213 28,000 25,500
FENRE Additions during the year 11,586 - 11,586 -
Ak S i AR Net revaluation gain 10,465 7,552 3,814 2,500
A=+ — HZRm(E Carrying amount at 31 December 75,816 53,765 43,400 28,000
AR 2 BB W) 2E AR A R N M 4% DA A The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and
A Mainland China under the following lease terms:
A SR M AR AT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#L T T#T T
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
1EF WA Held in Hong Kong
R E (504E L 1) Long term leases (over 50 years) 43,400 28,000 43,400 28,000
TE 7 W DASM Hl 15 457 A Held outside Hong Kong
T AT B (102504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 32,416 25,765 - =
75,816 53,765 43,400 28,000
REPITH R ENER —F——F A =1T—HH The Bank’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2011
8 3 TS A U 2 R A B AT 4 B by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates an independent professionally qualified
T 35 K T P 7k 2 R W A 7€ £543,400,0009 7T (— valuer, at HK$43,400,000 (2010: HK$28,000,000) on an open market,
T —ZAF 28,000,000 TC) o ASRAT B 2 ] Y 4 existing use basis. The investment properties of the Bank’s subsidiary were
EYER_F——F A=+ —HhB I HES revalued on 31 December 2011 by Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and
A ) S N TR O A S b E A Real Estate Appraisal Consulting Co., Ltd., an independent professionally
SR A R T4 2N BT 35 e R T 4 Ik e G qualified valuer, at HK$32,416,000 (2010: HK$25,765,000) on an open
#432,416,000% JC (& —F 4 1 25,765,000%5 JC) ° market, existing use basis.
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31 HEWE @) 31 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
#HEYEER Particulars of investment properties
—E——FE+—"H=+—H 31 December 2011

7 55 1 2k & ) 4

b & AL Attributable interest

Location Use Lease term of the Group

Vi O v v L BB SR L T B YR Al EEik:S RIS (504 1) 100%

Shop B on the Ground Floor, Office building Long term lease (over 50 years) 100%

No. 8 Causeway Road,

Hong Kong

T L TR T A P 1 5 T ASR A FZE M & R E (504F U 1) 100%

Shop A on Ground floor, Office building Long term lease (over 50 years) 100%

No. 1 Des Voeux Road West,

Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

TRYITI A FH 18 2 7 o 201058 [EEiik:H T ITH B (10 504F) 100%

TR K 238

23/F, Dongfeng Building, Office building Medium term lease (10-50 years) 100%

No. 2010 Shennan Central Road,

Futian District, Shenzhen

TRYIT AR FH 16 I SR ek 86 A o 32 T2 o [GEikzS T A (102 504F) 100%

VOB A% A - BJEE

Unit A&B, 2/F, 4 Blocks, Office building Medium term lease (10-50 years) 100%

SEG Technology Park,

Zhenxing Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
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32 YR

32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A%H
BAT R Rk AR s fhi
Bank LINEIES Furniture
premises and Leasehold and it
properties improvements equipment Total
TH#x T Tl T#x
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
REF—FEFTZA=1T—HK At 31 December 2010 and
“F——4-A-H: 1 January 2011:
A S Al Cost or valuation 439,319 214,142 236,187 889,648
2T KR A Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (95,902) (133,318) (158,577) (387,797)
REF-FF+ZA=Z+—H R Net book value at 31 December 2010
ZF - A HZIRIE T and 1 January 2011 343,417 80,824 77,610 501,851
RE Additions - 48,431 44,442 92,873
LSS /§/ES Transfer out to investment property (11,586) - - (11,586)
ik Disposals - (145) (210) (355)
A (B EEG)) Revaluation (Note (i)) 65,578 - - 65,578
N FHRTE Depreciation provided during the year (16,303) (17,595) (23,246) (57,144)
HE 8 e FE At o 88 Exchange rate and other adjustments 1,447 - 830 2,277
MEF——FF A=t —H 2R E Net book value at 31 December 2011 382,553 111,515 99,426 593,494
WoF——E+_A=+—H: At 31 December 2011:
FA B S (L Cost or valuation 514,772 258,326 277,258 1,050,356
ZEHIE R Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (132,219) (146,811) (177,832) (456,862)
MEF——F A=t —HZIRH R E Net book value at 31 December 2011 382,553 111,515 99,426 593,494
B 2 A SR AT The analysis of cost or valuation of the
above assets is as follows:
RoF——F+_A=+—H: At 31 December 2011:
A At cost - 258,326 277,258 535,584
Al At valuation 382,553 - - 382,553
382,553 258,326 277,258 918,137
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32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

AR Group
SRATIE E R 1R R 3 Ml
Bank  HEWEEE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and Mt
properties improvements equipment Total
T T T T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS$’ 000
REZEEZNFEF—H=+—HX At 31 December 2009 and
“E-FE-A-H: 1 January 2010:
S fE B (E Cost or valuation 171,868 208,261 221,736 601,865
2T E L Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (69,402) (117,215) (141,295) (327,912)
W_EEANEF A= B R Net book value at 31 December
ZE-BE— A —HZRIE T E 2009 and 1 January 2010 102,466 91,046 80,441 273,953
RAEEETHERS 179 2 % Effect of adopting HKAS 17 240,238 = = 240,238
NoEENLFEFH=+—H Net book value at 31 December
BoF—RF— ] —H IR HE 2009 and 1 January 2010 342,704 91,046 80,441 514,191
NE Additions = 6,877 17,116 23,993
HE Disposals (26,878) - (163) (27,041)
EXRGETO) Revaluation (Note (i)) 40,828 = = 40,828
R EHE Depreciation provided during the year (14,808) (17,100) (19,874) (51,782)
WEE B, S At 77 %% Exchange rate and other adjustments 1,571 1 90 1,662
RoF—FE+ A=+ —HZIRE R E Net book value at 31 December 2010 343,417 80,824 77,610 501,851
R-F—FFEL_H=1+—H: At 31 December 2010:
JAS (1 55 £ Cost or valuation 439,319 214,142 236,187 889,648
25 R Accumulated depreciation and impairment (95,902) (133,318) (158,577) (387,797)
REF—FFE+ A =+—HZ R Net book value at 31 December 2010 343,417 80,824 77,610 501,851
A AR A AT The analysis of cost or valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
R-F—FF+_A=1+—H: At 31 December 2010:
BRAA At cost = 214,142 236,187 450,329
Ak At valuation 343,417 = = 343,417
343,417 214,142 236,187 793,746
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32 YR @0

32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

ARHAT Bank
BAT R R AR B it i
Bank MEWEEE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and it
properties improvements equipment Total
T#x T#L T T#x
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
ZE-ZELZAZT—HR At 31 December 2010 and
“FZ——4-f-H: 1 January 2011:
JA (5 A Cost or valuation 274,369 214,047 220,938 709,354
ZEHTE R Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (19,919) (133,313) (148,395) (301,627)
REF—FFETZHA=1T—HR Net book value at 31 December
ZF——— A HZIRIE 2010 and 1 January 2011 254,450 80,734 72,543 407,727
WNE Additions - 25,529 34,917 60,446
LS /§/E S Transfer out to investment property (11,586) - - (11,586)
ik Disposals - (145) (202) (347)
E Al (R 5EG)) Revaluation (Note (i) 44,090 - - 44,090
FRFHETE Depreciation provided during the year (4,145) (17,587) (20,133) (41,865)
“E——F+ZH=1+—HZIRmHE Net book value at 31 December 2011 282,809 88,531 87,125 458,465
ZE-—EFZAZt At 31 December 2011:
EM [EE Y Cost or valuation 308,164 235,328 251,956 795,448
ZEH e R Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (25,355) (146,797) (164,831) (336,983)
REZ——F+ZH=1—HZKHFHE Net book value at 31 December 2011 282,809 88,531 87,125 458,465
L EE 2 AT EM T The analysis of cost or valuation of the
above assets is as follows:
Rt A=t At 31 December 2011:
1’* WA E At cost - 235,328 251,956 487,284
Ak At valuation 282,809 - - 282,809
282,809 235,328 251,956 770,093
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32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

ARHUT Bank
AT E R Ve
Bank  FE#ELE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and Mt
properties improvements equipment Total
THT THT T THT
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
REFFNFEFA=+—HR At 31 December 2009 and
“E-FE-A-H: 1 January 2010:
JAS (55 £ (A Cost or valuation 17,234 207,535 209,622 434,391
2 RO Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (3,521) (116,723) (133,683) (253,927)
NZFENEFZA=F+—H K Net book value at 31 December
“E-FE—A—H 2009 and 1 January 2010 13,713 90,812 75,939 180,464
FRAEEETHERS 179 2 % Effect of adopting HKAS 17 240,238 = = 240,238
REZZFNETZA=+—HK Net book value at 31 December
CER-FE— - H IR E 2009 and 1 January 2010 253,951 90,812 75,939 420,702
WE Additions - 6,783 14,305 21,088
& Disposals (26,879) = (145) (27,024)
Al (HFEEx) Revaluation (Note (i) 31,372 - = 31,372
R EHE Depreciation provided during the year (3,994) (16,861) (17,556) (38,411)
NoE—FEF A=+~ B ZIREFE Net book value at 31 December 2010 254,450 80,734 72,543 407,727
Ao R—FEF A=+ —H At 31 December 2010:
FEAR(H S A (E Cost or valuation 274,369 214,047 220,938 709,354
REHTE RBE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (19,919) (133,313) (148,395) (301,627)
MZF-FEF A= HZRH T E Net book value at 31 December 2010 254,450 80,734 72,543 407,727
A AR A AT The analysis of cost or valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
REZ—FFE+ZA=1—H: At 31 December 2010:
A At cost = 214,047 220,938 434,985
Al (B At valuation 254,450 - = 254,450
254,450 214,047 220,938 689,435
ff 5k Note:
(i) SMITWELEF—F+H=+—HBREHBE T (i)  The bank premises were revalued at 31 December 2011 based on the open

2B G RS A A A O W AT T AR 2 S BT
B EEAT EAG o AEEMB AR ZEEER %
—— AR T H = HOARE R R E A S S
A U R 0 A R A i A £
AR PR F TR 2 A BT S A EEAT A o &
At B (11163 788 FH A0 48 o A58 ) 9 ok A B R RE 4 Hh 2
SRATY) FE AL A o QA SR [ AR GRAT Z SRAT
E ) A AR W B T B AR - B A 2 MR T (E
53 7l £569,990,0009 I (=% —FA4F 78,989,000
JG) $41,497,000% 0 ( =& —F4F 1 48,543,000457C) °

market value by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an independent professionally
qualified valuer. The subsidiary’s premises were revalued at 31 December 2011
based on the open market value by Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and Real
Estate Appraisal Consulting Co., Ltd., an independent professionally qualified
valuer in the Mainland China. The revaluation surplus net of applicable
deferred income taxes was credited to bank premises revaluation reserve
in shareholders’ equity. The carrying amounts of the bank premises and
properties of the Group and the Bank would have been HK$69,990,000 (2010:
HK$78,989,000) and HK$41,497,000 (2010: HK$48,543,000) respectively had
they been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
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32 WSk Sttt 32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
AR 2 W AL A v S R R DA R AR A The Group’s properties are situated in Hong Kong and Mainland China
under the following lease terms:
A4 A HAT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#T T T#xT T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
EFWRA Held in Hong Kong
RIMHE (504U ) Long term leases (over 50 years) 219,899 198,400 219,899 198,400
RIS (105 504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 62,910 56,050 62,910 56,050
167 W DSl I 45 A Held outside Hong Kong
AT B (1022504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 99,744 88,967 - =
382,553 343,417 282,809 254,450

PRy
33 Hfthig 33 OTHER ASSETS

AL AT
Group Bank

2011 2010 2011 2010
T T U T T#L T U T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
JRE W] EL Interest receivable 668,333 420,348 559,536 416,775
T AT IE Prepayments 195,538 166,230 184,982 162,175
HEIERF Settlement accounts 655,261 398,153 655,261 651,914
A PR 8 Margin deposit paid 520,830 539,275 520,830 539,275
GEx Partnership 446,304 459,009 446,304 459,009
i 2 Factoring 508,097 385,987 508,097 385,987
HAth Others 129,005 73,346 277,905 143,733
3,123,368 2,442,348 3,152,915 2,758,868
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34 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

341 WAL E 34.1 Investments at cost
A AT
Bank
2011 2010
T T T
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
JE BT A > He R ARE Unlisted shares investments at cost 3,968,107 2,116,941

PTFAEASPFH - F—-—F+_-H=+—H

The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Bank at 31

FrA 2 W a2 w4 December 2011:
HHUHERE/
o W A Z

FRURE ] FEEH Particulars of issued Fifi M A
kL Place of Principal shares held/ Interest held
Name incorporation activities registered capital 2011 2010
AT HEARIAE LES ] R 13,150,000,0007C 100% 100%
Chinese Mercantile Bank* People’s Republic of China Banking business RMB3,150,000,000
TR RREEAARAA Fib PRl i R AR A 1,000,000t 7 1 3 7 2 A ¢ 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Hong Kong Provision of asset management services 1,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

Company Limited
TREWERARAA Hi N 6,000,000/8¢ 5 /5T {81 70 2 % e 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited Hong Kong Inactive 6,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
TREWBEERARA #it EHARTZ MR ERRES 26,000,000 1 1 (61 1870 2 % 4 e 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Limited Hong Kong Management of the Bank’s PRC 26,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
impaired loan-portfolio
TRENBHEAARAR Fib PRl e A 27,828,870 R 1 0 2 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Hong Kong Provision of asset management services 27,828,870 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Company Limited

T I AKRAR Ei e IN o 1001 & e i 100 7 7¢ < & 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited Hong Kong Provision of nominee services 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each
TSRETH T 55 A1 A i TRk 25 48 A M 100,000,000 7 {1 18 72 2 4@ Mt 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited Hong Kong Provision of securities brokerage services 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
TSRETH {5 o A Ei Pt SR 30,000/ B i 1100 1 72.2 % 4 e 100% 100%
ICBC (Asta) Trustee Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of trustee services 30,000 ordinary shares of HK$100 each
ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited & N 100f: B 7 1 98 70 2 A 100% 100%

Hong Kong Inactive 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
ICBCA (C.) Limited MEHE BT L Ha A VR B A T2 E IR 100% 100%

Cayman Islands Being a special-purpose vehicle 1 ordinary share of US$1

for bond issuance

KB R AR ERARAR KRR R NG U L e 2 3 100% 100%
UB China Business Management Co. Ltd. British Virgin Islands Inactive 1 ordinary share of US$1

* T A

*  Foreign-owned enterprise
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34 NBEE A F Z B
34.2 W8P A

34 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

34.2 Disposal of controlled unit trusts

2011 2010
T#x T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T Net assets disposed of:

MEFE X Accrued expenses - (8,140)

B4 B 55 IR B4 TH H Cash and cash equivalents - 1,308,585

JE B4R IE Tax payable - (1,290,445)

- 10,000
HEZ A E B R An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
S5 [m BB THH WA T equivalents in respect of the disposal of controlled
ST unit trusts is as follows:
A Satisfied by:

Bl Cash - 10,000
Bl HE Cash consideration - 10,000
HEZ A EEZ B SR Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

SR B THH WA R of the disposal of controlled unit trusts - 10,000
35 HFPAEK 35 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

A4 A HAT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#xT T T#xT T T
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
TSR AR AR 1 Demand deposits and current accounts 36,617,976 12,789,495 29,678,743 11,421,052
T #5173 Savings deposits 40,332,662 35,694,781 40,258,529 35,684,559
& HA K AT R Time, call and notice deposits 185,671,425 145,059,275 162,522,760 132,372,604
262,622,063 193,543,551 232,460,032 179,478,215
36 IEUAFEMAEMLKBRAKRZ 36 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR
& it £ VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
A4 A HAT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#x R T#L T T
HKS$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
LT A7 (1) Certificates of deposit issued (i) 77,818 884,795 77,818 884,795
C B AT 77 (i) Debt securities in issue (ii) - 108,799 - 108,799
77,818 993,594 77,818 993,594

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011



o TR 64T (35 ) 45 B A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

36 HE AR SRR ARZ 36 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR
& mﬂﬁ 1R () VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
() BEfITAxER _EF——F+_H=+—H (i)  The fair value of certificates of deposit issued at 31 December 2011
Y 2 ST (B2 1 5 40 B e i 1088 s 7T (= was HK$0.1 million higher (2010: HK$7 million higher) than the
T—TAF  F 7008 W TT) o KE 6 E R A2 B contractual amount at maturity. The amounts of changes in the fair
ERE BT FRELATFEHERERFEEZZE value of the certificates of deposit issued that were attributable to
BEEULR —F——F+H=Z+—HR changes in credit risk were considered not significant during the
—E -EE+ T H=t+—HZEiEe 4% year presented and cumulatively as at 31 December 2011 and 31
PRI ARER - December 2010.
(i) WoF——F+_H=+T—HIEKC#EITZ (ii) There were no outstanding of debt securities in issue designated at
6 78 DA P (B A8 0 2 3R A MR 2 557 2 14 oK fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2011.
fHR
15 0 JE By 5 B 7 A 2 & R B RS PR (B The amounts of changes in the fair value of the financial liabilities
B 2 R H N IE 51 R T B R R 2 TS R that are attributable to changes in credit risk are determined as the
BEZ GMARATEEZEZ SHEET - amounts of changes in the fair value of the financial liabilities that
fE B A 84k AL A FEE are not attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to
53858 ' B DR S HA 7 355 R 3R o B Bl T A o market risk. The credit spread has not changed and the changes in
fair value of the financial liabilities are attributable to the changes in
other market factor components.
37 WERERLIH 37 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
% S0 3 T BRI 2 B AR T R R 16.5% Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under
HE (SR 0 16.5%) ° the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%).
IEBIEBIE G E (A 2 88T - The movements on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) account are as
follows:
A4 1
Group
2011 2010
T#T T T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
w—H—H At 1 January (114,831) (190,262)
TR W g ke R 251798 2 s 2 Effect of adopting HKAS 17 - (34,124)
w—H—H At 1 January (114,831) (224,386)
1 45 RFCLAR Credited to income statement 11,933 691
TEHE 7 O MR Credited to equity 86,850 107,925
BEE 5, 5 G At 5 4 Exchange and other adjustments 6,546 939
Wt —_H=+—H At 31 December (9,502) (114,831)
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37 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for

o financial reporting purposes:
2011 2010
T#L THs T
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
WA &7 5 IR D 2R e R Net deferred income tax assets recognised
Z % SIE B JH G U AR in the consolidated statement of financial position 3,954 -
WA &G BB IR DL 2R e R Net deferred income tax liabilities recognised
A S ol JH A i 0 R in the consolidated statement of financial position (13,456) (114,831)
w+—A=+—H At 31 December (9,502) (114,831)
AHAT
Bank
2011 2010
T#L T T
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BA* H—H At 1 January (106,746) (184,850)
RN A s e R R RIS 179 2 Effect of adopting HKAS 17 - (34,124)
w—H—H At 1 January (106,746) (218,974)
TEUR 55 £ R IR Credited to income statement 18,478 1,939
1EHE 2 HE AR (B aE41) Credited to equity (Note 41) 92,222 110,289
wtHtZA=+—H At 31 December 3,954 (106,746)
RN LR CGUIR) BB R The deferred income tax credited/(debited) to equity during the year is as
follows:
AGH AGT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#xL T#ET T#x Ti#ET
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
’L?UE 5 2N B AR i i Fair value reserves in shareholder’s equity
T3 (FfE41) Bank premises (Note 41) (12,668) (3,135) (7,296) (771)
1%{,\ P MAE (MEE41)  Available-for-sale financial investments (Note 41) 99,518 111,060 99,518 111,060
86,850 107,925 92,222 110,289
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37 Lﬁ}iﬁé]};{ (%) 37 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
A A A JE B TE e R (BRI — B B 2 & B The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to
HLEHHT) Z B offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the

year are as follows:

I8 E B VE K Deferred income tax assets
FIRES HiRiDS B TAh o BB T
Collective Investment Accelerated tax A
impairment losses revaluation reserves depreciation Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
T#r Tx THL THx TEx  TBc  TEX  T#x
A Group HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS 000
R—H—H At 1 January 40,278 38561 11,036 2,809 15,127 13,746 66,441 55,116
TE 4 % Credited/(charged) to income
R/ (GIR) statement 20,447 1,717 - = (4,882) 15 15,565 1,732
TR Credited to equity - - 47541 8,227 - - 47541 8,27
HE 54, 7% 3 Exchange difference - - - - 7,176 1,366 7,176 1,366
RtZA=+—H At 31 December 60,725 40278 58577 11,036 17,421 15127 136,723 66,441
A4 WAL K B A G
Collective Investment W
impairment losses revaluation reserves Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
T#x T TH#x T 0 T#L AR
AHAT Bank HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HKS$ 000
h—H—H At 1 January 40,278 38,561 11,036 2,809 51,314 41,370
TR i R o R Credited to income statement 20,447 1,717 - = 20,447 1,717
TEHE 5 w0 R Credited to equity - = 47,541 8,227 47,541 8,227
BHZH=+—H At 31 December 60,725 40,278 58,577 11,036 119,302 51,314
WAL TE B Deferred income tax liabilities
BT BYE A G AR F AT
Premises revaluation Investment Accelerated tax A% WA
reserves revaluation reserves depreciation Partnership Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
THL TEr  TdxL  Tc  T#x  Tkx  T#x  TEx  T#x  TEx
KEH Group HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS 000
“—=H—H At1January 60,051 21,102 103,061 205,894 17,101 17,900 1,059 482 181,272 245,378
KB ETEN Effect of adopting HKAS 17
FUHRLYE - 341 - - - - - = - 3414
m—=H—H At1January 60,051 55,226 103,061 205,894 17,101 17,900 1,059 482 181,272 279,502
ElE £/ L) Charged/(credited) to income
statement 1,663 1,263 - - 1,912 (799) 57 577 3,632 1,041
TR/ (ER) Debited/(credited) to equity 12,668 3135 (51,977)  (102,833) - = - - (39309 (99,698)
AR Exchange difference 630 427 - = - - - - 630 427
BFZA=+—H At 31 December 75,012 60,051 51,084 103,061 19,013 17,101 1,116 1,059 146,225 181,272
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37 Lﬁ}iﬁé]};{ (#9) 37 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
7 2E B E £ ] (80D Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)
VETRT BV AN B AR
Premises revaluation Investment Accelerated tax e ik
reserves revaluation reserves depreciation Partnership Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Ti#x  T#c Td#x  T#x  Td#x  TEx  THx  THEx  T¥x  TiEx
X T Bank HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS 000
»—=H—H At1January 36,839 1,944 103,061 205,894 17,101 17,900 1,059 482 158,060 226,220
RAEEETHED Effect of adopting HKAS 17
R HE - MM - - - - - - - I
“—=A—H At 1January 36,839 36,068 103,061 205,894 17,101 17,900 1,059 482 158,060 260,344
Trelfa % Charged/ (credited) to income
$E/ G statement - = - = 1,912 (799) 57 577 1,969 (2)
et R/ (k) Debited/ (credited) to equity 7,296 770 (51977)  (102,833) - - - - (44681)  (102,062)
w+-H=+—H At 31 December 44,135 36,839 51,084 103,061 19,013 17,101 1,116 1,059 115,348 158,060

A [ 7E A s B A 2 B JE 5 114,471,790 00 (&
— A 1 725,793 00) o A] MERR I A DA B A AR R
LR 2 oy Al 2 R PERRBL G A o R RZ IR TY
A& FB o= W e o 2 B S 7D o R OK T BE A RERR B
T8 P AT {16 Bh F 5% 45 B TEURG 48 LA VE IR 8 > WO 406 sk it
S IR 4R e R R AL B TE R o

R FE T A = B AR T
J& o~ Tl 2 RAC AN T > AR G B IR SRR S A 2
BLIEFE - WA 4 0 S e B o) 22 o A R T R A L
HAM (CF T4 M) o

A SRATT 170 HL TSR ST A 2 BN AN B A AT A i 45 B A%
.

A IR B R TN 2 R AL A
ESEBL I G E & B A B BAT B E R AR

IR R M AR SE B IE /3 [7] — BB B R > A AR
HAEE o DU RTESR G MR UL R IR 2 S5 -

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$14,471,790 (2010:
HK$725,793) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for sometime and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 December 2011, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2010: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the future earnings
of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to
additional tax should such amounts be received.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Bank to its shareholders.

The amounts shown in the statement of financial position include the
following:

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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37 Lﬁ }EEEI/E[ (#9) 37 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
7 2E B E £ ] (80D Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)
2011 2010
T¥#L Tt
7 4R Group HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
o S B JH R Deferred income tax assets:
R A AR H AR R to be recovered after more than 12 months 133,619 65,862
+ A8 H Ak to be recovered within 12 months 3,104 579
136,723 66,441
7% B o I Deferred income tax liabilities:
R R A A E R to be settled after more than 12 months (146,225) (180,046)
A8 A N to be settled within 12 months - (1,226)
(146,225) (181,272)
AL BLIEE 7 (B1E) 1§ Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities), net (9,502) (114,831)
2011 2010
T# T T
AT Bank HKS$’ 000 HK$ 000
0 S TR Deferred income tax assets:
R AR A AR U B to be recovered after more than 12 months 116,198 50,735
+ @ A Ak to be recovered within 12 months 3,104 579
119,302 51,314
W JE B TH A A Deferred income tax liabilities:
M AR H R to be settled after more than 12 months (115,348) (156,834)
T A8 A A to be settled within 12 months - (1,226)
(115,348) (158,060)
WAL B IEE B (B A Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities), net 3,954 (106,746)
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38 VDIBESS AR AN EZ B8 EIE 38 SUBORDINATED DEBTS MEASURED AT
AMORTISED COST
7 4 B R A AT
Group and Bank
2011 2011 2010 2010
T#x ES T 2%
HKS$’ 000 Interest rate % HK$’ 000 Interest rate %
B R Subordinated floating rate notes
BN R — N with a final maturity
AHZTILHENH on 29 June 2016 621,504 1.581% 621,880 0.803%
AR =T — )4 with a final maturity
+HZ=+ B2 on 20 October 2018
(R =E—=4 (callable on 21 October 2013)
THZA—HIER) 1,553,760 1.431% 1,554,700 1.153%
KA (AR Z R — 4 perpetual (callable on
+ZH+HEER) 10 December 2012) 1,000,000 0.88% 1,000,000 0.779%
KA (AT i 2 — = A4F perpetual (callable
LA JLHER) on 9 July 2013) 932,256 1.081% 932,820 0.803%
AT B — N4 perpetual (callable
ANH =4 HE R on 30 June 2016) 1,553,760 1.181% 1,554,700 0.903%
5,661,280 5,664,100
HAEE B Subordinated fixed rate notes
RN R R with a final maturity
F—H =1 A% on 30 November 2020 3,856,180 5.125% 3,855,348 5.125%
RN R with a final maturity
+— AW A2 on 4 November 2021
(A = — N4 (callable on 5 November 2016)
+— A # H e 1,839,238 6% = =
11,356,698 9,519,448

RAEIATY h AT B R T R g - RS
il e B I W WG o AR AR - 25
SR ERIAL T A AARRET Z M EA

AT A A > ARRAT R RERE
177 EFR R R R - E A RE 15T % H R

%

o

AR SRR AT B S SR T - R

A — DY H E o AR A SRR A N3 2R 2 5

P R BT e

AR GRAT A AR A B e A 4~ L B A BRLAR A 5
BABAENE (T —F4E ) -
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Subordinated debts were raised by the Bank for the development and
expansion of business. Floating rate debts have been fully subscribed by the
ultimate holding company. These notes have been qualified and included
as the Bank’s supplementary capital in accordance with the Capital Rules.

On 4 November 2011, the Bank issued subordinated notes with an
aggregate nominal amount of RMB1,500 million, bearing a fixed interest
rate of 6% per annum to institutional investors. The notes were issued
at the price fixed at par of the nominal amount with maturity due on
4 November 2021. The notes were listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

The Bank has not had any default of principal or interest or other breaches
with respect to the subordinated debts during the year (2010: Nil).
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39 OTHER LIABILITIES

AGH A HUT
Group Bank

2011 2010 2011 2010
T#x T Tl Tt
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$*000
JREAS 1B, Interest payable 1,385,382 623,636 923,395 503,676
JRE A 38 4 B A A Salaries and welfare payable 199,756 166,525 179,405 146,413
HAEIRF Settlement accounts 275,608 338,864 179,067 594,646
B W a5 < Margin deposit received 277,853 217,236 277,853 217,236
s Factoring 508,097 385,987 508,097 385,987
Ho At Others 536,930 467,267 588,206 393,764
3,183,626 2,199,515 2,656,023 2,241,722

The Group and the Bank have not had any defaults of principal, interest or
other breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2010: Nil).

A 1] S A SRAT IR 4 1 A E ARSI AT AT o X AR
& FIEECHABE L) (28 —F4F - ) o

40 A 40 SHARE CAPITAL
W 7 B i B
I By ¥ H ¥ A B Ordinary
Number Ordinary share
of shares shares premium
Tk T#L T#L
in thousands HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
WoE——F—H—H At 1 January 2011 1,352,061 2,704,123 9,187,768
i %% 5 1% Allotment of new shares 379,354 758,707 5,341,294
B0 8847 3 Share issue expenses - - (60)
AR ——F+H=1T—H At 31 December 2011 1,731,415 3,462,830 14,529,002
AR —FE—~H—H At 1 January 2010 1,318,340 2,636,681 8,640,575
MEE—FENET A Allotment of new shares regarding the scrip
= —HIEFEAR R dividend scheme of final dividend for the
Z AR AR Bt ) e 5 5 year ended 31 December 2009 33,721 67,442 547,223
JBE A3 84T 3 Share issue expenses - - (30)
Ao ER—FEF A=+ —H At 31 December 2010 1,352,061 2,704,123 9,187,768

15 € A BB 25 808 B (— & —E 4« 2008 k) 5
JC T B 2 T (=% — 4« i (2 n) 2
B B DA R s S I T (B A Rt 2 ik (—
LB ) PR - BT A C BT G T AR
JBe K o

MoFE——FE+ A =0 RBITZIEEHEE
EAT IS Hh 14 2.3 240 I JRE T (L 25 55 T 2 m] b I
ZEHE R > B TG T 55 SR A I T (E B2
TG 2 58 B o A SRAT IR R I AR 18 S48 B A A
TE 2 A\ B ¥k 2 0 2 58 I DAL A R AR SE 1S 75 2 o

AE N > 379,354,000 5 48 )Y 4% A5 116,085 I 2 fE
HeBEAT S BB T A SRAT I E R A ] > DA SRR A SRAT
MEBERR -

The total number of authorised share capital comprises 2,580 million
ordinary shares (2010: 2,000 million shares) with a par value of HK$2 per
share (2010: HK$2 per share) and 500 million ordinary shares with a par
value of RMB2 per share (2010: Nil). All issued shares are fully paid.

On 23 December 2011, the 232 million convertible non-cumulative
preference shares of HK$5 each comprised in the authorised but unissued
share capital of the Bank were re-designated as 580 million ordinary shares
of HK$2 each. The Bank also increased the authorised share capital by 500
million ordinary shares with a par value of RMB2 per share to meet its
future business needs.

During the year, 379,354,000 ordinary shares were issued and allotted to

the holding company of the Bank at HK$16.08 per share with an intention
of supporting the business growth of the Bank.
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41 fitifhd 41 RESERVES
41.1 AREEH 41.1 Group
K IE [ — MRl LT The general reserve of the Group comprised of:
. R AT (A 20 R T A A B SR R B . the transfer of retained earnings which is distributable to the
K shareholders of the Group; and
. R 2 ) 2 5 0 B R R A O 7R 42 b . a statutory surplus reserve of a subsidiary representing 10%
1] 725 7 e 181 T R S 2 B A i A8 of the profit after tax appropriation and 1% of the book value
210% B R B EE R T 2 1%) © DAk of risk assets as required by law and regulation in PRC. This
FH S o 8 S T e 1E g i A o reserve is used to offset accumulated losses or increase in
capital.
AFE——FE A=t —H > AL As at 31 December 2011, the Group has earmarked a “Regulatory
B Ui FIl 13 112,892,690,000% 7T (— & — Z A Reserve” of HK$2,892,690,000 (2010: HK$1,029,059,000) from the
1,029,059,000%% 7C) 15 [ 15 & et f5 | o ¥ 5 fil i retained earnings. The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy
T2y B A 7 SRAT 2E R A o HT W o B the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential
AT 8 o 5% faf 185 2 52 B A 1] 7y v 4 4 2 supervision purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly
SR AR > B S IR B e R AR through retained earnings and in consultation with the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority.
A B2 [ e SRR AL 2 %5 G vk A o L R AR 6R The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Group
170 B B HE 2 i #2,456,892,000% 7€ (- F — includes a profit of HK$2,456,892,000 (2010: HK$2,778,375,000)
FAE 1 2,778,375,00045 70) © which has been dealt with in the accounts of the Bank.
41.2 AT 41.2 Bank
LIS
TG BREE AN
M Bank B G
Ordinary  premises Investment  Cashflow — MEMGH  —MBfE  REWA
share  revaluation revaluation hedge  Exchange General  Retained Hst
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
T#x  T#x  TEx  TEx  T#x  TEx  T#x  T¥x
HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$°000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
A\ ZF——F-—H At 1 January 2011 9,187,768 186,427 658,852 (193,151) - 219,200 6,069,186 16,128,282
ik (ko) Issue of shares (Note 40) 5,341,094 - - - - - - 53194
T B 17 S (t40) Share issue expenses (Note 40) (60) - - - - - - (60)
FHHESHEEL Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ATEEZS financial investments - - (1,093,080) - - - - (1,093,080)
HERILSHE SRS Reserve realised on disposal of
ZEEB available-for-sale financial investments - - (4,761) - - - - (4,761)
BRI AT REZS Changes in fair value of cash flow hedge - - - 494705 - - - 494,705
HERITIE Disposal of bank premises - - - - - - - -
RMEEGRS Revaluation surplus on bank premises - 44,218 - - - - - 44,218
ER A Profit for the year - - - - - - 2456802 2,456,892
IEIEBEEE (Hks7) Change in deferred tax (Note 37) - (7,96) 181,144 (81,626) - - - 92,12
g St g =y Sl At31 December 2011 14529000 223349 (257845) 219928 - 29200 8526078 23459712
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41 i ) 41 RESERVES (continued)
41.2 AERET (8D 41.2 Bank (continued)
RiTE
aiifh  REEE Ba
Ll e Bank G
Ordinary  premises Investment  Cashflow — FEBEM  —MRGfE  (RE&H
share  revaluation revaluation hedge  Exchange General Retained gt
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T T Tl Tk T T Tl Tl
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000
REF-FE-A—H At1January 2010 8,640,575 9838 1,061,784 - - 219200 4525547 14456944
RaEEaHEN 174 Adopting HKAS 17:
T Land - 206,811 - - - - (9,690) 197,121
EERE Deferred tax = (34,124) = - - - - (34,124)
RAFBETENRR A Effect of adopting HKAS 17 - 172,687 - - = = (9.690) 162,997
pE-ZE—A-H At1January 2010 8,640,575 182525 1,061,784 - S 19200 4515857 14,619,941
BT (W 3E40) Issue of shares (Note 40) 547,203 = = = = = = 547,223
T n BT (i s40) Share issue expenses (Note 40) (30) = = = = = - (30)
HHHESHEEL Change in fair value of available-for-sale
NTEEES financial investments S - 95,504 - - - - 95,504
HERHLEESREE Reserve realised on disposal of
st 311 available-for-sale financial investments - - (571,329) - - - - (571,329)
RAeRMZ AT REZE Changes in fair value of cash flow hedge = = = (231,318) - - - (231,318)
HERTIE Disposal of bank premises - (26,671) - - - - 26,671 -
GBS Revaluation surplus on bank premises = 31,344 = = - = = 31,344
R Profit for the year - - - - - - LTS QTI8RT5
IR (Hks7) Change in deferred tax (Note 37) = (771) 72,893 38,167 = = = 110,289
EFZZENEAERE 2009 final dividend paid - = - - = - (51454)  (751454)
EM-Z-FETHRE (Fiks) 2010 interim dividend paid (Note 18) - - - - = - (500263)  (500,263)
REF-FEFZA=1-H At31 December 2010 9,187,768 186427 658852 (193,151) - 219200 6,069,186 16,128,282
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42 BHER G 42

DTN By s — R SE 5 0 AR vl BRI AP B 2 ) A 2 [ 3%
WEF g 2 I AN MG 4 8 LD S 2 K R S S R > LA
PN ERAT IR 26 2 A7 3K~ AR B 2 SRAT 20 5 B B R A
I G) o %S IE B IR AL 5y Wy (R HE A0 B T 455 7 £

42.1 I AYERE A ]

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Listed out below is a summary of the balances and transactions entered
into during the ordinary course of business with the ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries and associate, including the acceptance of
placement of interbank deposits, corresponding banking transactions and
off-balance sheet transactions. The activities were priced at the relevant
market rates at the time of transactions.

42.1 Ultimate holding company

2011 2010

T¥#L T oo

HK$’000 HKS$’ 000

FE A Interest income 1,063,966 492,938

FILE S H Interest expense 663,946 337,209

HoAth 25 g A L2 Other operating income'? 141,930 64,123

N SR Other operating expenses’ 25,786 24,177

JRE i 4 % Amounts due from 59,487,703 29,915,390

JRE AT < B Amounts due to 56,181,569 27,445,071
1. Wi T ELA=ZHi L2 A ESU L % 1. In accordance with the collaboration agreement dated 3 July 2001 and

FHAEZHM A M = FF )/ 4EZH + = HE L2 4
FEA e ARATHAR e TR EE - RS
T 41 B A% 6 T O e 4 A S ROV T 1) A B R 4R
/WM AT (A7) WBE BB KA - RIE-TF
CHEIA = ANHF L2 SR A ATt
B AT R S IR T 45 4 T 1k e AR 4
B ) i B B AR R -

2. MR TR LA JUA U H BT 2 GCA M I ok e —
FENEHAFAAMEZAE+H=+—H
RO 2 A 70 oE B AR B R o AR ERAT Jb I AR A
2R PO B B A A B A AR R S B R
B BE MR 2 5 TG AL RE R - A5 R IR
5 T 1o e 5 A P D s RO S o

3. BECEZTAETR A — H GG R ERT R
i 78) BT SL 2 R e e B/ AEZH L E LA
SRAT B JBE 2 T HT S 2 MRS b el o 16) A SRAT R A RAT
AR 85 ) s e A 2 B 24 ) T 418 3k 2 o o R B T
it S 2 MR A e

BB KR A W) 2 38 A AL TR AT TR R AT 3K M AR 1E
R WE YRR AR KES TR
o N —— 4+ H=+—H > APITE BT
1,020,000,0003% JC . V7 5 AT 3K 78 T fie K45 e /A |1 1Y
AT (. FE—F4E 1 175,000,0003 JC £ 2,500,000,000
#o) o

A7 1] b A 4 BT S ol e A TR ) A R I 2 AR
7R B SR 2 R R R RE38 [ LG A A AR 2
RABATIA | 47 -
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the supplemental collaboration agreements dated 4 February 2005
and 13 February 2008, management fee income was received from the
Hong Kong Branch of ICBC (the “Branch”) for the provision of services
such as accounting and budgeting, internal audit, marketing and back
office settlement and clearing. In accordance with the collaboration
agreement dated 28 September 2007, management fee income was
received from the ultimate holding company for the provision of
management, administrative and marketing services of its credit card
business.

2. In accordance with the custodian and trustee services agreement
dated 4 September 2007 and the supplemental custodian and trustee
services agreements dated 16 May 2008 and 31 December 2009,
services fees were paid by the ultimate holding company to the Bank
for providing custodian, settlement and clearing services in relation
to the investments outside the PRC in certain investment products by
the customers of the ultimate holding company in connection with the
Qualified Domestic Institutional Investor Scheme of the PRC.

3. In accordance with the service level agreements with the Bank dated
21 February 2002 (as amended and supplemented by supplemental
agreements), and the service levels agreement with a subsidiary of the
Bank dated 19 March 2008, service fee expense was paid to the ultimate
holding company for the provision of data processing services to the
Bank and its subsidiary.

Transactions with ultimate holding company included the issuance
of floating rate certificates of deposit and subordinated floating rate
notes, which were both fully subscribed by the ultimate holding
company and its branches. As at 31 December 2011, the Bank has
issued US$1,020,000,000 floating rate certificates of deposit to the
branch of ultimate holding company (2010: US$175,000,000 and
HK$2,500,000,000).

Information relating to issuance of subordinated floating rate notes
by the Group, fully subscribed by the ultimate holding company
can be found in disclosure Note 38 Subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost.
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B R B BT 2 S - R A
RZER LA S HER L RE
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AR B Gk <

Mo EE—AEEH=H > REERAF
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B SR A B K~ SRR & BB AT R
I B BB AL G o 5% %5 A8 LI B A
RS 7] B/ B AT A i 2 BLA SR AT 2 A
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42 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

42.1 Ultimate holding company (continued)

Other material transactions

(i)

(ii)

Undertaking from the ultimate holding company

To demonstrate its support to the Bank, a letter of comfort
dated 3 July 2001 was executed by the ultimate holding
company, pursuant to which it will provide the Bank with such
funding as may be required by the Bank to ensure that it will
maintain sufficient capital and liquidity levels.

Simultaneously on 3 July 2001, the ultimate holding company
and the Bank entered into a guarantee agreement whereby
the ultimate holding company agreed to guarantee to the
extent of HK$9,000,000,000 the payment obligations of
certain customers whose “large exposures” were transferred
to the Bank pursuant to a business transfer agreement and to
indemnify the Bank in respect of any losses incurred if any
obligation of such customers becomes unenforceable. There
was no such on-balance sheet large exposures of the Bank
covered by this guarantee as at 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$39,305,839).

Sub-participation of loans

The Bank entered into various capital markets transactions
with the Branch, which include arranging participation/sub-
participation in loans, acquiring and disposing of interests
in syndicated or individual loans, subscribing to and/or
issuing of debt securities and tax efficient financing. These
transactions included sub-participation in loans of the Bank by
the ultimate holding company and/or the Branch for a total of
HK$47,112,973,000 (2010: HK$38,385,855,000). There was no
sub-participation in loans of the Branch by the Bank in 2011
(2010: Nil). The total fee attributable to the above transactions
of approximately HK$101,066,000 (2010: HK$65,374,000) was
paid by the Bank to the Branch in 2011. These transactions
were priced based either on the terms of the underlying loan
agreement, if applicable, or prevailing market rates if such
comparable rates were available, or on terms that were no less
favourable than those available to other independent loan
members.
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42 BER 5 @0 42 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
42.2 [ Z Wit J6g 2 Wl 42.2 Fellow subsidiaries
2011 2010
T#L THs T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FIE M A Interest income 40,192 41,591
F B % Interest expense 16,738 394
HoAth 5 ZE UL A Other operating income 8,866 30
R Wi 4 AR Amounts due from 889,974 1,130,092
JRE A 4 BE Amounts due to 5,900,739 602,775
42.3 T N 42.3 Associate
2011 2010
TH#L THs T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FE A Interest income 3,927 4,881
FLEL S Interest expense 134 19
HoAt 8 U A Other operating income - 5,990
R Wi 4 FE Amounts due from 146,155 167,146
JRE A 4 BH Amounts due to 25,620 6,404
42.4 BLBORN BB B b B R P B #E Z2 2 5 42.4 Transactions with government authorities and other state-
controlled entities
DL v N IR A0 B Y R R B e H At Transactions with the following government authorities and other
TR A T BT 1 Y 28 o WAy e A B [ AR R A1 state-controlled entities of the People’s Republic of China are
il 3t B 2 B AL [ M A S considered as individually significant or collectively significant to
the Group:
. F B B RS (B AR ) . The Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) of the PRC
. o g < A R IAL A A ([ ) . Central Huijin Investment Limited (“Huijin”)
. e 45 AT AR HE 4 2 52 Hh B U 46 R 2 D Other banks and financial institutions under the direction of
A T H A SR AT B 45 Rl A A the PRC government in which Huijin has equity interests
2011 2010
TH#L THs T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
F B A Interest income 129,866 62,183
FLE S Interest expense 13,827 7,151
A Wi 4 B Amounts due from 43,810,067 10,797,934
JRE A 4 AR Amounts due to 853,970 883,764
BE Ak - A £E 1 7 AT g B At %‘iﬁz ] B AT 52 In addition, the Group may also enter into transactions with other
5 @E{E$Fﬁﬁi‘ﬁ%‘ﬂ%ﬁié Mﬁ% A SRS © 4 state-controlled entities, including but not limited to lending,
L R o B O S R A ) T AT O R B T deposit taking and the provision of financial products or services. In
# %ﬁc%ﬁ ] PR AR L 6 M B e A DA B 5 T 453 9 the opinion of management, transactions with these state-controlled
HEAT o [RUL > WEAEA B 22 2 Bl A 2 JBE 1R A b B () entities were conducted in the ordinary course of business under
L5 normal terms and conditions and at market rates. As a result, none of

these transactions are considered individually significant.
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42 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

42.5 Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including the Bank’s

T & directors emoluments, is as follows:
2011 2010
TH#T TH#TT
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
i 5 e £ Employee benefits 22,816 26,628

426 HEBRTGBARZERRS

BN AL BEBEEN LR END T
HEAT 2 SRATAC T > UG K ~ Ak B H At 5
HBZC 5 o BN L a3 AR RAIT 2 EEATH
NB -~ HRRER R B2 R s R

42.6 Material transactions with key management personnel

During the year, the Group entered into certain banking transactions

consisting of loans and advances, deposits and other financial

related transactions with related parties in the normal course of

business. The related parties include key management

personnel of

NI the Bank, their close family members and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them.

2011 2010
T#0 T T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FE A Interest income 18 87
FLE S Interest expense 170 183
£ Loans and advances 276 2,154
T2 Deposits 26,656 32,735

2.7 HTITHBRANBZEHK

MR 5 5 2> w16 1 55 161B(4B) I 2 BLAE » T

42.7 Loans to officers

Particulars of loans made to officers and disclosed

pursuant to

N BRI T Section 161B(4B) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as
follows:
Rt+ZH=+—H
Z AR DR AR A 050 G 5
Balance outstanding at Maximum balance during
31 December the year
2011 2010 2011 2010
TH#T Tt T#T T
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
AR A R B A Aggregate amount outstanding in respect
of principal and interest 276 2,154 636 3,212
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43 EEAERINREE 43 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES

43.1 SR AR KRR IE

43.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments

PATF A 2 B B9 S8 AL ORI &

The following are summaries of the contractual amounts of each

# e BE A significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

2011 2011 2010 2010

AREH SR AR aHEHE FRERNER

Contractual Credit risk Contractual Credit risk

amount weighted amount amount  weighted amount

T# T#x T T

AL Group HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

HEFERER Direct credit substitutes 12,730,146 5,810,820 15,805,214 7,645,607

B GHBE 2 S RE R Transaction-related contingencies 84,014 11,438 93,803 14,145

B A R A Trade-related contingencies 9,338,278 1,715,321 6,555,038 1,216,456
JREN I H R 2 Fop ks Other commitments with an original maturity of:

A ARG R Unconditionally cancellable 79,125,622 - 64,414,381 -

JREI A DR — 4 With original maturity of less than one year 812,569 151,291 855,690 171,138

JRBIB AR E With original maturity of over one year 13,753,887 6,694,501 17,335,621 8,429,402

EHBEN Forward deposits placed 2,736,007 547,201 233,205 46,641

118,580,523 14,930,572 105,292,952 17,523,389

2011 2011 2010 2010

BREE SRR AR BHEE FRERNHER

Contractual Credit risk Contractual Credit risk

amount weighted amount amount  weighted amount

T# T#x T T

N Bank HKS’ 000 HKS’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000

HEFERRR Direct credit substitutes 1,777,047 1,036,971 1,349,328 429,269

R HBERZ SR EH Transaction-related contingencies 84,014 11,438 93,803 14,145

HE AR RAEE Trade-related contingencies 9,338,278 1,715,321 6,555,038 1,216,456

R Rz GreE Asset sales with recourse - - - -
JRENH BT 2 Hepl & Other commitments with an original maturity of:

A 0 A 1 A Unconditionally cancellable 79,125,622 - 64,414,381 =

JRE| B DR — 4 With original maturity of less than one year 225,422 33,862 815,720 163,144

JRBIB A4 R With original maturity of over one year 9,869,939 4,752,527 15,413,493 7,468,338

AN Forward deposits placed 2,736,007 547,201 233,005 46,641

103,156,329 8,097,320 88,874,968 9,337,993
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43 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (continued)

43.2 Capital commitments

Capital commitments for property, plant and equipment
outstanding as at 31 December 2011 not provided for in the financial

statements were as follows:

AR R GUT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T T T#x T
HKS$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
ERT AT MR 2 S Expenditure contracted but not
provided for 78,612 50,126 68,291 49,715
OB HEME R RT 4 2 S Expenditure authorised but not
contracted for - - - _
78,612 50,126 68,291 49,715

433 BB LAY

A ——F T H =+t — AAEE AR
AT AR A AT JRCSH F A8 2 R A T A A B A 19 e

43.3 Operating lease commitments

At 31 December 2011, the Group and the Bank had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

{RAH & J8H T - follows:
A% AHAT
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#xL T Tl T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
L BT Land and buildings

—HELN Not later than one year 349,124 225,110 270,671 223,871
—AEDL R R AN Later than one year and not later than five years 493,593 303,760 471,810 303,685
TR More than five years - - - -
842,717 528,870 742,481 527,556
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43

% A A R R AR B )
43.4 BB AL HE

A A1 AR 482 K A 40 22 DR 1% T E A 0 0 T
JNAR Z A A B W 3 (5B 5 i 3R B
31) o AR AIBRE— R E AR A ZH S A AT $
o S AT B AR 5 Ry i D AR 4 L

% .

Mo E——F+ A=+ —H AEEEU
T ) U0 00 R AR A T B 10 AR A A R R Ak
JRE Wi HC AR LA 9 R IR AR 4 AR A A

43

OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (continued)
43.4 Operating lease arrangements

The Group leases its investment properties (Note 31 to the financial
statements) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from two to eight years. The terms of
the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At as 31 December 2011, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

AR ARG
Group Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
TH#T Tt T T
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
— 4R Within one year 2,263 2,382 720 320
CEHAE (B E R W) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 1,723 2,483 480 =
TAER After five years - - - -
3,986 4,865 1,200 320
AN 7 B2 [ ARE 0 AT AT A R R Wi i SR AL 48 During the year, the Group had no unrecognised contingent rentals
(ZF—FF 8 - receivable (2010: Nil).
44 ¥ JT IR 4R O 44 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
R4 A SR AT B r [0 PR e 42 F A R ) ([ B oK Pursuant to the Share Transfer Agreement entered between the Bank and
SR R S F—— N H b B R i the China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited (“CTI”) on
AR o A RAT LA R #5264,000,00070 2 1R A8 17 August 2011, the Bank disposed its 9.44% equity interest in Taiping
LA KT B PR B A BR A W) (TR BE EE AR B ]) 2 General Insurance Company Limited (“TPI”) to CTI for a consideration
9.44% A ME S o A7 BH M A i 2 i AE ST AU % of RMB264,000,000. The transaction was completed on 27 February 2012
% WHZHER —F—"F A - +EH%EMW- upon completion of the necessary share transfer formalities. The Bank will
F A T B R B AE AR 4R B L 2 BORUE - ASRAT recognise the consideration as gain on disposal of the equity investment
MR E R T T = H IR in the income statement for the year ending 31 December 2012 since the
PGz AR WERR A B AU 2 Ui d - investment in TPI had been fully impaired in previous years.
45 HRER AT 45 THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
HAR S o B R AL 2 B TR SR AT R In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the Bank
RS B T A $RAT 2 S 8 BE RN W o is Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, which is established
in the PRC.
46 WMBHHELZ A 46 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AMBRER T - FE = PN REREH
e B AR MEBE L
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The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 28 March 2012.



o TR 64T (35 ) 45 B A 7] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

B oo Bt %% & #

Supplementary Financial Information

T B A Ty S R BN R 2 R Y o S AR AR
BB R RAT AT A

The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying information
to the financial statements and does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

B TE R R A

AT —F——HF T H=T—HZERLE
T i A U A A R BT BRI 2 BRAT CEA) B
(TEABLAND 5HE o G AH R TR F s R 17 2
16 491 555 98 A B¢ [R] JE B it 2L 26 4 AN i o i ol o
M ZF R B —H — H AR - ARERAT R E AR
T 8 458 BF A [ A v (5 8 JRU R &1 3 1 ) B3 A5 sl
&zéﬂl&zﬁﬂggé T?k@ﬂ%zﬁ’a WA EH A
R BB B bR A T AR UE (77 85 )3\ B ) w180 ] kB T 5
Ja g o *&ﬁ%ﬁzﬁf\ﬂﬂﬂ s FHEEAR R AR HARETY
BRBE PA TS i 2 AR B Bt > (HLIMOBR AR KR I R
[Z RS G RVE R (DR & s 5 A al) 2 & A
Al o I > AR LA Z B A 2 358 AR e
B R FOBR o 3% R 45 A B E A 7 AR AT (] &
SRR o TR G5 BRI N R AL S AW P B 2 RS A L
FRAE] ~ TERAE B AR BR A A) ~ LR AR i 4
EAHMWAF - THREMGEHARAFR - TG
FEARAE - LR E A AR AR - Lenn
&4 BEAT BR /A 7] ) ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees
Limited °

CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND CAPITAL BASE

The capital ratios as at 31 December 2011 were computed in accordance
with the Banking (Capital) Rules (the “Capital Rules”) issued by the
HKMA under Section 98A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for the
implementation of the “Basel II” with effect from 1 January 2007. In view
of the Capital Rules, the Bank has adopted the “standardized (credit risk)
approach” for the calculation of the risk-weighted assets for credit risk,
“basic indicator approach” for the calculation of the operational risk and
the “standardized (market risk) approach” for the calculation of market
risk. Under the Capital Rules, the basis of consolidation in calculating the
capital ratios follows that of the financial reporting with the exclusion
of subsidiaries which are “regulated financial entities” (e.g., insurance
and securities companies) as defined by the Capital Rules. Accordingly
the investment costs of these unconsolidated subsidiaries are deducted
from the capital base. There is no capital shortfall of these unconsolidated
subsidiaries. Unconsolidated subsidiaries include UB China Business
Management Co. Ltd., ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Limited, ICBC
(Asia) Bullion Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited, ICBC
(Asia) Trustee Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Asset Management
Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company
Limited and ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited.

2011 2010
ol B A F Core capital ratio 10.0 % 8.9%
EAR TR R Capital adequacy ratio 15.9% 14.9%

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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1 BARTE R ERLE AR @) 1
AR 1 A SR A0 1 AR S A A LA R IR H

CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND CAPITAL BASE (continued)

The components of the total capital base after deductions include the

following items:

2011 2010
T#T T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
B EA Core capital:
A0 0 R e A Paid up ordinary share capital 3,462,830 2,704,123
B 53 ik 15 Share premium 14,529,002 9,187,768
it i Reserves 3,908,559 3,580,599
Wi a2 Income statement 3,111,531 2,369,973
ik - Deduct: Goodwill (980,154) (980,154)
HoAth 4T B Other intangible assets (15,871) (15,037)
R S 3 T TR Net deferred tax assets - =
R &R A BB B 2 50% 50 per cent of total unconsolidated
e HoAl 40386 H investments and other deductions (358,312) (567,627)
L A KR Total core capital 23,657,585 16,279,645
BB M A Eligible supplementary capital:
b R M A PR (B R 5 Fair value gains on the revaluation of land and buildings 123,119 101,505
i BESH & 78 2 I 27 Fair value gains on the revaluation of
AL A E A I A available-for-sale equities and debt securities - 355,070
5 78 DL o F- (8 (B A8 i 2 % Unrealised fair value gains arising from
AR Z 76 25 M As 5 R4 51 equities and debt securities designated
AR ST at fair value through profit or loss 14,174 32,968
AL AR HE A B 0 S Collective impairment allowances and regulatory reserve 2,978,662 1,576,966
KA B AR TH Perpetual subordinated debts 3,486,016 3,487,520
DL 6 AR AR 2 4% 15 £ TH Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 7,870,682 6,031,928
MBR R &R A B RFEZ50% Deduct: 50 per cent of total unconsolidated investments
B HoAl 43818 H and other deductions (358,312) (567,627)
R Jn 5 A 48 Total supplementary capital 14,114,341 11,018,330
A R A Total capital base 37,771,926 27,297,975
JEL g i HE Risk-weighted assets
& B R B Credit risk 219,594,836 171,077,385
T 35 Market risk 9,015,500 3,553,400
A A B Operational risk 9,682,600 8,131,000
FHBR © — R ERAT SR R 2 35 E Deduct: Portion of regulatory reserve for general
it 5 08 43 B Sl A6, 45 A banking risks and collective provisions which
R 0 A 1A ) 4L Y is not included in supplementary capital (709,471) -
JEL B o HE 7 AR(E Total risk-weighted assets 237,583,465 182,761,785

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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2 mBESER 2 LIQUIDITY RATIO
AR P TR A & LR T & T8 H Y ) B 4 L The average liquidity ratio for the year is the simple average of each
S BTy > T A s A A SR 1Y M E DA calendar month’s average liquidity ratio, which is computed on the
RO EEUERE > BTG B CHAT 2E MR ) M 3R4 consolidated basis as required by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes,
and is computed in accordance with the Fourth Schedule to the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance.
7 4 18
Group
2011 2010
A 4 BE P i ) 4 LR Average liquidity ratio for the year 41.7% 42.9%
3 15 B R B~ 4% 7 A B K nin 35 R B 2 AN 3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL
AND MARKET RISKS
3.1 [EER 3.1 Creditrisk
(i)  ASEFEEF RSN ERE S 5T A ([ 40 (i)  The Group uses the following external credit assessment
WSS AR e ) IR B A R 2 1Y institutions (“ECAIs”) to calculate its capital adequacy
R (R stE ks E AT R requirements under the standardized (credit risk) approach
Bk prescribed in the Capital Rules:
. 18 1 E R % . Moody’s Investors Service
. i v X T AR IR . S&P’s Ratings Services
. AR . Fitch Ratings

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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3 [ERE B - R TR B T A 3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL
) AND MARKET RISKS (continued)
3.1 %E’E FXAR' (%) 3.1 Credit risk (continued)
1) (&) (i)  (continued)

A — U BRI 455 0 4 SRR AR AT (15
R ) O R R B AR R M N

The capital requirements on each class of exposures under the
standardized (credit risk) approach as at the end of reporting

T period are summarised as follows:
2011 2010
T#x T T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
WAEARFKHA On-balance sheet
A B Sovereign exposures 24,101 44,546
N Y 1 N T B Public sector entity exposures 20,394 20,532
2 18 0 R AR AT R B Multilateral development bank exposures - =
SRAT A B Bank exposures 7,524,551 3,480,379
75 ) JEL B Securities firm exposures 3,605 17,516
1 2 Jal By Corporate exposures 7,070,183 6,951,777
A G w ) E Collective investment scheme exposures 18,560 18,560
B4&HHE Cash items 30,192 45,948
B E A 2 A b Regulatory retail exposures 468,121 432,911
B 1 1 K Residential mortgage loans 420,485 443,111
HoAth 7 I 4 A 2 Other exposures which are not past due exposures 520,603 535,036
76 1 JL g Past due exposures 42,067 80,604
EARAMREEEH 2 EA L Total capital charge for on-balance sheet exposures 16,142,862 12,070,920
HEARRIEH Off-balance sheet
HHE A AU & Direct credit substitutes 464,866 611,649
B2 5 A R 2 B AR B A Transaction-related contingencies 915 1,132
HLE 5 A B 2 sk A 1l Trade-related contingencies 137,226 97,316
) Forward asset purchases - =
ER o U 2 I Ay B 25 Partly paid-up shares and securities - -
= A AR Forward forward deposits placed 43,776 3,731
I A AR RS 2 R Unconditionally cancellable commitments - -
Aty R I Other commitments 547,663 688,043
R A% Exchange rate contracts 167,897 177,145
FZRE X Interest rate contracts 62,341 34,482
JBe A HE 25 B 40 Equity contracts 41 111
R AT 00 8 2 T 465 O W e R L OTC derivative transactions and credit derivative
B o A TH 22 5 B s BeAiT A contracts subject to valid bilateral
THEAH netting agreements - -
A i AR 4> R T8 2 Other off-balance exposures which
Ho A 7 B A% RSN R R are not elsewhere specified - =
AR RN 2 EAR I AEE  Total capital charge for off-balance sheet exposures 1,424,725 1,613,609
15 SR B 2 A S AR Total capital charge for credit risk 17,567,587 13,684,529

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL
AND MARKET RISKS (continued)

3.1

32

3.3

Credit risk (continued)
(i) (continued)

The capital requirement is made by multiplying the Group’s
risk-weighted amount derived from the relevant calculation
approach by 8%. It does not reflect the Group’s actual
regulatory capital.

(ii) Where exposures have been rated by the above-mentioned
ECAIs, they are categorised under the following class of

exposures:

. Sovereign exposures

. Public sector entity exposures

. Multilateral development bank exposures
. Bank exposures

. Securities firm exposures

. Corporate exposures

. Collective investment scheme exposures

(iii) The process used to map ECAIs issuer ratings or ECAISs issue
specific ratings in the Group’s banking book is consistent with
those prescribed in the Capital Rules.

Operational risk

HKMA has granted approval under section 24(1)(a) of the Capital
Rules for the Group to use the Basel II Basic Indicator Approach
to calculate its operational risk. The Group thus applies this
approach in managing operational risk, but is simultaneously
adopting the relevant supervising guidelines of the HKMA. As at 31
December 2011, the capital charge for operational risk amounted to
HK$774,608,000 (2010: HK$650,480,000).

Market risk

Market risk activities currently undertaken by the Bank can basically
be divided into “Trading Book” and “Non-Trading Book”.

Trading Book:
It consists of proprietary positions in financial instruments and
derivatives which are held for re-sale or which are taken on with the

trading intention of benefiting from actual and/or expected short-
term price or interest rate movements.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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3 [ SRR BE - R B K T A B AR 3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL
32t o) AND MARKET RISKS (continued)
3.3 ﬁi %EL FXAR' (%) 3.3 Market risk (continued)
AR A AR B e A LT 8 B B (A e The Group applies the “standardized approach” for its market risk
FHEEl R _FE——FF_A=+—HZX in the Capital Rules. The trading book positions as at 31 December
T W TE A M T A% 45 2 AR S 721,240,000 2011 and their capital consumptions are HK$721,240,000 (2010:
WIT (T FE—ZF4F 1 284,272,000%70) © R TE HK$284,272,000). The market risk capital requirement for trading
—— R FE—-FEL A=+ —HHBEX books as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 are:
Sy WRIE 2 i 3y R A B W
i 355 i A 3 il
Market risk capital charges
2011 2010
T#L TH#IT
o I3z 35 20 Risk type HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
I 2\ — 5 o JE B Interest rate exposure — specific risk 756 660
) 23 i — — ik Tl 3 LB Interest rate exposure — general market risk 150,149 96,289
JBE A Ja e Equity exposures 2,472 3,590
1 e J B Foreign exchange exposures 567,446 175,425
A it JEL B Commodity exposures - -
2 R J Option exposures 417 8,308
Hwt Total 721,240 284,272

PUR IR R 2 =% ——F+ " H =+ —
HE-ZF-FFE+"A=+—HILFEELE
B 2 T 3 R T B A B 2 H AR

The following histograms show the frequency distribution of daily
revenues related to market risk activities of the Group for years
ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010.

BREZZ A= HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2011
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CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL
AND MARKET RISKS (continued)

3.3 Market risk (continued)

BREZZ-FEFEF A=+ HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
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BE F——H+ _HA=1+—HIL¥EE K&
[ 5 B S R B A B SE S 2 P H AR A A
540,599%5 7 (& — FA4F 1 369,077¥5 76) o Tl
A H A 2 MR 2 £51,745,035% 00 (%
—FAE 1 1,419,252858) o O E HILA Z
UL > T —— 2245 5 H >
FH87H sk ME1H (= F — T4 24925 5 H
o F3H BRIEIR) > Mikmz —HIEBEA
5,300,0009%5 7C (& —ZA4F 1 4,480,000%57C)
i 2 — H U A I 57,630,000 T (& — %
4 17,400,000 0) c MHAEE REF ZH
AT 5 > A 45 1A% 120 25 38 i L 4 Rl o I IR
5 [ o DA A — B DA AR K B R OE A AR
ZA o TATZARFE > AR [ 2 U B R R
FEAE 2 TG R ~ 307 (5 SR - B
KEARFG5E o

A 5y BRI
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Revenue HK$'000

The average daily revenue earned from the Group’s market risk
related activities during the year ended 31 December 2011 was
HK$540,599 (2010: HK$369,077) and the standard deviation for
such daily revenue was HK$1,745,035 (2010: HK$1,419,252). An
analysis of the frequency distribution of daily revenue showed that
losses were recorded on 87 days out of 245 trading days for the
year 2011 (2010: 93 days out of 249 trading days). The maximum
daily loss was HK$5,300,000 (2010: HK$4,480,000). The highest
daily revenue was HK$7,630,000 (2010: HK$7,400,000). In respect
of proprietary trading and customers’ expectation, the Group will
gradually expand the scope of treasury products and services to
complement its conventional reliance on loan assets for revenue. In
the process, the Group will watch out for the resulting market risk,
and counterparty credit risk, liquidity and capital implications.

Non-Trading Book:

It consists of structured foreign exchange and interest rate risk
positions arising from funding and liquidity management as well as
investment and balance sheet activities from non-treasury related
business. Debt securities activities undertaken by Global Markets
& Trading Department are largely for investment and liquidity
management purpose.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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HEd R 4

AR ASSRAT A B R R AL AR T I R B -
PRI BT ~ AL e 2 R O T AR T T
PRAA A 57 5 7 2 A B ol R AR ST BT 45 24
JR B 453 phy AR R S 19 AT A1 AR B T AR A A
Frapfl o ARSATHRTAEYE GBEZRL) sHAE R
o B JE B o A SRAT 5 U0 B P A B B o

TERIFR -F R F-FEF+ A=+
H 2 75 Z AL SO oL B 45

ASSET SECURITIZATION

During the year, the Bank only acted as an investor in related securitization

exposure. Ratings from Moody’s Investors Service, S&P’s and Fitch

Ratings are adopted in assessing securitization exposures. Since the

securitisation exposures held by the Bank are all rated by recognised
ECAIs designated by the Capital Rules, the Bank uses the standardized
(securitization) approach to calculate the weighted credit risk for

these exposures. The Bank closely monitors the risk arising from these

exposures.

The following table indicates the securitization exposures as at 31
December 2011 and 2010:

W B R A 5

Exposures deducted from its

—F——k 2011 BRBL L A EARE B ¥ W ¥ A

Outstanding  Risk-weighted Capital Core Supplementary

amounts amounts  requirements capital capital

Ti#x Ti#x T#x T#x T#x

8 27 2800 R g R 9 Securitisation exposures HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
CSEE3d Traditional securitisations

SRR Instalment loan - - - - -

HA Others 3,975 - - 1,988 1,988

3,975 - - 1,988 1,988

110 B A B

Exposures deducted from its

R L 2010 WE ORRIEGE  WAEE  BLOGE  WNEA

Outstanding  Risk-weighted Capital Core  Supplementary

amounts amounts  requirements capital capital

T#T TH#T Tt Tt Tt

W AL R IR R Securitisation exposures HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
CSoE23(d Traditional securitisations

o R Instalment loan 103,845 20,769 1,662 - -

HA Others 730 - - 365 365

104,575 20,769 1,662 365 365

AT T = BRI (SR o7
R R SR AL R AR R A I (SR AR

1,661,518%5 JG)

R FE——HF T A= HR

P8 & A AL 09 A% 0 BN & AR B w0 E B 2
3,975,191 0 (- F —F4F 1 729,603 70) ©

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011

Capital requirement of securitisation exposures under the standardized

(securitisation) approach at 31 December 2011 was nil (2010:
HK$1,661,518). The deductible items from core and supplementary
capital under asset securitisation at 31 December 2011 amounted to
HK$3,975,191 (2010: HK$729,603).
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COUNTERPARTY CREDIT RISK-RELATED
EXPOSURE

The Bank has adopted the current exposure method (the “CEM”) to
determine the exposure amount for interbank counterparty credit risk
which arises from OTC derivative transactions in banking and trading
books. As at 31 December 2011, there were no repo-style transactions nor
credit derivative contracts in the Bank (2010: Nil). No recognized collateral
including recognized credit derivative contracts was held as credit
protection for counterparty credit risk-related exposure as at 31 December
2011 (2010: Nil).

The following table indicates the information of counterparty credit risk-
related exposures under the standardized approach:

BOE YA T-EE
Gross total 15 A . s I A 2
positive Credit Risk weighted
fair value equivalent amount
T T# 5t T# T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TR 4R 2011
REGGRAET RS : OTC derivative transactions:
AT Bank 1,293,495 4,311,773 1,293,569
HoAth Others 597,833 1,644,937 1,584,921
1,891,328 5,956,710 2,878,490
TR AR 2010
THGIMTE T RS OTC derivative transactions:
AT Bank 774,762 2,883,456 874,636
oAty Others 773,446 1,872,910 1,772,090
1,548,208 4,756,366 2,646,726

AR A A BRI AR TS 5 1R A (T
BA B -

There is no effect of bilateral netting agreement on the credit equivalent
amounts of the derivative transactions.
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6 TRAKAE R BE 6 CREDIT RISK MITIGATION
6.1 5 PR wR A AR B R B 2 FR R 6.1 Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation
AR SRAT O A AR R R R T T AT B RIS The Bank has established policies on managing and recognising
BB AR (4538 5 35 AMiT A LR35 i A credit risk mitigation, which are approved by the Credit Committee,
1 BB TFO f B U RIS il e BIEEZR B for all types of credit exposure under the standardized approach
ot v 2 A B R R AR AT R LB Y UK o including counterparty credit risk-related exposure which arises
A SR AT AR BT AL K O AT A S S from OTC derivative transactions. The Bank applies prudent
F oo ARV ARG SRR T E R R R assessments of eligibility and quality of collateral. Acceptable credit
G R,/ B T R E o AR SRAT R A HE risk mitigations are as defined by the Credit Committee and/or
h 36 E FR R A FEE N > 0 W R R4S regulatory authorities. The Bank also adheres to safe custodian of
VIBEHE - AT H R TE MR - ke collateral, regular revaluation and close monitoring. Marketable
1T!: H 8w Al /e i E i > S H— securities are marked to market on a daily basis or, if daily
HEATEAL - W) E 0N WA E A - revaluation/marked-to-market is unavailable, a minimum of once a
month, whilst properties are revalued periodically.
MEEERNFEM S » HA GRS % For regulatory capital calculation, only recognized collateral and
) 88 e GRS S A8 R O ) A 2 M R R A guarantee defined in the Capital Rules are considered as recognized
JE B A e o A SR AT FE O A5 8RR (J’M& credit risk mitigations. The Bank applies the simple approach
R BB ) T A4S R B R S 1 il A YEE o criteria as stipulated in the Capital Rules in ascertaining credit risk
mitigation.
TERR T HE I G G G AR YRR - BLBA R - W Recognised collateral includes eligible guarantees, cash deposits,
& Befy - SR GRS R ERE o gold, shares, debt securities and collective investments in
EARBE - AT E - K LRk o BUKE transferable securities, commercial real estate, residential real estate,
F L 7 A R L IR A o PR T A R R A Y vehicles and equipment. The exposure amount after mitigation is
o Y BB IR Y BB M o R B LR A determined by applying the standard supervisory haircut laid down
fbﬂFﬁT&iﬁﬁAh J5 WAL HIT& W A by the Capital Rules to the current collateral value. Recognised
B ~ BRAT Mo 2 LA R8 J5 A0 ) s A R R guarantor is any sovereign entity, public sector entity, bank and
SR S5 [R] i A0 H:?F& B AR IA-B LA | o regulated securities firm with a lower risk weight than the borrower,
or company that is internally rated with a rating equivalent to
external rating of A- or better.
W B —EE+ T H=+—H > The main types of guarantors and their external ratings as at 31
W PR T2 R RSN RS A BT T December 2011 and 2010 are analysed as follows:
Pt 2
Guaranteed amount
2011 2010
oA BN e 3 T 5 ) T#L T T
Class of guarantors S & P’s equivalent HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
AT Bank AAA/AA- 74 223
A+/A- 63,117,099 48,492,013
B Sovereign AAA/AA- 1,177,044 1,293,512
N PSE A+ 4,049 -
64,298,266 49,785,748

AR 0 T A £ 8 B BT i it (8 e R A1 47
i RAER) A5 5 T i By M B A b o S AEBR
B JFG R B 3k ALK 5 B 32 22 R T R SR AT
NG S IR S
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There are limited credit and market risk concentrations within the
credit risk mitigants (recognised collateral and guarantees) used by
the Group, except for real estate which is extensively relied on for
risk mitigation in lending to non-bank corporate and non-corporate
customers.
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6 CREDIT RISK MITIGATION

6.2 158 JEL B AR i 6.2 Credit risk exposures
o U e U AR B~ R RO O R S&P’s Ratings Services, Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch Ratings
T AR A B Ll DR 25 8 B BT A A R B R are the ECATs that the Group uses in relation to each and all classes
& 005 1 09 1 EBA5 B R AR B o L DA B R Ak of exposures below. The process it used to map ECAI issuer ratings
BT A T A A E AT A A T L B R to exposures booked in its banking book is a process as prescribed in
WEHEAT N AT AR BT JT J 7R 0 R B 4 43 BT 1 Part 4 of the Capital Rules.
FE R FEF o
bl R R
LIV R HETHR  BRTHR
v S8 3 2011 Exposures after recognised B IHE A BEMBEAR  mMBAE  NRERE
JABRIEE"  creditrisk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total risk- Exposure Exposure
Total cils A Cifs Fitdhe weighted  coveredby  covered by
W BRI Class of exposures exposures* Rated* Unrated ¢ Rated* Unrated ¢ amounts collateral  guarantees
BRANKEH On-balance sheet
FiE Sovereign 25,667,827 25,519,724 1,307,682 301,257 - 301,257 - -
N Public sector entity 838752 838,752 4009 254116 810 254926 - -
SBBRET Multilateral development bank - - - - - - - -
#17 Bank 183,860,571 66,273,412 180,402,059 20,711,136 73,345,757 94,056,893 - -
HHAT Securities firm 91,47 - 90,129 - 45,065 45,065 1,118 -
¥ Corporate 160,247,559 10,571,484 81,538,499 6,838,777 81,538,499 88,377,276 4,982,894 63,154,682
AnteHsH Collective investment scheme 232,000 - 232,000 - 232,000 232,000 - -
REHH Cash items 511,327 - 6,030,528 - 377,403 377,403 - -
THETEH Regulatory retail 8,812,147 - 780,03 R 3 ) VAR X 1 K 247,390 762,734
fEEfREEN Residential mortgage loans 14,187,010 - 14175559 - 5256060 5,256,060 11,451 -
JUBE F 8 0 Bk o Other exposures which are not
past due exposures 6,844,996 - 6,507,536 - 6,507,536 6,507,536 276,348 61,112
R Past due exposures 437,684 - 437,684 - 525,841 525,841 234,232 9,046
BAEA BRI Off-balance Sheet
BRImMIAE TR A Off-balance sheet exposures other than
REMETEARMSMY OTC derivative transactions or credit
KA RIS derivative contracts MAYZ 630334 23784939 365810 14564762 14930572 749396 310,694
BMTE TR OTC derivative transactions 5956710 1531988 4424722 416926 2461564 2,878,490
REMETRSH Credit derivative contracts - - - - - - - -
A HA R T I Other off-balance sheet exposures
Hib g & ERINR AL not elsewhere specified - - - - - - - -
FEATE R 0 S Exposures deducted from capital base 716,624

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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6  WAKAE &R @0
6.2 15 B JE B AR 48 ()

6

i
KL

CREDIT RISK MITIGATION (continued)

6.2 Credit risk exposures (continued)

TR R R e
WG RRRTE

HEMGTER  BRTER

Exposures after recognised il HRmESE  ORRAE  WEREE
“Z-%f 2010 JABREEAS"  creditrisk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Toulrsk-  Eposwe  Exposure
Total SHEY At BHEY Aitde weighted  coveredby  covered by
AR Class of exposures exposures* Rated* Unrated © Rated* Unrated ¢ amounts collateral ~ guarantees
BRI On-balance sheet
Fi Sovereign 8,953,706 8,861,955 1,370,924 538,471 18,350 556,821 - -
N1 Public sector entity 837,841 837,841 - 256,650 - 256,650 - -
L BRRRL Multilateral development bank - - - - - - - -
17 Bank 62,425,470 27,739,068 83,044,285 10,393,554 33,111,180 43,504,734 - -
#FAT Securities firm 437910 - 437910 - 218955 218955 - -
¥ Corporate 147,133,681 12,555,073 79,169,165 7,728,050 79,169,165 86,897,215 6,787,494 48,621,949
ArBaH Collective investment scheme 232000 - 232,000 - 232,000 232,000 - -
ReEH Cash items 309,605 - 7,600,140 - 574,353 574,353 - -
THEREES Regulatory retail 8,389,427 - 72517 S SAILBE 5411384 240425 933,823
ERREN Residential mortgage loans 14,932,878 - 14917914 - 5538887 5,538,887 14,964 =
JM T Other exposures which are not
past due exposures 7,016,386 - 6,087,950 - 6,687,950 6,687,950 247,652 81,284
il v Past due exposures 746,814 - 746,814 - L0752 1,007,552 207,491 5914
BEABHMEH Off-balance Sheet
RssMiE TRAHH Off-balance sheet exposures other than
BT TAAASMY OTC derivative transactions or credit
HEAERME AL derivative contracts 26235278 719954 25515314 457999 17065390 17523389 1837055 142,778
OMTE TARS OTC derivative transactions 4,756,366 648,455 4107911 135,610 2,511,116 2,646,726 - -
fFEMETRGH Credit derivative contracts - - - - - - - -
A EAE AR T AL 1Y Other off-balance sheet exposures
FLA B A RN R 1 not elsewhere specified - - - - - - - -
FI 6 S 91 08 B O R Exposures deducted from capital base 1,135,254

* AR R I B8 (1 1) AR 4 A 0 4 K
()

# LA AT 1 A5 B R SRR B AT R R AR
J B 7R 4 e AT A Y S B R A1 (D SIS
FEATHRRE AT AR o ELHL R B A (0 AR B A BB
i E ) SRR R I > 2275 SRR B RT AR A L
B R 38 26 T fRUBE N BEAT AR AR R R A5 £
T A 5 A9 A A B R 45 1
AT REAR)

© 3R B S S0 £ £ 5T A0 AV 0 AT 0 A T AR
I R AT AR Y B R 4fS
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Representing principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as
applicable, net of individual impairments

including exposures with ECAI issue specific rating and exposures
which have an inferred rating (i.e., exposures which do not have an X
issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are determined under
the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI issuer rating assigned to
the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAI issue rating of any other
exposures of the obligor)

Representing exposures which do not have the ECAI issue specific
rating nor inferred rating
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7 4y B & Bl 7 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
7.1 B~ RAT R H A4 Bl AR 2 Bk 7.1 Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions
(i) B~ SRAT N H At 4w i A 2 (i)  Advances to customers, banks and other financial institutions
X — 15 b sl ] Sy - by geographical areas
ZI:;/'E B8 B AT AT JE l‘fﬂi*}f% [ R AR 1% [fﬂ The Group’s gross advances to customers, banks and other
% EJZi"& E%ﬂ O3 W) BRAT B oAb financial institutions by country or geographical area after
B SRR INT taking into account any risk transfers are as follows:
%P BAT R I

SRR RRAH HH=WA
Gross advances b kg WHES  WUREEE  ARREERE

to customers, Overdue advances Impaired Individual Collective
banks and other for over three loans and impairment impairment
financial institutions months advances allowance allowance
T T T T T
ot S 3 2011 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ik Hong Kong 150,601,765 204,313 357,851 210,879 404,769
itk Mainland China 70,285,740 229,420 229,417 72,815 346,484
M Macau 2,405,528 - - - 6,471
BKE Asia Pacific Region
(AEEFE- (excluding Hong Kong,
i IR Mainland China and Macau) 6,370,692 454,792 454,792 309,431 15,957
ity Others 8,280,346 200,468 207,124 176,113 21,762
237,944,071 1,088,993 1,249,184 769,238 795,443
K~ RAT BRI
SHERZETAH i =MmA
Gross advances MEE WA 181 i 4 AL WA
to customers, ~ Overdue advances Impaired Individual Collective
banks and other for over three loans and impairment impairment
financial institutions months advances allowance allowance
T T T T T
“E-RE 2010 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’000
ik Hong Kong 84,154,488 143,763 262,562 180,917 304,411
[Lpiih Mainland China 91,375,663 273,657 273,657 102,182 201,132
1 Macau 1,244,087 - - - 6,779
(PN Asia Pacific Region
(N (excluding Hong Kong,
R Mainland China and Macau) 1,706,654 - 471,553 189,487 13,690
ity Others 7,044,517 499,725 = = 21,895
185,525,409 917,145 1,007,772 472,586 547,907
A B R H R R AR RS TF 5 Risk transfers are only made if the claims are guaranteed
N VAR B R Y A H AT A R B — by a party in a country which is different from that of the
B % 18R4T 09 WA AT VE I L counterparty or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a
J7 e L JE [ o bank whose head office is located in another country.

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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7 EER @) 7  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
7.1 B~ AT B H fth 4 B BEAE 2 Bk () 7.1 Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions (continued)
(ii) ZF ~ GRAT M HoAMh 4 Bl AR A 2 B (ii) Gross loans and advances to customers, banks and other
M — R financial institutions — by industry sectors
A H
Group
2011 2011 2010 2010
ek M A kP £ B A AR
Gross BidliE 2 e Gross B E S
loans and % of loans and % of
advances secured advances secured
T¥T advances T#T advances
HK$’ 000 % HK$’ 000 %
TEF WA 2 B Loans for use in Hong Kong
AN & Industrial, commercial and financial
N EX A - Property development 13,632,321 32.61% 17,111,099 26.82%
—WERE - Property investment 16,626,352 78.37% 18,546,175 79.81%
— SR - Financial concerns 6,310,659 2.52% 5,445,139 2.97%
— SRR AL - Stockbrokers 91,236 94.39% 437,871 99.57%
— i REEE - Wholesale and retail trade 15,330,630 22.68% 10,294,018 31.54%
— AT - Civil engineering works 252,734 91.32% 214,883 91.60%
— R % - Manufacturing 4,316,256 47.22% 3,742,007 52.74%
— JEE g 7 W it A - Transport and transport equipment 11,690,080 60.10% 10,915,112 67.88%
— & BRR - Electricity and gas - - 75,003 37.81%
— H il B - Information technology 1,429,489 2.97% 2,494,183 0.61%
—RRSETEE) - Recreational activities 42,435 96.80% 46,324 100.00%
—JE - A R RE - Hotels, boarding houses and catering 2,491,142 78.18% 2,053,379 85.85%
—H At - Others 8,116,021 23.45% 5,816,022 32.39%
(ERIPNE= Individuals
—WEIEERLE] - Loans for the purchase of flats in Home
N S-33=0 Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
K [F % & HJE ] B Participation Scheme and Tenants
2B Purchase Scheme 524,822 95.50% 560,328 94.89%
—EHME T EL - Loans for the purchase of other
HHK residential properties 11,342,083 99.77% 12,286,456 99.74%
— R RE® - Credit card advances 135,925 0.00% 109,213 0.00%
—HAth - Others 2,060,983 87.36% 2,134,442 92.70%
EOT 8 Trade finance 71,366,945 50.21% 24,669,575 11.60%
TE 7 W DASMEE 2 B3 Loans for use outside Hong Kong 72,183,958 25.30% 68,574,180 29.85%
237,944,071 42.92% 185,525,409 40.24%

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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7 SrERER @) 7  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
7.1 5~ ST RO 4 Rl B 2 B AR () 7.1 Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions (continued)
(ii) ZF ~ GRAT M HoAMh 4 Bl AR A 2 B (ii) Gross loans and advances to customers, banks and other

M — R E ) financial institutions — by industry sectors (continued)
MR~ $R47 B At 4 Fil b A £ A Individually impaired loans, overdue loans and advances over
FH10%3% DA b 1Y 26755810 B 09 R B ek (e 8 three months, impairment allowances and impaired loans
o =AE A LA b 2 iE BBk - W R and advances written off in respect of industry sectors that
E A R BB W E S constitute 10% or more of the total advances to customers,

banks and other financial institutions are as follows:

A M
Group
2011 2010
T T oo
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
(a) WIERE (a) Property investment
ERIRERIENS e Individually impaired loans 1,183 7,495
=X (SN S 1 o/ Overdue loans and advances over three months - =
A 3 9 £ ¥ Individual impairment allowance - 180
A0 b e Collective impairment allowance 44,558 45,995
A 3 25 FE AR 2 U (YA Impairment allowance credited to income statement (1,585) (8,249)
A A B Impaired loans and advances written off during the year - -
(b) & 5 Rl & (b) Trade finance
A 0 L K Individually impaired loans 110,402 28,727
=AU b2z @i a R Overdue loans and advances over three months - 29,068
A8 7l i 24 5 Individual impairment allowance 61,087 24,272
A0 A Ul 1 HE A Collective impairment allowance 130,083 26,780
N E TS P ) Impairment allowance charged/(credited)
2 W AE HE A to income statement 142,253 (64,466)
TR Jl B T (B K Impaired loans and advances written off during the year - 57,404
(c) FE 7 s LASIME F 2 B3k (c) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(ERIRCRIENS ¢ Individually impaired loans 998,521 907,681
=B A DLk 2 i K Overdue loans and advances over three months 921,322 849,974
A1 ) (L EE A Individual impairment allowance 667,273 424,054
ZH A R M Collective impairment allowance 410,170 291,121
AU 35 32 8 22 Tl (B Y A Impairment allowance charged to income statement 386,502 236,343
AT A S P R Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 97,784 49,169

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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7 EER @)
72 BHHZER

A T 2 3 [ 03 55 B0 R o B AR AS ST AT IR
AL O R R B 52 5 T R R AN R B K 2 95—
7 BT AR TR < RS JEL By o A A8 BT 2R 109 A

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

7.2 Cross-border claims

The Group analyses cross-border claims by geographical area. In
determining this analysis, the Group has taken into account transfer
of risk with respect to claims guaranteed by a party in a country

bz MRS R different from that of the counterparty. Those areas that constitute
10% or more of the aggregate cross-border claims are as follows:
BT &
J b 4 1 B
Banks and A BB
other financial  Public sector oAb stk
institutions entities Others Total
HEET [ER: 3w T [ER: X W
HKS$ million  HK$ million HKS$ million  HKS$ million
R 2011
ORI (A B4 7 ) Asia Pacific (excluding Hong Kong) 139,548 13,519 95,542 248,609
B Europe 13,034 - 815 13,849
“E R 2010
LN AP N R R Asia Pacific (excluding Hong Kong) 42,497 4,575 63,741 110,813
9 Europe 17,171 = 3,624 20,795

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
7.3 Non-bank Mainland China exposures

The analysis of non-bank Mainland China exposures is based on
the categories of non-bank counterparties and the types of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules with reference to the completion instructions in Note 6 of
the “Returns of Quarterly Analysis of Loans and Advances and
Provisions - MA(BS)2A”, which includes the Mainland China
exposures extended by the Bank and its overseas subsidiary and

branch.
BRARE A E B B0
A RAETRAY B il 2 W
On-balance AR FXand TRIE R Individually
sheet Contingent derivatives Total assessed
exposure liabilities contract exposures allowances
T T T T T
ot S S eV S | 31 December 2011 HK$’000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS$’ 000
HF A Type of counterparties
(a) BBR (A A RHMEA T (a) ITICs and their subsidiaries 647,972 - - 647,972 -
(b) AL A R SLHHB A (b) Red-chip companies and their
subsidiaries 7,401,884 253,699 687 7,656,270 -
(o) HIA A R LB A R (c) H-shares companies and their
subsidiaries 881,394 649,437 64,919 1,595,750 -
(d) S A > B UM S B (d) Other state, provincial or
BAMERRHMEL R municipal government owned
entities and their subsidiaries 8,752,094 217,902 - 8,969,996 -
(e) FEA A o A 3 (e) Other entities incorporated or
L R established in Mainland China 1,021,961 4,746 - 1,026,707 -
(f) HAER A5 00 o B S 0 R (f) Companies and individuals outside
GEAREDYIS NS EUN Mainland China where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland China 17,370,160 204,725 51,556 17,626,441 109,192
(g) ACHRAT o 2 FL IR R 16 (g) Other counterparties where the exposure
o B 3 A AT L R is considered by the Bank to be
ZHMEFH non-bank Mainland China exposure 14,837,886 3,370,821 331,187 18,539,894 834
50,913,351 4,701,330 448,349 56,063,030 110,026
() (g)H F I BEE b Companies and individuals for purchasing
LRI E NG properties in Mainland China under (a) to () 2,804,907 - - 2,804,907 -
(h) B R AT B 2 (h) Exposures incurred by banking
i 4 4 J e subsidiary in Mainland China 25,665,818 11,873,085 - 37,538,903 71,981
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7 EER @)

7.3 P9 ML IR SRAT JE B R I (0
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

7.3 Non-bank Mainland China exposures (continued)

HEARE SME K e
JRR R it TAAH JE AP 2 e Al
On-balance HAAR FXand TRIE A% Individually
sheet Contingent derivatives Total assessed
exposure liabilities contract exposures allowances
T T T THT T
“E-FEFZA=1-H 31 December 2010 HK$' 000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000 HKS’000
ESEE b Type of counterparties
(a) BBR G RE B AT RHMBEAT  (a) ITICs and their subsidiaries 496,271 = = 496,271 =
(b) AL 7 R L HHB A (b) Red-chip companies and their
subsidiaries 5,989,594 26,669 - 6,016,263 -
() HIR/A A RS HHB A R (c) H-shares companies and their
subsidiaries 2,709,798 - - 2,709,798 -
(d) EMbEA ~ BBAF K (d) Other state, provincial or
BUHEA I E R municipal government owned
FHEME A ntities and their subsidiaries 5,922,297 385,524 - 6,307,821 -
(e) A% e B 7 3 e 2R (e) Other entities incorporated or
L established in Mainland China 1,550,699 21,547 - 1,572,246 -
(f) FER A SR TE AR (f) Companies and individuals outside
o g3 B A Mainland China where the credit is
L EYNCVTUN granted for use in Mainland China 19,246,936 261,964 - 19,508,900 132,385
(@ AR ALRREER (g) Other counterparties where the
o 1A SR AT R 1 exposure s considered by the
2L EF Bank to be non-bank Mainland
China exposure 13,111,611 54,019 - 13,165,630 861
49,027,206 749,723 - 49,776,929 133,246
(a)£(g)H T R T 4% Companies and individuals for purchasing
0 7 RAAA properties in Mainland China under (a) to (g) 3,058,515 = = 3,058,515 =
(b) R PSSR AT I 2 (h) Exposures incurred by banking subsidiary
bEatEY in Mainland China 19,510,815 1,595,439 - 21,106,254 101,321
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B F5 i A 8 CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS
SIS A — TR R A AR A ) R AR AT 22 A Currency concentrations - the table below summarises the net foreign
TRRE o AN MRVT RE T R R BT AT N R currency positions of the Group and the Bank. The net positions in foreign
B AR 2 10%38 LA F IR T DABE &R o U A M 7 currency is disclosed when the currency constitutes 10% or more of the
B A At SR O i 2 R SR MERF AR T - R B total net position of all foreign currencies. A sensitivity analysis calculates
WMERE L AR AR E) 2 R - the effect of a reasonably possible movement in a currency rate against the
Hong Kong dollar, with all other variables in the income statement and
equity held constant.
Fushhe
*i N B RN SLER b3 73 Wi Bt Other foreign it
US§ RMB JPY NID CHF GBP CAD AUD EUR  currencies Total
3| Group L TR 0 TEx TEx TR TEx  THxX  TEx  TEx  TEn T#x
"Rk 2011 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Fawng Non-structural position
REHE Spot assets 152,934,813 107,337,281 2,156,408 82,020 119,418 1,617,590 5,722 3,585,986 2,895,794 4394 270,824,976
RRAR Spot liabilities (114,471,984)  (99,381,227) (513,53) (636,174) (125,60 (L497,735)  (1,330,350)  (4,532,706) (3,157,871 (279,292)  (225,926,476)
EHEA Forward purchases 98,146,189 67,641,586 2,250,712 636,211 159,609 114,584 1318547 2125576 7,042,099 250,153 179,685,266
B Forward sales (140,460,012)  (71,435,309) ~ (3,915,238) (59.897)  (142,127) (199,416 (19924)  (1,289488)  (6,783943) (12,067) (224317,421)
il 3| Net option position (7483) - - )] - (80) 185 (817) 8972 - 775
R/ (B8 55 Netlong/(short) positon (3858477) 4162331 (L§Y) I 11,298 34943 W18 (111449 5051 W8 26710
i 3z 4 Netstructural position 188420 283417 - - - - - - - YK
Aok
£1 ARH A AEET LG L i L BETC  Other foreign At
US§ RMB PY NZD CHF GBP CAD AUD EUR  currencies Total
AR Group Tr  Thr  TEx  TEx  TEx T T Thr  TEx 0 TEx  Tin
e S 513 2010 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000
Fawng Non-structural position
RARE Spotasset 7879262 I8TI0% LIS 1946 RS 364 Tl 48T D06l BLTE 6684289
REafE Spot liabilities (94,669439) ~ (28975,846) (522,259) (808,175) (75847)  (1,126725) (786,304 (3827,848)  (3,444,800) (336,375)  (134573,618)
EHEA Forward purchases 94495072 74938054 1,440,683 821,807 290415 903,239 860,768 1,199,858 1,341,699 154005 177,545,600
EHEL Forward sales (107,307,423)  (74722833)  (3,177,093) (196,141) (301,960) (131,313) (7822)  (2580,790)  (1,260,058) (48,405)  (189,753,838)
HiEREE Net option position (360,233) K K1) 63,016 7087 BT (L7 155037 95,230 = (1557)
R/ (i) Netlong(short) posiion 17,39 11,469 (14,356) 11974 12289 33,180 05 (186200 (11789) 00 (113,139)
i 3z 4 Netstructural position 188534 21109 = = = - = = = -0

A1 T g 45 K] 22 5 8 A A 2 S\ o HARE AR i A
e B b (B 55 (B 7 AT B o A 4 P 2 5 R TR R AR
A B AR SRATTE I SIS 2 A B A A (R R
7)o

Foreign currency exposures include those arising from trading position.
The net option position is calculated using the delta equivalent approach.
The net structural position of the Group is arising from the Bank’s capital
investment in overseas subsidiary (Chinese Mercantile Bank).
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TIT - HWEBEREBERQF

Branches, Subsidiaries and Associate

B YA

B vt B AE R T3 5E

R ] TP AR AT K B 3348

TERG 1 25881188

il SC{E L 2805 1166

3l 1 73264 ICBCA HX

A« 7 TP R (F R 87298
IRERERAT 4 MBS © UBHKHKHH
A4k - http://www.icbcasia.com

ST — B
VBT

B VG M B 5 KA VG 242-2445
TE G 1 2559 8166

LB AT
s b BR A i 1 317-319%%
A 7 25 K R b S B

TE G 1 2543 3866

Bl KRBT ST
B s B B R K H122-126%%
FEEh 1 25343333

47
Fr i 25 K R ogi1 A
TE G 2840 5840

4 84T

T s 4 B HE 95 9%

i — 0 1H1013-1014 98 A
TEEE 1 2520 8533

BT
T 7 B 20508 i BLOK B M R
TERE 2526 6278

WA 1T
Fs ST e FFE 117-123%8
TEEE 1 2527 3711

AT AT

Fr vl 1 1 75103-103A 85 b

(K 22012485 H 28 H 48 2 75 #E 18 {138 1339
B E O )

TERE 2259 7800

W R R AT
T v S 5 ¥ T I R T 46898
S U D L R 2A AR
TERG 2834 6148
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HEADQUARTERS

33/F., ICBC Tower,

3 Garden Road,

Central, Hong Kong

Telephone: 2588 1188

Facsimile: 2805 1166

Telex: 73264 ICBCA HX

Post Box: GPO Box 872

SWIFT: UBHKHKHH

Website: http://www.icbcasia.com

BRANCHES - HONG KONG ISLAND

West Point Branch

242-244 Queen’s Road West, Sai Ying Pun,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2559 8166

Sheung Wan Branch

Shop F, G/F., Kai Tak Commercial Building,
317-319 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2543 3866

Queen’s Road Central Branch
122-126 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2534 3333

Central Branch
1/F., 9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2840 5840

Admiralty Branch

Shop 1013-1014, 1/F., United Centre,
95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2520 8533

Caine Road Branch

G/F., Caine Building, 22 Caine Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2526 6278

Wanchai Branch

117-123 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2527 3711

Wanchai Road Branch
G/F., 103-103A Wan Chai Road,
Hong Kong

(To be relocated to G/F Time Media Centre, No.133 Wan Chai Road,

Hong Kong on 28 May 2012)
Telephone: 2259 7800

Hennessy Road Branch

Shop 2A, G/F. & Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre,

468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong
Telephone: 2834 6148
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Happy Valley Branch

23 King Kwong Street, Happy Valley,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2575 5720

Aberdeen Branch

Shop 7A, G/F,, Site 1, Aberdeen Centre,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2518 5000

Causeway Bay Branch

Shop A, G/F., Jardine Center,

50 Jardine’s Bazaar, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2504 5888

Electric Road Branch
113-115 Electric Road, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2570 0388

Fortress Hill Branch

Shop A-C, G/F, Kwong Chiu Terrace,
272-276 King’s Road, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2887 3811

City Garden Personal Banking Centre
Shop Unit 23, G/F., Maximall, City Garden,
233 Electric Road, North Point,

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2570 8198

North Point Branch

G/F., 436-438 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2503 2993

Quarry Bay Branch

Shop SLGI, Sub-Lower Ground Floor,
Westlands Gardens, Nos. 2-12, Westlands Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Telephone: 2563 8724

Sai Wan Ho Branch

Shop G10 G/F, Tai On Building,

57-87 Shau Kei Wan Road, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2568 5730

Shau Kei Wan Personal Banking Centre
195 Shau Kei Wan Road, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2940 3066

Siu Sai Wan Branch

Shop Nos 17-19, Ground Floor, Harmony Garden,
No.9 Siu Sai Wan Road, Hong Kong

Telephone: 2965 2965

BRANCHES - KOWLOON

Tsimshatsui East Branch

Shop B, G/F., Railway Plaza, 39 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Telephone: 2301 0500

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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R A>T Tsim Sha Tsui Branch
JUBE SR VP 1 3 35-37 58 T 1-29% 4 Shop 1-2, G/F., 35-37 Hankow Road,
TEEE 1 23695329 Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Telephone: 2369 5329

EHAT Jordan Branch
JURE e UM BB 233 95 e B 1 T 1/F., JD Mall, No. 233 Nathan Road,
TERG 1 2376 1822 Jordan, Kowloon

Telephone: 2376 1822

¥ i H 43 47 N Yaumatei Branch

JUHE TH i b, 5 2O 542 5% 542 Nathan Road, Yaumatei, Kowloon

R 2771 6060 Telephone: 2771 6060

WE£4 5 47 Mongkok Branch

JUHENE £ 3 508 721-72555% G/F., Belgian Bank Building, 721-725 Nathan Road,
#FHRAT R E T Mongkok, Kowloon

G 2309 7700 Telephone: 2309 7700

KT AT Prince Edward Branch

JUBERE f4 58 Z0E 77795 777 Nathan Road, Mongkok, Kowloon

AG 1 23803008 Telephone: 2380 3008

Vi E) Shamshuipo Branch

JURE VR K 3 75 A% 1 3629058 #b G/F., 290 Lai Chi Kok Road, Shamshuipo, Kowloon
il 0 27255133 Telephone: 2725 5133

B AT Lai Chi Kok Branch

JURE 7 A% A = 1D 5 7 833 5% Shop G06, G/F., Cheung Sha Wan Plaza,

RV & 5T Goe it & 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon
T h 2741 8787 Telephone: 2741 8787

RIENHT ) Mei Foo Branch

JUBE 35 50 A B 392 i 1 — MENOS A Bl Shop N95A, 1/F., Mount Sterling Mall, Mei Foo Sun Chuen, Kowloon
TG 2266 4600 Telephone: 2266 4600

o] SC 43 47 Ho Man Tin Branch

JUBEAR SC 5 T 7095 56 48 K L R G/F, Tsan Yung Mansion, No. 70 Waterloo Road,
TE &G 2760 3000 Ho Man Tin, Kowloon

Telephone: 2760 3000

&R 17 Oi Man Branch
JUBEfAT 3C 2 B i 7% 35 F18-F199% &l Shop F18 & F19, Oi Man Commercial Complex,
TE &G 0 2713 9261 Oi Man Estate, Homantin, Kowloon

Telephone: 2713 9261

AL 43 4T Hung Hom Branch

JUBEAL i 18 B 15234 E 5% ALl 7 35 b R 2 A% Shop 24, G/F., Hung Hom Shopping Mall,

TEG 1 26277168 2-34E Tak Man Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon
Telephone: 2627 7168

AN 5347 Mok Cheong Street Branch

JUHE R R R 12- 14598 12-14 Mok Cheong Street, Tokwawan, Kowloon

TERG 1 27145151 Telephone: 2714 5151

Wil AT San Po Kong Branch

JUHE BT i o B f3-23 5% Shop G10, Yue Xiu Plaza, 3-23 Ning Yuen Street,

55 35 G109% fill San Po Kong, Kowloon

TG 1 23255387 Telephone: 2325 5387

KA 43 47 Wong Tai Sin Branch

JUBE# R ALIE M55 103 5% Shop 128, Level One, Wong Tai Sin Plaza,

TR AL L — M 128 A 103 Ching Tak Street, Wong Tai Sin, Kowloon

G 1 2726 6966 Telephone: 2726 6966

"% — — 4 4F i Annual Report 2011
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Telford Branch
Shop F19, Telford Plaza, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
Telephone: 2797 2683

Ngau Tau Kok Branch

Shop Nos. G211-214, G/F., Phase II, Amoy Plaza,
77 Ngau Tau Kok Road, Kowloon

Telephone: 2260 9688

Hong Ning Road Personal Banking Centre
58 Hong Ning Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Telephone: 2342 8610

Kwun Tong Branch
Shop 5 & 6, 1/F, Crocodile Center, 79 Hoi Yuen Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Telephone: 2342 0103

BRANCHES - NEW TERRITORIES

Tseung Kwan O Branch

Shop Nos. 2011-2012, Level 2, Metro City,

Plaza II, 8 Yan King Road, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories
Telephone: 3194 3382

Kwai Fong Branch
C63A-C66, 2F., Kwai Chung Plaza, Kwai Fong, New Territories
Telephone: 2485 8000

Kwai Chung Branch

Unit G02, Tower A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories

Telephone: 2420 9288

Tsuen Wan Castle Peak Road Branch
G/F, 423-427 Castle Peak Road Tsuen Wan, New Territories
Telephone: 2492 0167

Sha Tsui Road Branch

Shop 4, G/F., Chung On Building, 297-313 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Telephone: 2439 9278

Tuen Mun Branch

217 A-F Central Services Building, Nan Fung Industrial City,
18 Tin Hau Road, Tuen Mun, New Territories

Telephone: 2466 8161

Tai Hing Branch

Shop 21-23 Tai Hing Commercial Complex, Tai Hing Estate,
Tuen Mun, New Territories

Telephone: 2462 2400

Yuen Long Branch

G/F., 197-199 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long,
New Territories

Telephone: 2442 5005

Shatin Branch

Shop 22J, Level 3, Shatin Centre, New Territories
Telephone: 2693 3330

"% — —4F4F i Annual Report 2011
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P.O. Box 1034

4/F, Harbour Place,
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Cayman Islands
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IEC Investments Limited
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Tai Po Branch

Shop F, G/F, Mee Fat Building, No. 34-38 Tai Wing Lane,
Tai Po, New Territories

Telephone: 2638 3199

Tai Wo Branch

Shop 216, 2/F., Tai Wo Shopping Centre, Tai Wo Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories

Telephone: 2650 2986

Sheung Shui Branch

Shop 2, G/F, San Fung Building, No.33 San Fung Avenue,
Shek Wu Hui, Sheung Shui, New Territories

Telephone: 2639 1398

Lok Ma Chau Personal Banking Centre
Shop LMC 206, 2/F Arrival Concourse,
MTR Lok Ma Chau Station, Lok Ma Chau
Telephone: 3404 6222

OVERSEAS BRANCH

Cayman Islands Branch
P.O. Box 1034

4/F, Harbour Place,

103 South Church Street
Grand Cayman KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

SUBSIDIARIES

Chinese Mercantile Bank

ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company Limited
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited

ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Limited

ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited

ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited

ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited

ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited

ICBCA (C.I.) Limited

UB China Business Management Co. Ltd.

ASSOCIATE

IEC Investments Limited
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